Traffic and Road Safety Advisory

Panel

DATE: Wednesday 23 November 2016
TIME: 7.30 pm

VENUE: Council Chamber, Harrow

Civic Centre

MEMBERSHIP (Quorum 3)

Chair: Councillor Barry Kendler

Councillors:

Jeff Anderson Susan Hall

Jerry Miles Ameet Jogia

Anne Whitehead (VC) Mrs Vina Mithani

Advisers: Mr L Gray Dr Anoop Shah
Mr N Long Mr A Wood

Reserve Members:

1. Ghazanfar Ali 1. Manjibhai Kara
2. Nitin Parekh 2. Lynda Seymour
3. Sachin Shah 3. John Hinkley
4. Margaret Davine

Contact: Manize Talukdar, Democratic & Electoral Services Officer
Tel: 020 8424 1323 E-mail: manize.talukdar@harrow.gov.uk

( %?/‘fﬂ&tCDUNCIL )

LONDON



AGENDA - PART I

1. ATTENDANCE BY RESERVE MEMBERS
To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve Members.
Reserve Members may attend meetings:-

(1) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve;

(i) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the meeting; and

(i)  the meeting notes at the start of the meeting at the item ‘Reserves’ that the
Reserve Member is or will be attending as a reserve;

(iv)  if a Reserve Member whose intention to attend has been noted arrives after
the commencement of the meeting, then that Reserve Member can only act
as a Member from the start of the next item of business on the agenda after
his/her arrival.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary or non pecuniary interests, arising
from business to be transacted at this meeting, from:

(@)  all Members of the Panel;
(b)  all other Members present.

3.  MINUTES (Pages5 - 12)

That the minutes of the meeting held on 19 July 2016 be taken as read and signed
as a correct record.

4, PUBLIC QUESTIONS *

To receive any public questions received in accordance with Executive Procedure
Rule 49 (Part 4D of the Constitution).

Questions will be asked in the order notice of them was received and there be a
time limit of 15 minutes.
[The deadline for receipt of public questions is 3.00 pm,

Friday 18 November 2016. Questions should be sent to
publicquestions@harrow.gov.uk

No person may submit more than one question].
5. PETITIONS

To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors under
the provisions of Executive Procedure Rule 47 (Part 4D of the Constitution).

6. DEPUTATIONS

To receive deputations (if any) under the provisions of Executive Procedure Rule 48

Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel - 23 November 2016 2



10.

11.

12.

13.

(Part 4D of the Constitution).
INFORMATION REPORT - PETITIONS (Pages 13 - 18)
Report of the Corporate Director, Community.

HATCH END AREA PARKING REVIEW - RESULTS OF STATUTORY
CONSULTATION (Pages 19 - 44)

Report of the Corporate Director, Community.

INFORMATION REPORT: TRANSPORT LOCAL IMPLEMENTATION PLAN
PROGRAMME OF INVESTMENT 2017/18 - 2019/2020 (Pages 45 - 58)

Report of the Corporate Director, Community.

INFORMATION REPORT: ULTRA LOW EMISSION ZONE - NEIGHBOURHOOD
OF THE FUTURE (NOF) (Pages 59 - 118)

Report of the Corporate Director, Community.

INFORMATION REPORT - WEALDSTONE TRANSPORT ISSUES (Pages 119 -
146)

Report of the Corporate Director, Community.

INFORMATION REPORT - TRAFFIC AND PARKING SCHEMES PROGRAMME
UPDATE (Pages 147 - 190)

Report of the Corporate Director, Community.
ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS

Which cannot otherwise be dealt with.

AGENDA - PART Il - NIL

* DATA PROTECTION ACT NOTICE
The Council will audio record item 4 (Public Questions) and will place the audio recording on the
Council’'s website, which will be accessible to all.

[Note: The questions and answers will not be reproduced in the minutes.]

Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel - 23 November 2016 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 3
(Pages 5t012 4

LUNUUN

__

106.

107.

TRAFFIC AND ROAD SAFETY
ADVISORY PANEL

19 JULY 2016

Chair: * Councillor Barry Kendler
Councillors: * Jeff Anderson * Mrs Vina Mithani
* Susan Hall * Lynda Seymour (2)
* Jerry Miles * Anne Whitehead
Advisers: * MrL Gray * Dr Anoop Shah
T MrN Long * Mr A Wood
In attendance: John Hinkley Minute 116
(Councillors) Jean Lammiman Minute 116

*

Denotes Member present
(2) Denotes category of Reserve Members
T Denotes apologies received

Attendance by Reserve Members

RESOLVED: To note the attendance at this meeting of the following duly
appointed Reserve Members:-

Ordinary Member Reserve Member

Councillor Ameet Jogia Councillor Lynda Seymour
Declarations of Interest

RESOLVED: To note that the following interests were declared:

Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel - 19 July 2016 5 - 87 -



Agenda Item 7 — References From Other Committees/Panels &
Agenda Item 8 — Information Report: Petitions

Councillor Mrs Vina Mithani declared a non-pecuniary interest in that she was
a Member of the Health & Social Care Scrutiny Sub-Committee and that she
lived in Brampton Grove, which was in the vicinity of several local schools.
She would remain in the room whilst the matters were considered and voted
upon.

Agenda ltem 7 - References From Other Committees/Panels

Councillor Lynda Seymour declared a non-pecuniary interest in that she was
Ward Councillor for Belmont Ward, where a walk-in centre may be built. She
would remain in the room whilst the matter was considered and voted upon.

Agenda Item 10 — Information Report: School Travel Plans Update

Councillor Jeff Anderson declared a non-pecuniary interest in that he was
Chair of Governors at Kingsley School. He would remain in the room whilst
the matter was considered and voted upon.

Councillor Jean Lammiman declared a non-pecuniary interest in that she was
Chair of Governors at Shaftesbury School. She would remain in the room
whilst the matter was considered and voted upon.

108. Minutes

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the ordinary meeting held on 11 February
2016 and of the special meeting held on 27 June 2016 be taken as read and
signed as correct records.

109. Public Questions
To note that two public questions had been received and responded to and in
line with the statement made by the Chairman, the recording had been placed
on the website.

110. Petitions

RESOLVED: To note the receipt of the following petition, which was referred
to the Corporate Director, Community, for consideration:

Petition from residents in Eastleigh Avenue, South Harrow, containing 20
signatures, with the following terms of reference:

‘Draw white parking lines in our cul-de-sac, for vehicles to park within the
lines, and to implement a “No Parking Zone”, in the middle of the cul-de-sac
and put designated parking spaces (2) in the centre’.

111. Deputations

RESOLVED: To note that none were received.

- 88 - 6 Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel - 19 July 2016



112.

Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel - 19 July 2016 7 -89 -

References from Other Committees/Panels

The Panel received a Reference from the Planning Committee meeting of
17 February 2016 which requested that a review of school travel plans be
carried out because of their importance in mitigating the impact of traffic and
parking issues outside schools.

An officer advised that the Council’'s travel planners worked closely with
schools, particularly those undergoing expansion, to ensure they had robust
travel plans in place. In the case of Grimsdyke School, it had achieved TfL’s
Gold accreditation, had reduced car use by 12-13% and had demonstrated
over twenty-five initiatives, such as a walking bus to reduce car journeys to
the school.

A Member stated that Grimsdyke School was unusual in that there was a very
narrow access road (Sylvia Avenue) to the school site and she continued to
receive complaints about traffic and parking from residents in Hillview Road.
She had concerns regarding access for emergency vehicles on Sylvia Avenue
during school pick-up and drop-off times. Expanding the school would worsen
the traffic congestion issues in the area and officers should continue to
monitor and review the situation there.

The Chair advised that adhering to the STP was often a condition of being
granted planning permission for schools to expand.

The Panel received a Reference from the Health & Social Care Scrutiny Sub-
Committee meeting of 1 March 2016, which requested that the Panel look into
the lack of adequate public transport provision and lack of free parking in the
vicinity of Alexandra Avenue Clinic.

An officer advised that there was a single, twice hourly bus service, the 398,
which serviced the clinic.

An adviser to the Panel stated that TfL had recently announced that the 398
bus service would be extended to evenings and Sundays, nevertheless, the
398 route did not correspond exactly to the catchment area of the Alexandra
Avenue clinic and an additional bus route would be helpful. The adviser
undertook to take this item to the next meeting of the Bus and Rail liaison
Group in October 2016.

The Panel agreed that TfL should be lobbied regarding this and the Portfolio
Holder for Environment, Crime and Community Safety be urged to discuss
this further with the Deputy Mayor of London.

RESOLVED: That

(1)  to note the Reference from the Planning Committee;

(2) to note the Reference from the Health & Social Care Scrutiny Sub-
Committee;



113.

-90 -

(3) the Reference from the Health & Social Care Scrutiny Sub-Committee
be referred to the Portfolio Holder for Environment, Crime &
Community Safety with a request that he write to the Deputy Mayor for
Transport (GLA) asking for a meeting to discuss improving bus
services to the Alexandra Avenue Clinic.

RECOMMENDED ITEMS

Cycling in Harrow

The Panel received a report of the Corporate Director, Community which set
out the current position with regard to cycling in the borough and
recommended a way forward for delivering the aspirations of the Cycle

Strategy.

Following a brief overview of the report, Panel Members made the following
comments:

o the strategy was excellent. The relevant contact at the Mayor of
London’s office should be approached regarding the Strategy and
Action Plan;

. the limited extent of the cycling infrastructure in Harrow prevented

more people from cycling. It was important to continue to lobby
Transport for London and the Mayor of London for increased funding to
improve and expand the cycling infrastructure, in Harrow and in
London generally. It would be useful to carry out a survey of residents
to gauge the level of unmet needs, for example, how many people
owned bicycles but did not use them or would like to cycle but did not
do so due to safety and other concerns;

o any statistics and information from such a survey would support
Harrow’s case when lobbying TfL and the Mayor of London. The
Communications Team should be approached regarding the possibility
of such a survey being included in the next issue of Harrow People;

o the Strategy demonstrated that Harrow had ambitions to become more
cycle-friendly. However, the lack of progress in Harrow was in sharp
contrast to excellent schemes in other parts of London, for example,
the Embankment super-highway and the mini-Hollands initiative.
Waltham Forest had been transformed by the mini-Hollands scheme
and Harrow could contact them to take advantage of their expertise
and experience. The London Cycling Design Standards should be
adopted in Harrow;

o the Portfolio Holder for Environment, Crime and Community Safety
should be urged to make representations to TfL and the Mayor of
London for additional funding;

o it was important to educate pedestrians as well as drivers to respect
cycle lanes and cyclists

8 Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel - 19 July 2016



some cycle lane markings on roads that had been recently dug up by
statutory providers were in need of repainting

Officers responded to Members questions and comments as follows:

the Council ran sustained and targeted promotion campaigns regarding
cycling;

it was incumbent on Statutory Providers to re-instate any areas of road
and pavement that they dug up and any breaches should be reported
and would be investigated by the Network Policy Team.

Resolved to RECOMMEND: (to the Portfolio Holder for Environment, Crime
and Community Safety)

That

(1)

(2)

(7)

(8)

the work programmes and initiatives to deliver the cycling strategy to
date using TfL grant funding be noted;

the Borough Cycle Action Plan be reviewed and updated to set out
specific, realistic and deliverable short, medium and long term goals
based on anticipated funding levels;

the Harrow cycle skills network audit be noted and the findings used to
prioritise the infrastructure improvements in the Borough Cycle Action
Plan;

the Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel reviews progress with the
Borough Cycle Action Plan annually;

the 2017/18 LIP programme increases the proportion of investment for
cycling within the total funding to be confirmed by TfL;

a positive case be made to the London Mayor for additional investment
in cycling for Harrow to deliver it's cycle strategy;

all opportunities to secure developer contributions and Community
Infrastructure Levy funding for cycle infrastructure improvements are
pursued;

the London ‘Safer Lorries Safer Cycling’ scheme be supported.

Reason for Decision: To improve cycle infrastructure in the borough and
make Harrow a more cycle friendly borough and increase the uptake of
cycling as a sustainable mode of transport for all users.

Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel - 19 July 2016 9 -91-



RESOLVED ITEMS
114. Information Report - Petitions

The Panel received a report of the Corporate Director, Community which set
out details of the petitions that had been received since the last meeting of the
Panel and provided details of the Council’s investigations and findings where
these had been undertaken.

Following questions and comments from Panel Members, an officer advised:

there was a statutory process to be followed in relation to the introduction of
parking controls or a Controlled Parking Zone — namely an initial stakeholder
meeting followed by informal and then statutory consultation;

officers would however take on board the comments from the Panel regarding
the need to look into speeding, congestion and safety issues in the vicinity of
Harrow Leisure Centre resulting from the introduction of parking charges at
the Leisure Centre and local schools traffic;

once a parking scheme was implemented, it was monitored, and officers had
received a number of queries regarding the scheme in Paines Lane. Any
change to parking controls in Paines Lane or new intervention there would
need to be discussed at the February 2017 meeting of the Panel.

The Chair requested that the response letter which would be sent to the
Petitioners from the 19th Harrow Scout hut, be sent in his name, once he had
been consulted on the draft.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

115. Information Report: 2016/17 Traffic and Parking Schemes Programme
update

The Panel received a report of the Corporate Director, Community which
provided an update on progress with the 2016/17 traffic and parking
management programme of works. This included schemes funded by
Transport for London and schemes which had been included in Harrow’s
Capital Programme.

An officer provided a brief overview of the report and responded to Panel
Members questions and comments as follows:

° implementation of the proposed Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) in
South Harrow had been delayed and would probably begin in October
2016;

. the proposed works on the Ridgeway would include bus stop clearways

and cages on the road;

-92- 10 Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel - 19 July 2016



116.

Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel - 19 July 2016 11 -93-

. Eastern Parade - the investigation was ongoing as there had been
some issues with some unidentified STATS (Statutory Undertakers
Appliances) in the form of cabling had been found and officers were
working on the assumption that these would need to be moved and
were seeking additional funding for this to be carried out.

An officer undertook to provide the HPTUA adviser with more detailed
information regarding the nature of bus stop accessibility works in Pinner after
the meeting.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.
Information Report: School Travel Plans - Update

The Panel received a report of the Corporate Director, Community which set
out details of the status of School Travel Plans (STPs) in the borough.

Following a brief overview of the report, an officer responded to the Panel’s
Members and back-benching Members questions and comments as follows:

o STPs were owned by schools and not by the Council and schools were
ultimately responsible for delivering their STPs. The Council’s travel
planners would offer support and encouragement to help schools
develop realistic and achievable targets and implement their STPs;

. it was true that the Council currently only had 3 enforcement vehicles
to deal with over 70 schools in the borough. However, in the past it
had never been necessary to have dedicated enforcement vehicles to
deal with traffic and parking violations in the vicinity of schools. This
was a recent phenomenon, due in part to the school expansion
programme. Officers had to target resources appropriately and
enforcement vehicles would be deployed as necessary;

o three schools in the borough (one of which was Grimsdyke School)
either had or would shortly be introducing a walking bus scheme and
others were being encouraged to follow suit.

The Chair added that in the case of new schools or the expansion of existing
schools, fulfilling the aims of the STP was often a condition of being granted
planning permission.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

(Note: The meeting, having commenced at 7.30 pm, closed at 9.15 pm).

(Signed) COUNCILLOR BARRY KENDLER
Chair



This page is intentionally left blank

12



Agenda Item 7
Pages 13 to 18

Traffic and Road Safety
Advisory Panel

Date of Meeting:

Subject:

Responsible Officer:

Exempt:

Wards affected:

Enclosures:

23 November 2016

INFORMATION REPORT
Petitions relating to:

1) The Gardens, West Harrow —
extension of CPZ hours

2) Jesmond Way, Stanmore —
objection to double yellow lines

Tom McCourt — Corporate Director,
Community

No

Pinner South, Rayners Lane,
Headstone South, Belmont,
Wealdstone, Hatch End, Roxbourne

None

( %/‘fﬂhCDUNCIL )

LONDON

13



Section 1 - Summary

This report sets out details of the petitions that have been received since the last
TARSAP meeting and provides details of the Council’s investigations and findings
where these have been undertaken.

FOR INFORMATION

Section 2 - Report

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Petition 1 — The Gardens, West Harrow - Request to extend hours of
operation

A petition containing 29 pro forma letters with comments and signatures
was received by the council on 20" October 2016. The letters state
states:

“We have been approached by various residents of this road about the
very bad parking situation again after 11:00am.

Apart from the impossible parking situation residents are very concerned
about how dangerous the road is at all times and particularly at school
opening and closing times

This is a through road so we have more than our share of lorries and
businesses, added to this parents drive over the pavements and turn their
cars amongst hundreds of children

We could start the process with Harrow Council to have the restriction
hours extended to at least another hour in the afternoons.

Please return this letter in the next 10 days with your signature and any
other issues you may have re the above.”

The request will be added to the list of requests to be presented to the
panel in February 2017 when the annual parking management report is
considered. As members are aware all of the requests for schemes
received during the year or already on the list will be assessed against
standard assessment factors agreed by TARSAP.

The schemes will be ranked in order of priority and a suggested
programme of schemes presented to the panel for their consideration and
prioritisation. The priority for a scheme in The Gardens can then be
reviewed.

Petition 2 — Jesmond Way, Stanmore — Objection to double yellow
lines

A petition containing 23 signatures was received by the council on 28"
October 2016. The letters state states:

14



2.5

2.6

“We the undersigned residents of Jesmond Way, Stanmore strongly
object to these experimental waiting restrictions as they are totally
unnecessary and will cause serious inconvenience and problems for us
by the removal of much-needed and well-used parking space.

There is no evidence of any need or justification for such restrictions in
this purely local residential access road even on the bend where the
Council has announced its intention to impose them.

We further object to

(a) the way in which the Council asserts in its notification letter (delivered
to us several days after its date of 14th October) that “The Council
does not have to consult on the proposals before introducing the
scheme” on the grounds that this is an experiment

(b) the way in which the proposed Jesmond Way restrictions were
shown ONLY on the plan accompanying the letter with no mention
whatever in the text of the letter.

We request the Council to scrap this unnecessary and disruptive
experiment.”

The Council has received complaints from residents and members about
congestion problems at the junction of the A5 and Stonegrove Service
Road as well as in the unrestricted section of Pangbourne Drive caused
by large coaches on their way to pick up and drop off children at the
North London Collegiate School. In response to this an experimental
scheme, which can be implemented without prior statutory consultation,
has consequently been developed that seeks to address these issues as
quickly as possible. A letter dated the 14" October was sent to residents
with details of the scheme which includes:

o a one-way (northbound) working along the northern section of
Stonegrove service road

. experimental waiting restrictions operating Monday to Friday 7 to 11
am and 3 to 6 pm along the northern side of Pangbourne Drive east
of Dalkeith Grove

. experimental waiting restrictions operating Monday to Friday 7 to 11
am and 3 to 6 pm along the service road adjacent to properties 119
to 127, and Gordon Court.

o short sections of double yellow lines opposite the access into the
service road between Jesmond Way and Calthorpe Gardens and
on Pangbourne Drive opposite its junction with Dalkeith Grove and
on the south side of Pangbourne Drive east of its junction with
Dalkeith Grove.

This experimental scheme does not include a proposal to introduce
double yellow lines on the bend in Jesmond Way. However, the plan
attached to the letter does indicate that there will be an intention to
propose this measure in the future as a part of another consultation and

15



2.7

2.8

this may possibly have been misunderstood as being a part of the
experimental scheme.

As members of the panel will be aware there is a separate proposal to
extend CPZ zone H by including Pangbourne Drive. It is intended that
this scheme would include parking restrictions for the bend in Jesmond
Way. A separate consultation exercise for this scheme is proposed in the
near future where representations will be possible in advance of any
scheme implementation.

In respect of the petitioners concerns a meeting was convened on 4"
November with the chair of TARSAP to review the proposed double
yellow lines on the bend near number 27 Jesmond Way. Following those
discussions it was agreed that the council would revise the scheme
design to include a double yellow line only on the inside of the bend when
the consultation is sent to residents.

Section 3 - Further Information

3.1.

The purpose of this report is to inform the Panel about any new petitions
received since the last meeting. No updates on the progress made with
previous petitions will be reported at future meetings as officers will liaise
with the Chair of TARSAP and the Portfolio Holder directly regarding any
updates.

Section 4 - Financial Implications

41.

There are no direct financial implications. Any suggested measures in the
report that require further investigation would be taken forward using
existing resources and funding.

Section 5 - Equalities implications

5.1

The petitions raise issues about existing schemes in the traffic and
transportation works programme as well as new areas for investigation.
The officer’s response indicates a suggested way forward in each case.
An equality impact assessment (EqglA) will be carried out in accordance
with the current corporate guidance if members subsequently decide that
officers should develop detailed schemes or proposals to address any of
the concerns raised in the petitions.

Section 6 - Council Priorities

6.1

The funds allocated by TfL and Harrow for transport improvements will
contribute to achieving the administration’s priorities:

e Making a difference for the vulnerable
e Making a difference for communities
¢ Making a difference for local businesses

16



e Making a difference for families

Section 7 - Statutory Officer Clearance

on behalf of the
Name: Jessie Man Chief Financial Officer

Date: 10/11/16

Ward Councillors notified: YES

Section 8 - Contact Details and Background
Papers

Contact:

Barry Philips
Tel: 020 8424 1437, Fax: 020 8424 7662, E-mail: barry.philips@harrow.gov.uk

Background Papers:

Previous TARSAP reports
Decision Notices
Public and statutory consultation documents highlighted in the report

17




This page is intentionally left blank

18



Agenda Item 8
Pages 19to 44

Traffic And Road Safety

Advisory Panel
Date of Meeting: 23" November 2016

Subject: Hatch End Area Parking Review —
Results of Statutory Consultation

Key Decision: No

Responsible Officer: Tom McCourt — Corporate Director,

Community

Portfolio Holder: Graham Henson - Portfolio Holder for
Environment, Crime and Community
Safety.

Exempt: No

Decision subject to  Yes

Call-in:

Wards affected: Hatch End

Enclosures: Appendix A — Hatch End - Legal
Notification leaflet
Appendix B — List of objections and
officer comments

( %/‘fﬂhCDUNCIL )

19 LONDON



Section 1 - Summary and Recommendations

This report provides details of the legal notification (statutory consultation)
carried out in 2016 regarding proposed changes to the existing hours of
control within the Hatch End Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ).

The report seeks approval from the Panel to recommend to the Portfolio
Holder for Environment, Crime and Community Safety that no further action is
taken with regard to any changes to the operational hours of the existing
parking controls in the residential roads in Westfield Park.

Recommendations:

The Panel is requested to recommend to the Portfolio Holder for Environment,
Crime and Community Safety that:

1. The objections received regarding the proposed changes to the hours
of control of the existing CPZ are upheld and that no further action is
taken with regard to a reduction of the hours of control of the existing
controlled parking zone in Westfield Park, and the objectors are
informed of the decision.

2. Minor changes are made to the permit bay layout outside St Anselms
Church adjacent to the western wall of the church in Westfield Park to
reduce it in size and replace with a single yellow line. This will facilitate
wedding or funeral vehicles at the church more easily. Guests will still
be required to find alternative parking in the surrounding roads or local
car parks.

3. The objection to the proposed extension of the double yellow lines on
the north side of Cedar Drive is set aside, to afford additional protection
for residential access and loading/unloading and to provide more space
for vehicle manoeuvres at the junction with The Avenue and the
objector informed of the decision.

4. That all residents in the consultation area be informed of the decision.
Reason
Objections received during the legal notification identified that residents do

not support the proposed changes to the hours of control of the existing
CPZ.

20




Section 2 - Report

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

Introduction

Parking has a significant impact on the quality of life of Harrow’s
residents and a significant impact on the viability of Harrow’s
businesses and is one of the main concerns reported to the Council
regarding transport issues. This report summarises the results and
outcomes of statutory consultation in the Hatch End area.

Options considered

Statutory consultation is a necessary legal process for introducing or
changing restrictions on the public highway. The council as highway
authority is required to consider all representations and in particular

objections received during the statutory period.

Faced with objections to each or any aspect of the proposals the
council has three options available to it:

e to accept the grounds of objection are sufficient to require for the
proposal or proposals to be abandoned;

e to consider the grounds of objection are insufficient and therefore
should be set aside and the scheme proposals be implemented
as advertised

e to accept the grounds of objection require that some changes
should be made to the proposals but they should proceed with
those modifications.

Background

The Hatch End controlled parking zone (CPZ) Zone Y was introduced
in residential roads surrounding Hatch End station in 2014 and
operates Monday to Saturday 10-11am and 3-4pm.

The introduction of the CPZ led to a petition from St Anselm’s Church
requesting the removal of the afternoon restriction from the roads
surrounding the church in Westfield Park and adjoining streets to the
north of Uxbridge Road as the petitioners felt that it was having an
adverse effect on the activities at the church. In addition another minor
change to a permit bay outside the church was requested.

Separate representations were also received requesting an extension
to the existing double yellow lines at the junction of Cedar Drive and
The Avenue.

This Panel sanctioned a review of the Hatch End controlled parking

zone to establish the level of support for these changes, and in
December 2015 a public consultation exercise was carried out. The

21



2.8

2.9

2.10

2.1

2.12

2.13

results of the public consultation were reported to this Panel in
February 2016.

The main item in this consultation was the proposal to reduce the
hours of operation of the CPZ in the Westfield Park area to Monday to
Saturday 10-11am. In order to do this and retain the existing
operational hours in the other parts of zone Y it would be necessary to
split the zone into two separate zones each with their own individual
permits. The zones would have different zone identification letters and
permits in one zone would therefore not be valid in the other zone as a
consequence of this separation.

The report indicated that whilst the results of the consultation were
generally inconclusive a small majority of those that responded to the
public consultation from the Westfield Park area did not want any
changes to the hours of control of the existing CPZ zone Y. This Panel
resolved to defer a decision pending further discussions with ward
councillors.

It was agreed following discussions between ward councillors, the
Chair of the Panel and the Portfolio Holder to recognise the needs of
the petitioners and proceed to statutory consultation on the proposal to
remove the current afternoon restriction which operates Monday to
Saturday between 3-4pm. This statutory consultation also to include
(b) shortening a permit bay on the east side of Westfield Park opposite
Linden Lea and its replacement by a zone time single yellow line and
(c) the extension of double yellow line on the north side of Cedar Drive
at the junction with The Avenue.

Legal Notification (Statutory Consultation)

A leaflet was delivered to all households in the Westfield Park estate,
The Avenue and Dove Park in advance of the formal legal notices
being advertised explaining the results of the previous consultation and
outlining the process for raising objections or commenting on the
proposal during the legal notification (statutory consultation) to follow.

A copy of the leaflet can be seen in Appendix A.

The formal Traffic Management Order notice was advertised by placing
notices on street lighting columns, and adverts in a local paper on 4™
August 2016. Details of where to see a copy of the order and
supporting documents during normal office hours was provided in the
notice. This gave anyone a chance to comment or place a formal
objection by 24™ August 2016. Copies of the notice were also sent to
statutory consultees such as the emergency services, etc.

Legal notification (Statutory Consultation) results

22



2.14

2.15

2.16

217

2.18

2.19

2.20

2.21

2.22

Ten objections were received during the statutory period, nine from
residents in Westfield Park area and one from a resident in The
Avenue. Details of all the comments and statutory objections to the
proposals (in an anonymous format) together with officer observations
can be seen at Appendix B.

A letter of support was received from St Anselm’s Parish Church
stating “We wish to confirm that all the petitioners from St Anselm's
Parish Church, Westfield Park, are in agreement that they would like
to see the new proposals upheld as they meet the issues raised in our
petition.”

The results of the statutory consultation were discussed with Ward
Councillors and the Chair of TARSAP at a meeting held on 17th
October 2016. Those present were concerned that due weight should
be taken of the needs of the church and its users and that the
community aspects of the church should not be put at risk. Ward
councillors were of the opinion that owing to the relatively small
number of objections that had been received that the concerns of the
church as outlined in the petition should be listened to and the
proposed change to the operational hours of the CPZ introduced as
advertised.

Consideration of objections
All of the objections received were from within the consultation area.

The shortening in the length of the permit bay and its replacement with
zone time single yellow line outside the church (to facilitate wedding
and funeral vehicles) represents a loss of two permit parking spaces.
This aspect of the proposal did attract one formal objection, however,
taking account of the number of spaces in this part of the zone it is not
considered likely that it would make a significant difference to the
ability of resident permit holders to find permit parking bays. It is
therefore recommended that the objection be set aside.

The extension of the double yellow line in Cedar Drive attracted one
formal objection from a resident. The extended waiting restriction was
proposed for safety and access reasons. Whilst it may produce some
minor inconvenience this is outweighed by the safety benefits and
therefore it is recommended the objection be set aside.

Nine of the representations of which eight are clear statutory objections
relate to the proposal to reduce the hours of operation of the CPZ.

A further representation (in the form of an email/letter) supportive of
the change was received from the church.

The objections relate to concerns that difficulties caused by non-
resident parking which were addressed by the introduction of the CPZ

23



2.23

2.24

2.25

2.26

2.27

in 2014 would return as there would be no restrictions after 11am in
the advertised proposals. The residents objecting point out that a
majority of responses in the public consultation on the reduction of
hours favoured retaining the Monday to Saturday 10-11am and 3-4pm
zone hours as reported to this Panel in February 2016.

The objectors fear that non-resident parking from rail travellers and
more local sources will make it harder for residents to park and cause
access problems. Several objectors believe that there is insufficient
church based activity especially on weekdays to justify removing the
afternoon restriction. Objectors have indicated that the persisting
Friday parking problem after 4pm is indicative of even greater parking
that would return if there were no restrictions after 11am. There are
excellent public transport facilities in the area and paid for parking
facilities that not too distant that visitors are able to use.

Several of the objectors suggested a reduction in the CPZ by the
removal of just the Saturday 3-4pm period as an alternative because
this period appears to them to be the busiest period for the church with
the exception of Sundays (when the restrictions do not apply). Some
residents do appear prepared to accept this as they recognise a
problem with weddings taking place on Saturdays. It is however worth
noting that the church can apply for a dispensation for parking at
weddings and funerals in the same way that other churches within CPZ
zones do across the borough and so such a concession for Saturdays
would be excessive given that there is an existing provision for these
events already.

The advertised proposal has the whole of the Westfield Park area
removed from the Hatch End CPZ — Zone Y and forming an
independent new zone which would operate Monday to Saturday 10-
11am. This would affect approximately a hundred permit parking
spaces as well as the zone time yellow line protecting accesses. This
area was the only practical one as the church is located in the centre of
that area. The creation of a new zone would prevent permit holders
that were unable to find parking in their roads from using permit
parking bays in zone Y or in the shared use bays on Uxbridge Road.

It would appear the change affecting over 250 residential addresses
and around a hundred permit parking spaces has a disproportionate
effect on the majority of people living in the area in order to
accommodate the needs of some activities occurring at the church.
The splitting of zone Y into 2 separate zones will also reduce flexibility
in accommodating fluctuations in permit parking demand to the
available permit parking space available because the zones will
become smaller.

Although there was some ambiguity between the responses to the

question in the public consultation in December 2015 both of them
show a majority in favour of retaining the restrictions in the afternoon.

24



For the above reasons it is considered that that objections have
substance and should be upheld, and that therefore no action should
be taken to reduce the operational times of the CPZ zone Y parking
bays and single yellow lines restrictions in the Westfield Park area.

Conclusion

2.28 The CPZ currently in place in the Westfield Park area has hours of
control that were agreed following extensive public consultation. As a
result of these operational hours, the roads in Westfield Park are now
relatively clear of commuter parking throughout the day, leaving
adequate space for residents and their visitors to park.

2.29 A further public consultation in 2015 showed a small majority of
respondents in favour of maintaining the existing hours of control.

2.30 The legal notification (statutory consultation) provoked eight formal
objections, a further response against and a letter in support of the
proposed reduction of CPZ hours.

2.31  The main grounds of objection were that the improvement in parking
conditions for residents that has been achieved since the introduction
of the CPZ in 2014 would be reversed and is against the majority view
in the public consultation.

2.32  Therefore, the objections made have strong material grounds and
should be upheld. It is recommended that the proposal is abandoned
and the existing scheme in operation remains.

Legal implications

2.33  Subject to statutory consultation requirements, , the Council has
powers to introduce and change CPZ’s under the Road Traffic
Regulation Act 1984 and The Local Authorities Traffic Orders
(Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996 and to place traffic
signs.

Financial Implications

2.34  This scheme is part of the Parking Management programme. There is
a Harrow Capital allocation for this programme of £300k in 2016/17. A
sub allocation of £7.5k for implementation of the Hatch End localised
area parking review was recommended by TARSAP in February 2016.

Equalities Implications / Public Sector Equality Duty
2.35 A programme of CPZ schemes was included in the Transport Local
Implementation Plan (LIP) which was approved by full Council. The

LIP was subject to an Equalities Impact Assessment where schemes
were identified as having no negative impact on any equality groups.

25



2.36

2.37

2.38

2.39

A review of equality issues was undertaken and has indicated no
adverse impact on any of the specified equality groups. There are
positive impacts of the scheme on some equalities groups, particularly,
women, children and people with mobility difficulties. Benefits are likely
to be as follows:

Equalities Group | Benefit

Gender Mothers with young children and elderly people
generally benefit most from controlled parking
as the removal of all-day commuters frees up
spaces closer to residents’ homes. These
groups are more likely to desire parking spaces
with as short a walk to their destination as
possible.

Disability The retention of double yellow lines at junctions
will ensure level crossing points are kept clear.

Parking bays directly outside homes, shops
and other local amenities will make access
easier, particularly by blue badge holders for
long periods of the day.

Age Fewer cars parked on-street in residential
roads will improve the environment for children.
Parking controls can help reduce the influx of
traffic into an area, and therefore reduce
particulates and air pollution, to which children
are particularly sensitive.

Data on respondents’ age, ethnicity, disability, religion, gender and
sexuality was collected anonymously to monitor the equality of access
to the consultation. These responses are broadly comparable
alongside the data taken from the most recent census.

The principle of enforcing parking controls is integral to delivering the
Mayor’s Transport Strategy and the Council’'s adopted Transport LIP.

Council Priorities

The cycling strategy and other cycle policies detailed in the report
accord with the administration’s priorities as follows:

Corporate priority |Impact

Parking controls make streets easier to clean
by reducing the number of vehicles on-street
during the day, giving better access to the kerb
for cleaning crews.

Making a difference
for communities

26



Regular patrols by Civil Enforcement Officers
deter criminal activity and can help gather
evidence in the event of any incidents.

Making a difference
for the vulnerable

Making a difference
for families

Parking controls generally help vulnerable
people by freeing up spaces for carers, friends
and relatives to park during the day. Without
parking controls, these spaces would be
occupied all day by commuters and other forms
of long stay parking.

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance

Name: Jessie Man

Date: 10/11/16

on behalf of the*
Chief Financial Officer

Name: Louise Middleton

Date: 09/11/16

on behalf of the*

Monitoring Officer

Ward Councillors notified: YES

EqlA carried out:

EqlA cleared by:

NO

An EqlA has been
undertaken for the Transport
Local implementation Plan of
which this project is a part. A
separate EqlA is therefore
not necessary

27




Section 4 - Contact Details and Background
Papers

Contact:
Bruce Bolton- Project Engineer - Parking and Sustainable Transport
Background Papers:

Previous TARSAP reports
Consultation responses

28



6¢

APPENDIX A

Albanian

Arabic

Bengali

Chinese

Farsi

Gujarati

Hindi

Punjabi

Somali

Tamil

Urdu

Please call the number below for a large print version
of this document, or a summary of this document in

your language.

Néqoftése gjuha Angleze nuk éshté ghuha juaj e paré,
dhe Kkeni nevojé pér pérkthimin e informatave té
pérmbajtura né kété dokumenté, ju lutemi
kontaktoni numérin dhénés.

ol 2 &Lﬂ_n).‘a.n u)ﬂcuﬂj H)‘}“ «i‘ﬁdu‘.\_‘gja—});dmy‘ il <1
i) oo Ja¥) oLa ) Al gl

v BTSSR PSR 71 B Q3R S+ A U8 BRI TG AW (TS b
OIRCH (T (BTN T (T8 R CTAC W7l O (TS el |

Yo RAIRE R 95T RAAZ M E LM St XM 69 N BE0Em P X

AT TR AR AR R -

ca a5 S ol 3 s e e Dl A 4y i el g Coi el J ol ) (ol R
Aﬂ)&u&hﬂo.\ﬁo&\do)@\gw

ol SRA dHIZL UM ML A €ld Vi WL ecdldMl e HURlAL dopil
(2rudain) dud Sl Sld dl suL s3]0 gRudd ot GUR sl 530

TS DT IS T9 Tl A AT ATID! 39 S § &1 T3 A1 B 3
&=l ¥ 91fey 1 Fuan U T4 Fe7 9 B & |

H 377 »iargHt ANS &t nrBEt 3 3T7g fer wAsed feu fdst aret Arearst &
IgeHT Uardl feg grdter § 3t fagur add €3 918 $99 3 @6 9|

Haddii Ingiriisku uusan ahayn afkaaga koowaad aadna u baahan tahay
turjumidda xog ku jirta dokumentigan fadlan la xiriir lambarka lagu siiyey.

Bl 2 kgt STIGLTHTe Ghardmhg EUUSHTSSHOHESESD Seaudlsr GGy
2 BIGEHSHE CHmaIL LT Siue|tFig sriu’L QgTamaGud seumemfls) QT GaTaTaralL.

fé:r/gi/.; ‘LLA{/;/./“»/Tk{al.)”éfd:uﬁz}k“/:w/_;!’m%ufug;dALJ_;u’dgfrﬁ
<Q/LUQ2

020 8424 1484

I%/WM:OUN(NL

LONDON

IMPORTANT - THIS AFFECTS YOU - PLEASE READ

I%/WM:OUN(NL

LONDON




0€

APPENDIX A

Hatch End Area Parking Review

Proposed scheme

A petition was received by the council in 2014 from church goers of St Anselm’s Church requesting that the council
remove the afternoon parking restriction which operated between 3-4pm because they felt that it was having

an adverse effect on the activities at the church. In December 2015 the council carried out a public consultation
exercise to review the current parking controls in the Westfield Park area of Hatch End. The results of the review were
presented to the Traffic and Road Safety Advisory Panel (TARSAP) in February 2016.

Details can be viewed on the Harrow Council website at:- http://tinyurl.com/zj4dhgc7

The link will need to be entered into your web browser. If you do not have personal access to the internet the council
public libraries do have internet access that residents may use. Alternatively hard copies can be provided on request.

The report indicated that a small majority of those that responded to the public consultation did not want any
changes to the hours of control of the existing Y zone controlled parking zone (CPZ) operating Monday to Saturday
10-11am and 3-4pm and the recommendation in the report was for no change.

However, following further discussions between ward councillors, the Chair of TARSAP and the Portfolio Holder it was
agreed to recognise the needs of the petitioners and proceed to statutory consultation on the proposal to remove
the current afternoon restriction which operates between 3-4pm. Therefore the proposal is for a morning parking
restriction which operates Monday to Saturday 10-11am in the roads surrounding the church.

The effect of this is to split the existing Y zone CPZ into two separate zones with different operating times which will
require different zone identifications and different permits. The Westfield Park area (Westfield Park, Oakdene Close,
Thorndyke Court, Cherry Croft Gardens, ElIm Hatch and St Cuthberts Gardens) would therefore become a separate
CPZ with a different identification letter and only be operational for one hour during the morning period whilst the
remaining part of the Y zone CPZ would retain the same identification letter and operational hours as existing.

Important information
All residents need to be aware of the possible consequences of splitting the existing zone into two smaller zones.

If the change goes ahead it will mean that any existing Hatch End Y zone CPZ permit holders living in Dove Park,
Braeside Close and The Avenue will not be able to park in the Westfield Park area when it becomes a separate CPZ
zone.

It also means that any resident living in Westfield Park, Oakdene Close, Thorndyke Court, Cherry Croft Gardens, Elm

Hatch and St Cuthberts Gardens will be issued with different permits for the Westfield Park area but will not be eligible

to park in the reduced size Hatch End Y zone CPZ during the controlled times.

It should be noted that the proposed new zone in the Westfield Park area may be more vulnerable to some additional
ng stay parking of vehicles in the afternoons due to the removal of the afternoon parking controls.

Other minor changes

A slight alteration was requested by the petitioners to the existing permit parking bay adjacent to the western

wall of the church in Westfield Park which will be reduced in size and replaced with a single yellow line. This was
recommended in the report to the panel meeting in February 2016. This will facilitate wedding or funeral vehicles at
the church more easily. Guests will still be required to find alternative parking in the surrounding roads or local car
parks.

In addition a proposed extension of the double yellow lines on the north side of Cedar Drive from The Avenue for a
short distance is proposed to facilitate better access to loading/unloading for properties in this area and to provide
more space for vehicle manoeuvres at the junction which will improve safety.

What happens next?

This is the Legal Notification stage, which is a legal requirement that the council needs to undertake prior to making
a Traffic Management Order and implementing the revised proposals. The plans have been developed taking into
account, the comments and discussions that took place regarding the public consultation results that we received
during the previous consultation stage and the instruction from the Portfolio Holder for Environment, Crime and
Community Safety.

APPENDIX A Hatch End Area Parking Review

This is your opportunity to review the plans in private and make any final comments that you have about the revised
proposal. It will not be possible to add to or increase the extent of the restrictions. However, minor changes that
reduce the scale of the proposals where they do not impact on safety for the wider community may still be possible
subject to further consultation. Alternatively the changes could be abandoned.

We will advertise the Traffic Management Order by placing notices on street lamp columns and in a local paper on
or about 4th August 2016 which will also explain where the plans can be seen. This would give anyone a chance to
comment or place a formal objection if they wish to do so in writing by the deadline of 24th August 2016.

A copy of the Notice of the Proposals and Plans can also be viewed from 4th August 2016 on the council website at:
www.harrow.gov.uk/trafficorders.

If there is a significant number of objections to what is proposed which demonstrates a consensus around an
alternative suggestion or changes, then, if the objections are upheld it may be necessary to give all the affected
properties in any such area the opportunity to comment on these changes. This will result in a delay in the scheme
being implemented in these areas until there is a clear indication that the affected properties agree to the alterations.

The results and any formal objections will be presented to Portfolio Holder for consideration before proceeding to
implementation on the agreed measures. Once approval to proceed has been obtained from the Portfolio Holder the
scheme will be given to our contractors to implement and all residents will be informed of the outcome.

Under the legislation which controls the statutory consultation process anyone can make a comment or formal
statutory objection to the proposals. However the statutory objection needs to be made in writing (email is
acceptable) including the word object or objection (to distinguish it clearly from comments) and the reason or the
basis of the objection and how you would be materially affected. You also need to provide your name and address.
The law sets out a strict 3 week timetable for receiving formal objections — please see the deadline below.

Please return your comments by 24th August 2016.
Written objections to the scheme proposals should be sent to:

Service Manager -Traffic, Highway and Asset Management
Harrow Council

PO Box 39

Civic Centre

Harrow

HA1 2XA

or by email to: transportation@harrow.gov.uk

Quoting ref DP 2016-13 and making sure it is received by 24th August 2016.

If you have any further questions, or wish to comment, please contact the project engineer:

Bruce Bolton or write to
Tel: 01372 756016
Email: transportation@harrow.gov.uk

Service Manager

Traffic, Highway and Asset Management
Harrow Council

PO Box 39

Civic Centre

Harrow

HA1 2XA

2



ﬂv,f//mmwo“\ Existing CPZ| "
\ 7 (WC)
@&%« : Mon - Sat
é Y ¢'#‘. VN 10am - 11am
Existing CPZ (V) e
Mon - Sat / EXTEND EXISTING
10am - 11am DOUBLE YELLOW

A/ ‘
#

A\%\/ ,@f,

7

NS
i
]

o

{EXISITNG BAY TO
/|| BE cur Back

St

- \’\\\\ N - _ — |
P S

SN \ ///\ \\x
- 'O\ N\ - o
= // AN N Proposed new CPZ, Men R.//MM/ZO

T e
Existing CPZ

on to Sat 10am - 11am and 3pm - 4pm

super

N\ /// . ) !
Aé s posed existing zone m@& m_\@ww low line to be extended.
e ———— Mon - Sat s X///, N W7 T
EXTEND EXISTIN ?m/a double <m__o$x__@mﬂ ime restriction
SINGLE YELLOW LINE / 10am - jm_.:w. N &mm«\
T Y y 3pm-4pm $

\ / g0 |

sm 2 e Existing CPZ nto Sa A 3om - dpm
| W\N\«\\\\\\\‘W\\\\ ) ) N = “ o
N K

=

: - - \ A :n...nr End drawing 20/06/16 | NS ol Scale Drawn o Checked
B Addition of WC Zone to drawing 29/06/16 | NS _I_>._|O_I_ mZU >mm> NTS 5ot
) NS
arron ) PARKING REVIEW L
LONDON Title T/DWG/001041

ey Do vt e e of Oopewcs vy Autocad file

M_“Iﬂ ﬁﬁ:“hﬂign mrn_umvwm”zwﬂﬂwmmwmu_ %)oﬂﬁam) _lmmw>_l Zo._-_T_O\P._-_OZ U_I>Z Q/E.xnw/g_ﬁ Hatch End CPZ Y ?E.i _!t-v.!l
m.“_.ﬂoi i S of o Fax: 020 8420 9611 > P T ET \Cansultton\fatch End Plan (Oveniew 2)DHG




This page is intentionally left blank

32



‘pPepuUSsWLLIOdal JoU SInoy Ul
uoloNpal 9|esajoyA) "UoIe]s Ylim pajeloosse Bunpied
aJow joelpe 0} AjayI| SI } ‘Uooulaye ul uonoLysal
INoyuMm uolels pug yoleH Jeau eale Ajuo ayj Buieg
‘Buiyied puly 03 siapjoy Hwiad 1oy JNoIp SIow ) ayew
(M pue Buiyled joeije [Im uoljolsal Buljiem uooulaye
JO 9oUasqe ay} aAal|aq se s}0alqo juapisay ‘€

Juasaud sanssi Bunyued ssalppe

0} pajog|as spouiad se ajes Aunoy ue se paplebal aq
Jou pnoys Aay] "yeam Jad sinoygg| 0} SINoyg wo.y
salleA yoiym pouad |euoljelado ay} Jo aAioadsal
awes ayj ale pue siseq apim-ybnoiog e uo jauiqen
Aq 198 ale syw.ad J0YISIA JUspISal pue Juspisay g

‘apise jos aq uoNnoalqo siy}

Jey} papuswwodal S| }| ‘sinoy auoz Buunp uonelado
ul g AJUO pjnom uonoLIISal aull MOj|aA ay | Yied
PIBIIISOAN UI Uulewal aoeds Bupjied Hwiad "s9|oIyaA
|eiauny pue Buippam ajeyjioe} 0} suoljejuasaidal
ssalppe 0} |aued AlosInpy Alajes peoy

9 olel] Aq peaibe sem saoeds Buppied jo uoionpal
SIY] "SZdD uiyum siapjoy uwad oy bunyied sjgejiene
asiWIxXew 0} sali} |Iounod ay} ISIYAA "Y24nyo ay}
apisino Aeq ywlad Jo uoionpal ay} 0} uoijoalqo aj0g |

'sinoy Zd9D JO uoionpal 0} pue yied plauisspn
ul yjbus| Aeq paonpal o0} bunoalgo (sinoy jo uoionpal
pasodoud 1o} Bale UIyIm) 8so|D auspyeQ Jo Juspisay

0] aAey 0} diyspJey yonuw 00} jJou si Ajauns }I 8s|@ auohlans 104
‘RemAue yied 0] a|ge aq pinoys saliAloe Buipuaye yoinyo ay}
JO siaqwiaw pajqesip AjJap|e jey) sueaw yoiym ‘(paapisuod
aq 0} wbno Ajgego.d siy} Jou I pue) sAeq sjuspisal ay} asn

0] pamojje ale siapjoy Jwliad Buyied pajgesip jey} sawnsse

| ‘Buippam |euoised20 ue 1o} sysanb 1o} Buied ajepowwiodoe
0} }snl Jeak ay} 3noybnouy} sinoqybisu ay} usping

0] 9|geuosealun SWaas )i ‘JedIA 8y} JO Yjeap ajeunuoiun ay} o}
pajejal aq ybiw siy} 3jIYAA “suooulaye Aepinjeg pue Aepxaam
uo Ayanoe yum Buiwwiig Ajpley si died pIaiisapn uo yainyo
ay} A|pes jey} aAIasqo | JUspIsal [BJ0] B SE alowsyund ‘b

"aJay} Buyied puly 03 Jdwaye 0y s|ge aq Jabuo)

OU P|NOM | pUE SUOI}OLI}SS] UOOUJBYE SABY PINOM SBUOZ J8Y}0
3y} Jey} Joey ay) Aq pajequaoexa aq pjnom pue siybiu Aepl4
uo Ajjeioadsa ased ay} Apealje si sIy] ‘||e Je a|ge|ieAe si jods
Buiyied ou aiaym oleuads e aoey 0} A|9yI| 89 |[IM UOIlIppe U] "€

pue Bulayo paosnpal yonw
e uo jiwuad Jiay} Joy Asuow jo Junowe swes ay} Aed pjnom
SjuapIsal ey} Ueaw ||IM UOIOLI}SaI UOOUIS)e By} 9A0WSaI 0] °Z

pue
(panowal Bulaq auoz ay} ul @oeds [euoiippe Ue Yjim) jley uey)
alow Aq eale yied p|aiIsapN 8y} Ul siasn Jwlad Jo) s|gejiene
sAeq ,sjuapisal Jo Jaquinu a8y} adnpas pjnom jesodoud ay] |

'€1-910¢ dA 2 Ym juswinoop 8y} Ul pauljno se 749 auoz
A @Y} 0} sabueyo pasodoud ay} 0} 108lqo AjBuodis 03 81| pjnom |

800v1

8s0|D auspyeQ

asuodsal Ja210

Juswiwo/uonoslqo

481 00
/SSIpPY JO peoy

8 XIdN3ddV

33



"'suoseas Buimoj|o} ay} 4o} sjesodoud unok 0} 10alqo AjBuoJis

‘sinoy | ‘PaUINLIBAC USaq sey wd p-¢ pue we | -0} Bunyed ou ZZ0v1
Zd9 j0 uoionpai o} bunoafgo (sinoy jo uononpal | -g: onb snjejs ayj pejsenbai UONEYNSUOD JSII) 8Y) 0} papuodsal
pasodold 1o} eale ulylm) yojeH wi3 Jo Juspisay 1ey sjyusapisal jo Ajuolew ay} jeyy Addeyun Aian we | yoleH w3
‘pPapuUaWIWIODS
Jou s1 abueyod ajessjoym yong ‘auoz mau e Jo wdp} - wdoL  Aepinjes
uoleald alinbal |ji3s pjnom ) sAepyaam uo uoljoajold wdy- wdg pue wdy | - wdgl Aeplig o3 Aepuoy
Jayaq sJapjoy Jiwlad pioye pjnom sy} IS|IYAA "yaInyo
Jo} Aepinjeg se Asng se jou ale suooulaye Aepyaam :SMOJ|0} SB 8¢ P|N0D SUOIJOLISal 8y} ey} ‘asiwoidwod
1ey} Jaljaq JIsy} Uo paseq UoIjoL}sal uooulaye e se ‘asodoud pjnom | ‘sBuiuans Aepyaam Jo ‘uooulaye
Kepinyeg Buinowsal ysnl ul asiwoidwod sysabbng ‘¢ Aepinjes e Jayjia uo ade|d aye} suoijouny yainyo jsow sy
‘pPepUBWIWIODAI JOU SI SINOY Ul UoljoNpal 3|eSajOYAA "uoIouUN4 yainyo e 0} sespuajie ay) Joj Bupjied ssa| uans
"uoljels yum pajeroosse Buppied aiow joedpe o) | Buines| ‘aoe|d ul aiam suoljoL}Sal 8y} a10jaq sem Ji se ‘A|qissod
K1@¥1] SI'} ‘UoouJa}je Ul UOIOLIISal JNOYNIM UoIje}s pug ‘Buiyied snolabuep pue papMOIIIBA0 JO J08)0 By} aAey
yoleH Jeau eale Ajuo ayj buleg ‘siasn yainys 0} UaAd [IIM SIYL “SHSIA Buiuaas/uooulaye Jiay} 104 PIOJEAA JO ‘UMO)
aoeds ssa| anes| Aew siasn |leJ uooulaye anbie Aay | 0} Jayjie 06 0} Juem oym ||e 0} 3|gejieAe } Buiyew ‘we| | wouy
"ZdD @y} 0} Joud uonenyis 0} JejiLis ajes SSa| peod ay} Buyied pajolisalun 0} uado aq [|IM Yied PIRIISSAA ‘UOIOLISa
Bunyew Bunppied j1oedpe [jIm uoioLysal Buiiem uoousaye Buped wdy 0} wdg Aepinyes - Aepuoly 8y} aAowal nok §| g
JO @ouasqe ay} anal|aq se s}0alqo Juspisay g
"uol}e}Nsuod
"dVYSYVY.L 01 Hodal ul onb snjejs 404 uoljepuswiwodsl olgnd ayj Jo sespuodsal ay} wouj ‘,abueyd ou,, 1o}
snoinald 0y Alesyuod [esodoud saAlesqo Juapisay | sem Jodal sy} ul uoilepuswiwodal ay} se Ajernadss ‘|lesodoid
M3U 3y} 0} 193[qo Isnwi | |98} | ‘uoijewuoul 8y} peas buiney - | rAN0 )

"sinoy
ZdD 10 uononpal 0} Buioslqo (sinoy jo uoionpal
pasodold 1o} eale UIylIMm) yied pIaLISapN JO Juapisay

LETEN
Buppied pu3 yoyeH ayj 0} punoubxoeq Juadsal ayy Joy nok yuey

Jied PISIHSIMN
‘Uno) yooiqwesg

‘abieyod jo sy

Aeq nwad Aue ul yied ued siapjoy abpeq an|q 1ey)
anIasqo Aay] ‘pajoaye AjasiaApe ag p|nom SIapisuod
Juspisal SIy} SjuspISal Jo Jaquinu 0} uosiedwod

ul asiwalid yoinyo jo abesn uo sjuswwo)

ille }e uoneynsuoo
e aney Aym asimusayjQ "UOI}B}NSUO pIes JO s} Nsal ay}
MOJ|0} Ajlenjoe 0} [19unod 8y} abin alojeiay} pue uole}NsSuUod
ay} 0] Buipuodsal usym anoge ayj pauijino Apealje pey |

"yied Jed a1gnd ayj ul yed

34



In22%0 ||i3s saop wajqold Bunyied e jey) uonealasqo

ay} aew op Aay] ‘ulewsal pjnom saul| mojjeA a|gnop
pue sianwwod Jiel Aq Bunjied Aep [je uaaaid [[Im
uonoLsal Bululow ayy se paosnpojul Buiagq z4D 8y} 0}
Joud uonenyis ayj 0} uinjad Jou [|IM UOI}OLIISaI Uoouia)e
ay} Buinowal }snf "paAowWal SI UOIJOLI)SaI uooulaye
3y} J uinjal |Im aoualladxa 0} pasn Aay} swajqo.d
Bunyied swes ay) Jes} Aay) se s}0alqo uspisay ‘g

"uooulaye pue Buiuiow yjoq

Ul suoloLlsal Jualinod ay) Aq paAsiyoe usaq sey Yolym
speo. Jiay) ul swajqoid Buyied ay) ssalppe 0} ZdD

e 9A8IYoe 0} sieak awos 00} )l SBAISSqO JuspIsay |

"sinoy
ZdD Jo uononpal 0} buioslqo (sinoy jo uoionpal
pasodold 1o} eale UIylIM) yied pIaLISapN JO Juapisay

we| | ay} Jaye alay} payted aq pjnom Aay} uoiouysal

SIY} 9ABY JOU pIp dM JI pue suled} ay} Buisn wouy pede
‘sjueine}sal pue gnd |BO0| 8y} 0} JBUIOD 3y} punoJte ob 0} JapJo
ul peod Jno ul Bupjied (SUBA) SSIOIYSA |BIDJSWIWOD JO PaysIuly

S UOIOLI}SaI BY} 90UO0 WOJ} JayNs os|e ap\ ‘abieyd yied Jed
uolje}s e si alay} se sisnwwod Ag uoljels Agleau ay} oy pasn
s1 I se Aep ||e peol Jno ul payled S9|2IYaA WO} palayns am se
Aisnoinaid sem )1 moy 0} doeq ob 0} Juem Jou op Ajuienad app 2

pue sieah jo Jaquinu
e 10} ZdD 9y} aAey 0} paubiedwed peod Jno ul sjuspisay ‘|

‘abueyd siy} 03 19alqo AjBuosys | pue wdy
- ¢ Jo sBuiwiy uoousaye ay} buinowsa. jo sabueys ayy 0} Jajal |

"aNUIUOD 0} SIY} &I PINOM | pue wdy - ¢ '3 We | |-
01 usamjaq 4o} Aepinyeg — Aepuoyy 10} suoioLysal Buiyied yym
1931}S N0 Ul ZdD aAeYy am Ajjuasald pue yied PIaLISapA Ul dA| |

ocovi

Aled PISIASSMN
‘UNoY yooiques

‘'sabueyo pasodoud Jayjo yum ssaiby ‘¢

‘MmalA Auolew asoubi

0} 8S00YD U3y} |1I9UN09 JI Sinoy Jnoge sjuapisal bupyse
uo juiod ay} uonsanb Aay] ‘onb snjejs Joj Buidesy

Jo} AjJuadal aJow pue sinoy uooulaye pue Buiuiow
yjoq ypm 749 e buionpoujul sasuodsal uoljeynsuod
snoinald 0y Alesyuod [esodoud senlasqo juspisay ‘g

"PAPUSWILLIOSI JOU SINOY Ul UOI}onNpal 3|BS3|0YAA
"uone}s yum pajeloosse Buiyied aiow joeuje o}

A9y S1' 31 ‘UoOUIa}E UI UOIJOLI}SaI JNOYYIM UOIle)S pug
yojeH Jeau eale Ajuo ay} Buieg ‘sinoy juaiind Bunuem
papuodsal Ajiolew Ag oym sjuspisal JO JUswWLISp

ayj o} buyied joeape |Im uoijoulsal buljiem uooussye
JO @ouasqe ay} aAalaq se s10alqo Juspisay |

"0}8 S3[o1IyaA Buippam
ajeyijioey} 0y sheq g Aq Buppied sjuspisal ay) Jo azis ay} Buionpal
Ssabueyd Jouiw Jayjo, Japun jesodoid Jnok yum saibe | ¢

jXe} |1Iounod JNo Jo

a)sem e Jeyp ¢a0e|d Isdiy 8y} Ul Uole)nsuod e o juiod ayj sem
JEYM "JSPIOH Ol|0jU0d 8y} pue dySHYVL JO JIeyd ‘sio||lounod
pJem Ag paulni-1SA0 8210Yd 21}eIo0wWwap JnNo aAey o} Ajuo
‘SuOIjol}Sal uooulaye pue Buiuiow yjoq Buijelodiodul ‘swayds
Buied siy} 0} dn paubis yled p|aiisapn Uo sjuspisal ayl ‘g

‘Aep ajoym ayj 4o} Buluiow ayj ul usng|d jsed aynuiw suo

woJj ‘saijiuswe pue podsued) 0} 8s0j0 0S ‘9aJ} 40} Yled o0y aoe|d
Aluo ay} aq |Im I se Ajjeloads "0je siaylom Jiys ‘siaddoys
wouJ} Bupjied jeuoljippe 03 a|geJaulnA aq |Im Aempeolg puj
UyojeH pue uolels ulel| ayj o} Ajwixold sled plaIsapn ‘|

35



‘pPapUBWIWIODA] JOU SI SINOY Ul UoljoNpal 8|eSajoYAA
"uoljels yum pajeroosse bunpied alow joedpe

0} A|9)1] S1 JI ‘UOOUIaYE Ul UOIJOLI}SA INOYYIM UOlje}S
pu3 yoleH Jeau eale Ajuo ay} Buleg ‘aoeds ss9)
anes| Aew 192413 YybiH 8y} 0} sio}isIA uoousaye anbie
Aoyl ‘ZdD @y} 01 Joud uolnenyis 0} Je|iWis ajes Ssa|
peou ayi Bunjew Buiyied 10eine [[Im uonoLlsal Buiiem
uooulale Jo oUaSge aY) aA3I|aq Sk $}03(qo Jusapisay

‘sinoy
Zd9D Jo uononpal 0} Bunoslqo (sinoy jo uononpal
pasodoud 1o} eale UIYIM) died PIoIISOAN JO Juspisay

"Sjuspisal Jo peajsul
alay yJed 0} 9|ge aJe sjuspisal-uou Jey} aw o} a|gejdasoe jou
sl]] awoy Aw apisino yied 0] a|qe aq 0} sIoYSIA Aw 10adxa |
uspisal e sy ‘saoeds Bunjied ayj e dn asn |im 19a43s ybiy ayy
Buisn ajdoad ueaw |Im suoljol}Sal Uooulaye ay} Aeme Bue |

"SuoIjol}sal
Buiyied alino ay} 0} sabueyd pasodold ayj 03 303[qo |

Geovl

HEed PISISSAN
‘UNoJ Yooiquies

‘pPapUAWIWIODA JOU SINOY Ul Uolonpal
9|ESS|OYAN ‘SJUSpISaI SE ||oM SB SSad0. 9|0IYaA
Aousblawa pue uoIi}o9||0d asnyal Joaye Ajjenusiod
pIN09 Sy "yipim Aemaberied molleu o} anp swajgoud
$S9208 IB|IWIS 9SNED p|NOM Saul| MO||9A awli} sauoz
pue sAeq uwuad ul Bunjied se s}oalqo juspisay ¥

"sasiwaid yoinys Buisn

sgn|o Se yons siojisiA oipoliad Jejnbal 1oy sjgejiene

jou s uoljesuadsip e yong ‘uonesado ul ale Aay)

Jl uana sAeq ywliad asn 0} seapus)e 4o} uoljesuadsip
e Jo} Aldde ued yainyo ay} sbuippap) pue sjelaun ayl|
SIUSAS [BUOISEO20 J0} a2i1joeld u| “Aidde jou op sauj|
MO||9A 3|gnop uey} Jayjo suoljoLlsal usym shkepung
uo AJAIJOB YydJNyd ulew jey} S9AISSqO Juapisay ‘€

‘PapUBWILLIODaI JOU SINoY Ul
uolonpal ajess|oypn “widyy 0} pasoddo se we| | wouy
uels ued Bupjied pajolisalun yons JI 8siom aq o} Aoy
Alybly s1 ) pue saysiuly uolollsal wdy-¢ ay} Jaye

‘peOJ SIY} Ul &A1 Jey)} sunoqyblau pue sjuapisal Jo 10| B Jo
Jjeyaq uo yeads | pue Aisnouas Alan uoioalgo Aw axye} ases|d

‘uiebe aouo oyLIoY aq pjnom Aep ay} Jo }sow Joj a1ay) paxyJed
s9)01yaA Buiney pejs 0} pue sued ul modleu AISA sI peol ay] {7

‘Repli4

-Aepuo 3oam ajoym ay} Joy Jou Ajuieuad ng ‘Aepinies ay)

uo Ajuo aq pjnom siy} Ing ‘payl] 89 PINO2 wdf-¢ Jo uoioLsal
3y} }shw spaau Ji os ‘Aepinjeg e uo Buippam |euoiseddo A1an
ay} aJe atay] "Aidde jou op suonoulsal sy} uaym Aepung e

uo Ajulew aJe asay} Inqg ‘s1906y2Inyd 3y} INoge puelsispun | ¢

‘Aep ||e 18y} ulewal pue paysiuly pey UoloL}sal

36



SJUSAD [BUOISEID0 10} 821joeld u| “Aidde jou op sauj|
MO||2A 3|gnop uey} Jaylo suoioLlsal uaym sAepung
uo AJAIJOB YydINyd ulew jey} S9AISSJO JuapIsay g

"PAAOWAI S| UOIJOLI}SaI UooUIBYe By}

JI uinjal [Im soualladxa 0} pash Aay) swajqoud Bued
awes ay} Jea} Aay) ‘uooulaye pue Buluiow yjoq

ul suoljoLIsal Jualind ay} Aq panalyoe usaq sey ydiym
speo. Jiay} ul swajqold Buned ay) ssalppe 0} ZdD

B 9As1Yoe 0} SIeak awos 300} JI SSAISSO JuspIsay '|

‘sinoy
Zd9D J0 uononpal 0} bunoslqo (sinoy jo uononpal

pue maj} A1an ale Aay} Ing ‘uooulsyje Aepinjes e uo sbuippam
awos aney Aay] ‘pasinbai ale suoljollsal ay} Jo suou

uaym Aepung e uo yainyog ay} UsIA Ajjsow siaobyosinyo ay)
ng ‘sabueyo asay) sjuem yainyo ay} puelsiapun | ybnoyly 'z

‘anuiuoo

0] ¥ ysim pue wajqoid ay} yum padjay Ajjeas siy} se uoneiado
OJUl 8Wed 74D 9y} Usym paj|ly} sem | MJed Jeds uoljels ay}

}e paonpoujul sem abieyd e uaym Ajeroadsa sapis Yjoq uo peod
MOJLIEeU INo Ul payled sajoiyan jo sadA} je Jo Bunied jueisuod
woJ} Buliayns atam sinoqybilau Aw pue | ul paAow }suiy

| USYM pue sieak ( | JOA0 10} Yied PISISOAA Ul panll aney | |

3e(0) 4%

Hed PISIHSIM

pasodold 10} eale UIylIM) died PISLISOAN JO Juapisay ‘'sabueyo Aue 0} j0alqo Ajbuolis | ‘UNo9 Moolqweg
"sasiwaid yainys Buisn sgnjo se yons sIo}ISIA
olpouad Jejnbal 10} d|ge|ieAe jou si uoljesuadsip
e yong -uoijesado ul aie Aay} jI uans sheq
Hwiad ash 0} saapusalie Joj uonesuadsip e Joj Ajdde
ued yainyo ayj sbuippapn pue sjesaun4 ayi| Sjusns
[euOISED20 J0} 99130e4d U| "S|elauny pue sBuippam may
AJan sey Ajlenjoe younyo jey} sanlasqo jJuapisay ‘'z | ‘wajqold siy} punod 36 1 jey) speod uiew ui sbuipjing snoibijal
Auew aie alay] ‘punoJie YIo0m 0} JNdIHpP 00} g },Ued uoljoL}sal
‘PSAOWISI SI UOROLESS) UooUIBlE 8y} SINOY OM} U} 8INS e aM puUE S|elauny pue sBuippam
J uinjal |jim dousuadxe o} pasn Asuy swajqoud Bunpiied M3} AJoA SEY UoINyd 3y} JESIO SI JI SUOIJEAISSO JNO WO 7
awes ay} Jea} Aay) ‘uooulaye pue Buluiow yjoq
Ul suoljoLIsal Jualind ay} Aq panalyoe usaq sey ydiym "9ALIP JNO J0O Jno Buipab yum swajqold aney osje ||im
speouJ J1ay} ul swajqold Buiied ayy ssaippe 0} ZdD | oM ‘Ised ay} ul se Jnoiyip AJaA sYoNJ} aJly pue saduengquie 1oy
B 9As1Yoe 0} SIeak SWos 300} Jl SSAISSCO JuspISay | | SS820e Bunjew pus)aam sjoym ay} }8aJis sy} ul payJed a4 ||IM
sleD ‘sieak om} 3oeq sn Ind |Im sawil} 8y} O} uoljelaye ayl ‘|
Sinoy L¥0vL

ZdD J0 uoinonpal 0} buioslqo (sinoy jo uoionpal
pasodoud Joj eale ulyym) yied plauisapn 4o Juspisay

‘abueyo sIy} 0} 103rd0 ATONOYLS
am led p|aifisapn 1o} sjesodoud mau ay) Buipiebay

Hed PISIASSM

37



ay} Aq pajsenbal sabueyd ay} Joj yoddns Jo |aA3] By}
ysljgelsa 0} auoz Bupjied pajjosuod pug yoleH ayi jo
MBaIA3I B pauolloues (dYSYYVYL) |sued Alosianpy Alejes
peoy pue oijel] ay| zdo ay) jo uoieuswa|dwil

ay} Aq pejoaye Auiejun asem siauolystied sy

Jey} pue uolje}nsuod euiblio ayy ul pajyuasaidal Ajny
JOU Sem Uyoinyo ay} 1eys 8} siauoiad ay) se yainyo
ayj Buipunolins speoJ ay} Wo.lj UoljoLI}Sal UoouId}e
ay} jJo |eaowal ayy bunsanbaui yoinyo s wiasuy

1S wouy uoiijed e paAladal [IoUN0Y a8y} BUOZ 3y} JO
uononpoJjul 8y} Buimojio4 ‘410z ul wdp-¢ pue wej |
-0} Aepinjeg o} Aepuoly sajesado pue uonels pug
yoleH Buipunolins speo. Ul padnpoJjul Sem A auoz

— (ZdD) suoz Bunyied pa||0Juod puz yoyeH 8yl ‘€ — |

"sinoy
ZdD J0 uononpal 0} buioslqo (sinoy jo uoionpal
pasodoud 10} eale uiylm) N0 axApuloy Jo Juspisay

‘PAJUBM SJUSPISS] JeYM UO UOoIjewIolul
a3yl yum noA papinoid obe sieah om] isnl paysijgelss

SEBM 9UOZ SIY} USYM UoIije}nsuod snoinaid ayy Ajaing ¢ uoisioap
sIY} yoeal 03 1@6pnq |1ouno) pajiwi Apealje ay} wolj Asuow
yonw os }s09 pue Buo| os uaye) }I sey Aym aw |18} NoA pino) ‘g

‘Juswnoop JnoA ul pajsabbns se sadlAIeg Yyoinyo

J0} uey} Jayjel ssauisng yainyd e Jo Jyauaq sy} Joj Ajjenioe si

} Jey} pue - auoz ay} Ul aAl| Jou op woym jo Auuolew ay} dnoib
€ JO JIJduaq 8y} Jo} eale siy} ul siaked Xxe} [1I0unod pue sjuapIsal
ay} Jsuiebe Alojeuiwiosip pue isnfun ‘lieyun si abueyod siy}

1By} |98} o “abueyod pauueld ayj jsuiebe Bulaq os|e sjuspisal
wouJ} saldau jo Ayiolew ayy aydssp ybnoayy paysnd Buiaq

mou s abueyo siyj Jey} pakewsip pue payooys aje apA ‘L

"awiayos Bunjied Bunsixs ay} 0}

abueyd Aue juem jou pip am jey} pajedipul pue abueyd pauue|d
SIY} UO uoIe}NSUO0D 3y} 0} palldal s\A ‘pu3 ydleH Joj MaIAal
Buiyied ay) isuiebe uonoalgqo |ewsoy e ayew 0} Buljlum ale sapp

(1013 4%

HNnoH ayApuloy |

‘pPOpPUSWILWLIODA JOU SI SINoy Ul
uononNpal 8|esajoyA) "UoIels Yim pajeloosse Bunyied
aJow joeipe 0} AjayI| SI } ‘Uooulaye Ul uonoLsal
INoyuMm uolels pug yoleH Jeau eale Ajuo ayj buieg
‘ooeds ssa| aneg| Aew pue 198415 YBiH 8y} 0} SI0YISIA
uooula}e Joelje |[IM uoioulsal Buiiem uooulsye

JO @ouasqe ay} aAal|eq se s)03lqo jJuapisay ‘¢

"sasiwaid yoinys Buisn

sgn|o Se yons sio}isiA oipoliad Jejnbal 1oy sjgejiene

Jou sI uonesuadsip e yong ‘uoljesado ul ase Aay}

Jl uana sAeq ywliad asn 0} seapusje 4o} uoljesuadsip
e Jo} Aldde ued yainyo ay} sbuippsp pue sjelaun ay|

‘sjueine}sal

pue ‘gnd [e20| ‘sdoys ‘uolje)s ayj asn ued Aayj os Aep

3y} 4O 1sa1 8y} Joj alay} paxJed aq |Im Aay L “wej | Jaye Buped
S3I0IYDA JO SLIOS ||B aA.Y ||IM am sabueyd asay} aney am §| ‘€

‘wdy-¢ pue wey-Ql st )i se ys| 8q

0} Ajuieuad Aepli4 -Aepuoly Ya2am ayi Buunp pue ‘euo Buluiow
3y} jJou Jnq ‘Aepinjes e uo uoousaye ay} isnl 1oy payl| 89 p|Nod
Bupjied pajouisal Jo J0|S uoouale ay} asoddns | 'yainyd ay)
apIsino yJed o0} s}sanb ayj 404 saU0D JNo Ind Ajjensn yoinyd ay}

38



1e siaquinu Jabuassed Buipiebal uonewloyu| L — G

‘Jaquiaydag Aq pajs|dwod aq 0} papasu uoljeynNsuod
Kiojnjeys ayy ‘Jeak [eioueuly Jualind ay} UIyIm
pajuawajdwi aq p|no9 siaplo dyjel} ay} o} sebueyo
Aue ey ainsus 03 Japlo ul ing ‘pouad Aepijoy
Jawwins ay} yum papiouiod powuad siy} Jey} ajeunpojun
s1}] 109lqo 0y shep|z jo pouad e aney sjdoad

pue pasiuaApe si Japlo oijel) ayy Agasaym ‘(102
suonenbay (pue|buz) (ainpasold) siepO dlyel |
Saiuoyiny [e007 ay]) uone|sibal Ag umop 38s si

Jey) ssao04d e jo ped s| uoljeynsuod Aiojniels syl v

"9ALI(q Jepa) JO apIs YHou 8y} uo aul| mojjak

a|gnop uonoun( sy} Jo uoisualxa ay} (9) pue aull mojjek
9|buis awiy suoz Aq juswadse|dal s} pue eaT uspul
ausoddo yied pIaISaAN Jo apis isea ay) uo Aeq nwiad
e Buiuapoys (q) pspn|oul 0} os|e uole}nsuod Alojnjels
sIy| ‘wdp-¢ usamiaq Aepinjeg o) Aepuoly seielado
YoIYM UOIJO1I}SSI UOOUIBYE JUaLIND 3y} SAOWSI

0} |esodoud ay} uo uoljeynsuod Aionjels o} paadoid
pue siauoiyiad ayj Jo spasu sy} asiubooal 0} Jap|oH
01|0JI0d 3y} pue |aued 8y} Jo Jiey)d ay} ‘sio||iounod
pJem usamjaq suoissnosip Buimojjoy paaibe

SeM }| ‘suoissnosip Jayuny Buipuad uoisiosp e Jayep
0} panjosal dySyVYL ‘wdy-¢ pue we| -0} Aepinjes o}
Kepuoyy Buneitado (z4D) auoz Bunppied pajjoiuod sauoz
A Bunsixa ay} Jo |043u09 Jo sinoy ay} 0} sabueys Aue
JUBM ]JOU pPIp BaJe Yied P|aLISaAA SY} WOl UOoIe}NSuod
a11gnd sy} 01 papuodsal 1eyy ssoyy Jo Auiolew

llews e aAIsnjouooul Ajjelauab aiam uoljeynsuod

3y} Jo synsal ay} Is|iym jey} pajeoipul yodai 8yl 910z
Aeniga4 dySyV.L 0} pauodal aiam Jno palLed
uoleynsuod 21ignd ayj jo synsal 8y ‘slauoiied

JO Jaquinu ay} paiiuapl noA aneH ¢,yainyd ay} asn ajdoad |eo0)
Auew moy Ayjuapl 0} snsuad yainyd e o) payse NoA aneH ‘0|

"auoz Bunyied sy} ul Jou si abeledin sy} USAT ‘6

"eaJe ay} ul Buppied pasealoul ayy Agq pajoaye aq jou |[Im

0s pue abueyd o} uejd noA sauoz ayj ul aA1| Jou op siauolysiied
yoJnyd ay} jo alow sdeysad pue 9%Ge JaAQ "Yd4nyo

ay} djay 03 s1 abueyd ay} Jey} wiejd noA Jusawnoop JNoA uj ‘g

‘Juanaid 0} paysi|gelsa sem auoz

SIy} Jeym Aj3oexa pue podsuely olignd jo ash ayj Buisealoul
uo Ao1jod Juswulanog) / |1IDUNoY suiebe sI ydiym - peod Jno ul
Buiied pue Buialp asealoul 0y Bulob si suoz ay) buibueys -/

"Ol3Je.} JOO} Ul 8sealoul
Jueolubis B 89S UBD aM Se apeu SI UOISIoap e 8104aq palyijuspl
aq 0} spaau siy} A|aing ¢ sieak maj }se| ay} JOAO Uolje)s

ay) Buisn sjdoad jo Jagwinu 8y} Ul 8SE8IOUI UB USaq Sey alay)
Jayjeym uoijeis pug yojeH yum pajebiisanul nok aneH “uoiels
ay} Buisn alam oym pue auoz ay} ui aAl| Jou op oym ajdoad
woJj a1am Aep ayy Burinp eale ay} ul payled sied sy} o ISO|A ‘9

‘paonpoUjul SeM 8uU0z Y} a10jaq MJed
Jed uolje}s e A|aAijoaye Sem ]| "uoljels uiel} sy} 0} Speod }saso|o
ay} Jo dn apew si abueyd o0} sue(d [1I0UNOD By} BalE BY] ‘G

ey st siyy yuiyy noh oq ¢pouad Aepijoy

Jawwins yead ay} Bulinp syaam aaiy} uiyum Ajdal syuapisal
}snw Aym ‘sBuipuly ypm uoljeynsuod ayj o} puodsal 0}
[IDUNOJ BY} JO} SYUOW USASS UsXE} SeY Jl Usym ‘uollippe u| ‘f

‘'sossed
JOYISIA pue sywliad ‘ebeubis ay) abueyd 0} paAjoAul 89 ||IMm
s1s00 Alessadauun Jayuny abueys siy; yyim peaye ob noA j| ¢

39



papuaixa alam sawl} Suoz ay} JI AJejiwis ‘palsye ale
SaWI} 8UOZ BY]} JI SjuspIsal 0} palayo sabieyds ywiad
ul uoionpal Aue aq ||Im aiay} Jeyl Aj@1un alojeliay)

Sl ‘sinoy |euolneltado Jisyy Jo aAladsalll sauoz
Bupjied pajjosuo9 |le 1oy ybnoloq ay) ssoioe sawes ay}
ale pue A|jesuao 1os ale sabieyd ywiad Bunjed ‘gz

‘PlemIO} UsHe)} 8q 0} J8p|oy-oljojliod 8yj o}
papuawwodal aq 0} aJe sjesodoud ay} Jou Jo Jayleym
apIoap [|IMm ‘saAljejuasaldal pajos|e se ‘oym 4dySyV.L

0} pauodal aq |[e [|IM 8Say} ‘IaljlJes pauoijusaw sy
"asiel noA Jey} asoyy o} Jejiwis saul| Buoje suonoalqo
JO Jaquinu e paAl@dal aAeY am ey} WIUoD "Lz — 02

"Hodal dv¥SYHVY.1 8y} Ul papnjoul

ale 109448 SIY} 0} SJUSWIWOD pUE PaJoU aie SS8208e
uodsuel) o1gnd AgJeau ay} pue sjesauny pue sbuippam
1e Buyed 1oy uonesuadsip e jo Aidde 03 yoinyo

ay} jo Ayjiqe ay) Buipiebal sjuswwod 8y ‘6L — €1

'dVSHV.L J0 JleyQ sy} pue Japjoy
-01|0J}10d 8Uj} ‘SI0||IoUN0D pJeM Jo Juswaaibe pue Yyum
uolssnosip [Ny 0} 108lgns usaq sey ssao0.d ay) jey)
pue [10unod 8y} Ag paAleoal uolyjad e Jo Jnsal e se
2JaM SUOIJE)}NSUOD 8y} Jey} a)els Ajuo ued pue yoinyo
8y} JO 8sn 8y} U0 Juswwod Aue Jayo o} ajgeun 'ZL — 8

‘piemuoy Aem sy}

0] Se uoisioap Aue Buiyew usym Jap|oy-oljosod ay}
pue 4vSyV.1 Agq palapisuod pue o0} pauodal aq ||Im
uoioalgo sy} Jo sjiejsp sy} Jeyy Sjelajiay “Uolels sy}
1e siaquinu Jabuassed ul asealoul Aue Uo JUBWWOD
0} 9|geun 210243y} pue ‘aAl}ISuas Ajje1oiawwod
pawasp s! JI se Ulejqo 03 }ndIYIp si suonels

"sjuspIsal

|ED0] JO JuBWILIEpP 8y} 0} Buyied aalj Jo Jyouaq 8y} usAIb usaq
aney - ||ey abej|IA Jauuld pue Jauuld ul sayainyo Buipnjoul

- Bale 8y} Ul s|ley Jayjo ON Hjauaq 0} ssauisng Yyoinyo e o}
JapJO Ul paoUsIUBAUODUI 8q JOU PjNOYS Sjuapisay ‘siauolysiied
-uou Aq pasn uayo Jsow ssauisng e s ||ey ay} BuliH G|

‘om} 8y}
usamjaq uonouisip e aunb si aiay] "sswi} Buijed pajolsal
8y} Jo apisino uaaq sAemje aney 3aam ayj Jnoybnoiyy pue
Aepung e uo $82IAI8S UYoInyo JejnBay ‘sisuolysiied 1o) saoInIes
yoJnyo Jnoge Jou pue - [[ey Yyainyo ay} - saiijioe) Jisy) buuiy
INOQe PauI8duU0d SI YyoInyo ay} Jey) Buipuelsiapun Jno si}| |

¢,8u0z ayy) Buibueys inoyum wa|qoid ayj aA|0S JoU Jey) PINOAA
"Jeak jse| alhe4 sewisuyD yoinyo ay} o) sUop Sem Se ‘auoz
Buppted sy} puadsns 0} a|qissod si }I SJuaAd 8say} 1o} ‘OS|Y ‘€L

¢paysignd

pue paiijuapl g p|NoyYs siaquinu a8say} spew 8 0} UOoISIoap
Jadoud e 1o} AjaIng ¢ s1Y} 03 Joud Jaquinu ayj 03 siy} patedwod
pue padnpoJiul SEM 8UO0Z 3y} 99UIs polad ay} ul usaq

aneY a1y} SJuUans asay} Jo Auew moy paijiuapl Nok aneHy |

"yjuow e auo Buusquinu jsow je ‘alel ae
9S8y} INQ ‘SjUBAS U2INyod JBYJ0 pue s|elauny ‘saoinias Buippam
J08jje Ued auoz ay} Buiney jey) puejsiapun ued app ||

"}oam ay}
JO sAep Jayjo uo sa91AIas yaunyo Jeinbaul 10y 8q Ajuo pjnom i
0S ‘papn|oul 89 Jou pINOM SIS asay} Aepung e uo ajesado
JOU SB0p BUO0Z 8y} SY ¢Jayns |Im Aay} spoliad ay} pue pajoaye
SjuapISal JO Jaquinu 8y} 03 siy} paledwod pue Jaus(q ||Im Aay)
sawi} ay} pue abueyd ay} wouj Jyauaq |IM oym sisuolyslied

40



"uoIe}NSuU09
Aionjels ay} Bujelspun alojeq dySYVL 4O Jieyo
3y} pue 1ap|oy-0I|0j1Iod 8Y} ‘SIO[|IoUN0D pJem UM

passnoasip Ajjn} usaq sey uoleynsuod snoiraid ay}

Jey) ajelayiay '19|Je8| B SAI908I JOU PIP JBy) sessalppe

JO s|ie}ap Joj payse usaq sey Jojslqo "esle
UOIJB}NSU0D BY} Ul SBWOY ||e 0} SIa210 AQ palaAljep
puey aJam S}ajjes| UOIe}NSuUod 8y} Jey} WIuo) "€z

"PSONPOJIUI 8F PINOM S}SO9 Ul 8SeaIoul ou

"Sjuaplisal 8y} Jo saysim ssaldxa ay} jsuiebe pue ssauisng
ally |ley yoinyo ay} Jjeusq o} yied Jeod e ojul speod Ino
uin} 0} pasedaid aq pjnom noA moy puejsiapun Jou op SpA L2

‘1IouNo)

MOJIEH UO U0I}03|431 poob e jou S| pue YIom pjnoys Aoeioowsp
Moy jou s| Jey] "0} pausjsi| 89 jou |m Aayy |99 Aayy

se siy} 0} A|[dal 0y Buiuue|d Jou ale Ing uoie}NSUOD Ise| JNoA

0} pajidas oym sinoqybiau Jo Jaquinu e 0} uaxyods aney apA 02

‘paxled Bulaqg sied o} anp Bulues|o ssa| pue Jay||
Buiseaoul sieo ajow aas |Im abueyd sy Ing ‘Ajpualind Jood si
}| ¢ Buiues|o 1oau3s Jo suonjedldwi ay} paJspisuod NoA aneH 6l

"yoJnyo 8y} Jou sjuapisal ay} djay

JOU [[IM }] "JN2Iyip @Jow }i Ul BuiAll pue peos sy Buissolo axyew
M s1y] “Buiyied 8auy 1oy si8W0)sno pue jels yioq Aq pasn
aq ||\ pue ‘pu3 yojeH Ul sjueinejsal sy} Jo Auew o} osje Jnq
uolje}s ulel) 8y} 0} eale }saso|o 8y} isnl Jou si suoz sy "yled
Jed juelnejsal pue UOIJe)S B Ojul Bale ay} uin) pjnom abueyo
pauueld ay} ‘Bunyied aaiy [[ey yoinyo Buippe o} uonippe uj ‘gL

"saljiwey BunoA yym sjuspisal pue - sasnoy pue sjej} snoJawnu
ul os|e pue peoJ ay} ul Ayjioey Buisnoy pasayays abie| ay)

ul yioq - Apapje ayj Buipnjoul sdnolb ajgetaujnA wouly Jaquinu e
aunb sapnjoul uonendod yJed pISISSAA Yl ‘MOUY NOA SY "/ |

"y2Jnyd ay} Jeau Bupyed alow

10} paau ay} ajeslpul Jou Sa0p sIy| “way) passed aney am awi}
yoeas saoeds aal) 0| 0} g Aj|lensn aJe aiay} pue S)oaMm Ma} }se|
3y} Ul uoinels ayy o) 8sojo sheq Aejdsip pue Aed ay} paloyuow
aney a)\\ "yoinyo auy} Jo spiek 00| ulyim peoy abpugxn

ay} uo saijioey Aejdsip pue Aed sjdwe sy} ui yed Jo (jies pue
snq Yjoq) syui podsued; o1ignd poob Alsa ayj asn “Mjem pjnoo
Aay} uayy [eoo| ale salj|ioe) yainyos ayy buuiy ajdoad ayy 4| ‘9|

41



‘Bunyied uo uonesuadsip e Aq passalppe ag ued
s|elauny pue sBuippap) "210jeq se uoljenyis Buiyied
pajsabuod 0} SpeoJt uinjal pjnom uonoLsal Aepyasm
JO |EAOWAI JBY} UIS0U09D Sassaldxg Ino20 sbuippam
usym Aepinjes si yoinyo 1oy uooulaye }salsng

Jey} sJojoalqo Jayjo se julod Jejiwis sayew Juapisay

"SJUSWIWIOD Jayjel uoloalqo [ew.o) e JoN
‘sinoy 749D

JO uononpal o0y uonisoddo Buimoys (sinoy jo uoionpal
pasodoud 10} Bale UIYIM) Yled PISLISOAN JO Juapisay

‘Aluo we | -0| ‘Aepinjes o} Aepuoly
Jo |esodoud JnoA yym aaibe pjnom | uay} ajqissod jou si Siy} §|

‘Aisnoinalid se Bunpped

papMoJd JO 10| B 0} ped| ||am Aew sAepyaam uo uoljoLsal

#-¢ 8y} Buinoway ‘s,wjasuy 1S djay pjnom siy} pue uooulaye
Kepinjeg e uo aoe|d aye} sbuippam jsoy\ "Aepinjes o} Aepuopy
uey} Jayjel ‘sAepinjes uo uolouIsal - 8y} aAowal isnp °|,

(015 4"

Aled PISIASSMN
‘UNoJ Yooiquies

‘ue|d siy} 0} suoijoalqo asies 0} N
pue s.10||19un0? JNo BuloeU0D 8 OS|e |IM SN “SIY} JO palyiiou
Bulaq sydsap ‘eale UOI}B}NSUOD BY} Ul SBWOY || 0} JUsWnoop

M3INSY pu3 YodjeH ay} JaAl|sp puey jou pIp [Iounod ayj jey)
apn[oul [|IM SIY} pue ‘sjuspisal ay) jo Ajuolew ayj Jo saysim
ssaldxa ay) 1sulebe pajuswajdwi aq Asyj pjnoys sjesodoud

InoA 0} abugjjeyo [eba| e Buipunow JapISUOD [|IM SAN ‘€2

"OljJel} 2IOW JSYNS ||IM dM SE SWeS ay} pabueyo aq 0} sjuspisal
10} 8|geuOSea. pue Jiey 89 Jou PINOM }| ¢%0G Aq Wway} pasu
pINoMm sjuapisal awi} ay} aonpal [|Im 3 se isnl o%,0G Agq suoz ay)
ul sywiad Jeo oy sebieyo ay) aonpal osje Ji [Im ‘) abusjjeyd
(M aMm 1SIym ‘aBueyd ay} yum peaye sassaid |10Unod ay} J| ‘2z

‘Auljnios puels saop 3 ¢ sisAjeue jyouaq / }s09 Jadolid e ayew
0] UOIjewIo Ul 3Y} JO YyoNw INOYIM UoISIoap siy) Bunjew noA ale
AYpn épeoy abpugxn ayy uo sAeq Aejdsip pue Aed juaioiyns
ale alay} Usym Sjuapisal ay} JO SM3IA 8U} JOAO ssauisnq
[e10JawWwWod e asiuoLd 03 Juem noA pjnom AYpp ¢synsal ay} 0}
U3]SI| J0U pUE UOIEYNSUOD B pjoy noA pjnom AYpA “stauolysiied
ale alay} uay} speod asay} ul Bulnl ejdoad aiow ey ale aiay |

42



"JJed 0} seale Jajes JaYjo puly 0} SABY [|IM SISALP
yons se pue yled 1ed se papiroid jou si Aeemybiy ay |

‘uonoun( sy} Buines| pue Buliejus dl44el) 104

AJIQISIA JB3|D ulejuleWw 0} papusiul S| SALJ Jepa)d YlIM
uonoun( ayj 1e saulj mojjeA ajgnop a8y} 0} UOISUSIXS
pasodold ay| saull Moj|2A 8|gnop 0} UoISUdXd
pasodoud 03 Bunjoalqo anuany ay| Jo juspisay

¢ Bunyed

10} }o| 9oeds ou aney Aew LNoY ydjopuey e sabeieb
Jeas/Aemanup ay} aseos ul Janauaym Buiyied 1oy |njesn ussq
sey eale ay} se uoiounl aauq Jepa) e saul| mo||aA s|gnop
ay} Jo uoisua)xa pasodoid e 0} uonoalqo ue |99} (Jeaq) uosiad
pajgesiq e Se | pug yojeH ‘snuaAy ay] jJO Juspisal e sy

veovi

anuaAy ay |
‘Uno) ydjopuey

0l

43



This page is intentionally left blank

44



Agenda Item 9
Pages 45 to 58

Traffic and Road Satrety
Advisory Panel

Date of Meeting:

Subject:

Responsible Officer :

Exempt:

Wards affected:

Enclosures:

23 November 2016

INFORMATION REPORT

Transport Local Implementation Plan
Programme of Investment
2017/18 — 2019/20

Tom McCourt — Corporate Director,
Community

No

All

Appendix A — Timetable for new MTS / LIPs
Appendix B — Programme of investment
2017/18 — 2019/20

45



Section 1 - Summary

This report provides an update on the proposed transport programme of investment in the
Local Implementation Plan for the three year period from 2017/18 until 2019/20.

FOR INFORMATION

Section 2 - Report

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

Introduction

The existing Transport Local Implementation Plan (LIP) is a statutory document
required by the Mayor of London under the GLA Act containing all of Harrow’s
transport objectives, policies, a delivery plan and monitoring indicators and targets.
The main purpose of the LIP is to show how the borough will implement the Mayor
of London’s Transport Strategy (MTS) which was published in May 2010. The
MTS sets out a vision for transport that looked forward 20 years to 2031.

The current LIP is the second plan approved by Cabinet and superseded the first
plan which was necessitated by the publishing of a new MTS in 2010. The second
LIP was approved by Cabinet and adopted by Full Council in May 2011 and
subsequently approved by the Mayor for London in October 2011.

Because funding and identified projects change over time during the life of the LIP,
Cabinet have delegated authority to the Portfolio Holder for Environment, Crime
and Community Safety to change the planned programme of investment contained
in the LIP as new information becomes available.

The LIP programme of investment is predominantly funded by Transport for
London (TfL) but is supported by other sources of funding such as Borough capital
/ revenue funds and developer contributions. These funds are used to deliver all of
the transport work that Harrow has identified in the LIP as necessary to implement
the MTS.

Most of the transport programmes reported to TARSAP are identified work
streams contained in the LIP and are funded by TfL LIP funding.

The LIP2 delivery programme initially covered the three year period from 2011/12
to 2013/14. In 2013 TfL issued further guidance and required Boroughs to update
their LIPs to include a refreshed Delivery Plan for the period from 2014/15 to
2016/17. A revised Programme of Investment with new interim targets up to
2016/17 measured against the key performance indicators was required. This
programme will be completed at the end of this financial year.

New Mayor’s Transport Strategy
With the election of Sadiq Khan as London Mayor in May 2016 new priorities will

be set for his administration. The Major has recently published a direction of travel
document entitled “a city for all Londoners” which outlines the capital’s top

46



2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11

challenges and opportunities across priority policy areas, as well as the changes
that City Hall wants to deliver over the next four years This document is currently
subject to public consultation via stakeholder workshops, community focus groups
and online discussions and can be seen at the following link.

https://www.london.gov.uk/get-involved/have-your-say/all-consultations/city-all-
londoners

It is expected that a new Mayor’s Transport Strategy will be developed in 2017
which will set out the Mayor’s new priorities for transport for the foreseeable future.
Initial indications are that the areas of priority are likely to be as follows:

1) A good public transport experience

Making fares more affordable

Improving customer service & information

Improving accessibility for all passengers

Reducing delays and improving reliability

Exploring potential for quieter buses

Investing in the tube and rail network to reduce crowding

2) Delivering safe and pleasant places

Improving air quality across London

Making our streets safer for everyone

Making cycling an attractive option

Enhancing the experience of spending time on London’s streets

3) Supporting the economy, new homes and jobs

Tackling congestion and helping people walk, cycle and use public transport
Helping businesses, freight and essential services

New connections to new homes and communities

Supporting better travel options across different parts of London

The development of a new mayor’'s Transport Strategy will require the subsequent
development of a third LIP by London Boroughs. An outline timetable for this can
be seen in Appendix A.

Programme of investment 2017/18 — 2019/20

TfL have issued interim guidance for the development of programmes for 2017/18
pending the release of more detailed guidance as part of the wider development of
a new MTS and TfL's Business Plan for 2017/18 and beyond. They have
recommended that the approach to planning 2017/18 programmes is done on the
basis of the current LIP, guidance and funding levels.

TfL is currently reviewing LIP funding levels for 2017/18 with the GLA and Mayor

and have advised boroughs to clearly prioritise their programmes in the event that
less funding is ultimately available and amendments need to be made.

47



2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

2.17

The deadline for the submission of the LIP 2017/18 Annual Spending Submission
was the end of October. A programme of investment covering a three year period
from 2017/18 taking account of the guidance was agreed with the Portfolio Holder
for Environment, Crime and Community Safety and can be seen in Appendix B.

The new programme continues with the same transport areas identified over
recent years and also includes a major scheme bid for Wealdstone town centre.
The increase in funding for cycling infrastructure of £200k per annum,
recommended at the last TARSAP meeting, has also been incorporated into the
new programme.

New Transport Local implementation Plan

During the year a working group involving representatives from TfL, London
Councils and the Boroughs has been setup. The working group is examining and
making recommendations on the third round of the LIPs process within the context
of the London City Charter and general principles of best practice and value for
money.

Current indications are that Borough LIPs will continue to support the delivery of
MTS priorities, policies and outcomes, while also meeting local priorities. However,
there is a desire to simplify requirements and processes for producing the next
round of LIPs because this would reduce the resource burden for preparing,
reviewing and monitoring LIPs for both the boroughs and TfL.

When a new MTS has been approved and future guidance is eventually issued for
developing a third LIP it is likely that there will be full public consultation on
developing Harrow’s transport objectives, policies, delivery plan and monitoring
indicators and targets as was done previously with the development of the first and
second LIPs. This will provide the opportunity to refine the local priorities for
delivering the new MTS in Harrow.

A clarification of the process for the new MTS and LIPs is expected in Spring
2017.

Section 3 - Further Information

3.1.

There is no further information.

Section 4 - Financial Implications

41.

There are no direct financial implications from this report.

Section 5 - Equalities implications

5.1

A programme of investment was included in the Transport Local Implementation
Plan which was approved by full Council. The LIP was subject to an Equalities
Impact Assessment where schemes were identified as having no negative impact
on any equality groups. Positive impacts of the programme were demonstrated on

48



some equalities groups, particularly, women, children and people with mobility
difficulties.

5.2 The development of a new LIP would require a new EqlA to be undertaken.

Section 6 - Council Priorities

6.1 The funds allocated by TfL and Harrow for transport improvements will contribute to
achieving the administration’s priorities:

e Making a difference for the vulnerable

e Making a difference for communities

¢ Making a difference for local businesses
e Making a difference for families

Section 7 - Statutory Officer Clearance

on behalf of the
Name: Jessie Man Chief Financial Officer

Date: 10/11/16

Ward Councillors notified: YES

Section 8 - Contact Details and Background Papers

Contact:

David Eaglesham
Tel: 020 8424 1500, Fax: 020 8424 7662, E-mail: david.eaglesham@harrow.gov.uk

Background Papers:

49




This page is intentionally left blank

50



$o-usdis ;g Juswdolanap di pAIYL 6T/8T PUegT//LT 19A0D ||IM

aoueping Suipuny sdI7 Wiiaju) ;830N

85uepIND di1 PAIYR Ysignd *

(£T0Z vwniny) SLN [Buld ysiigng *

asuodsal 1 sisAjeue uonelnsuod SiA

uole}nsuod siy Adoiniels

(2107 Suuds) soueping sd|] JIp pue S1A HeIP Ysiigng ;{r

(9T0Z 42quianop) ue|d ssauisng T31 Ysiignd *

S1IAl 3jeap jo uonesedsud v juswaiedu]

a[N o

(9107 Uwininy) Juswinaop janpJy fo uonIang ysignd, *
SUO0J}223|3 |DI0]

S[V[T[F[W]V[W[3[FTJQ[NJO[SIV[T][F[W[V]W[d][F[Q[N]JO]STV]T
810Z ‘Z JieH 8102 ‘T JIeH | LT0Z ‘T JeH | LT0Z T HeH | 910Z ‘Z JIeH

Sdi1/ SLIN ONIMVd3dd 404 319VLINIL — V XIANIddV

51



This page is intentionally left blank

52



uoneoo||yy ‘ABajesys aoAo spooylinoqybiaN
009 009 00¢ 00¢ 00¢ di Ul paijjuapl sajnod 9j942 Jo uoneuswaldw| sawaYds 8joAd slopuio)
‘looyos souiwog is
Jeau ||IH 8y} uo mouieH ‘(S00¥Y) peoy uopuo sainses
ul swayds Buissouo ueljsapad e Juswadw| sowayos Buioddng pue
0G1L Buyiepn spooynoqybiaN
‘f1o)es SI0pLIOD
uoneoo||yy ueysapad anoidwi ‘uonebaibas aonpas pue
051 05 05 05 dI | Bunjem ajeyioe) 0} sswayos Jo uoiejuswa|duw|
(eue suoispeaH
0} peoy uoljels usamiaq) peoy Jauuld F0pY -
(912419 Aungsbuny pue ajoa19) Aingsuaand
usamiaq) Apnis aynod aue] 10dABUoH QY LYY -
y oris ez epioe W UOIBUnLED | ononpay | samseen
ST : USpI02YY) Buioddng pue
00¢€ Jo011S 8907 ‘J901IS UMO | sawayosg spooylnoqybiaN
19241S YybiH ‘Joj0suuod) ‘peoy ybiH :sadAy fiajes g0 Si0pLIoD
19241S 41¥ "9l Joapun uaip|iyd pue s}sijoAoiojow
Buinjoaul s|1SY Buisiyioud ‘suonoun( je pue
UolBI0|lY | siopLioo Buoje sisisnio |SY Ssalppe 0} swayos
00¢ 00l 00} 00} dii pue SaIpnjs [eIpawal JUspIode Jo swwelbold
|o0Yds JBYSI4 uyor 1S - salnses
‘looyos yled Jauuld - awuweJsboid Buioddng pue
00€ auoz ydwoyg spooyinoqybieN
UOIEd0|Y ‘sjooyos sJlopuio)
00¢ 00l 00l 001} di Buimoj|o} ay} e seuoz ydwogz aonpoiu|
jejol leJjol | 0Z/6L | 6L/8L | 8L/LL
puelg [ -qng Ad Ad Ad
s,0003 Buipung mw_“_ﬂ””w uonduosag awayosg | 9pIL dwayoss awuweiboud

02/610¢ — 81L/L10C¢ LNIINLSIANI 40 JININVHOOUd — 9 XIANIddV

53



199.)S UMO| ‘193.1S

ybiH ‘Jojosuuo) ‘peoy ybiH :sadAy 19aas 41y saInses|\|
Ajjiqissaooy Buioddng pue
'0,.G A|@jewixoiddy ‘eouepinb pue uone|sibg) dojg sng spooyinoqybieN
UONEDO||Y Aypigesip yum juerdwoos-uou ale jey; ybnolioq SJOpLI0D
oGl oGl 0]} 0g 0g ' di ay} ul sdojs snq Buiulewals ay} aye|dwo)
"MOJ} SN anoldwi 0} sjoajuod Bunyied
/ Bunjied pajgesip Jo MaiAal ||IH 8y} U0 MOJIeH - SoINSEO
bue (sneniul Buioddng pue
juiod youid snq) JOpLIOD PeoyY HOYHON ZLEY - fAoud sng SPOOUINOQUBIAN
:SMO||0} Sk s}oaloid Si0pllog
UOIIBIO||Y | om) axepspun "ejep sngi pue suoljoadsul ajnol
OvS OvS 08l 08} 08} din uo paseq saljljioe} sng anoidwi 0} SaINSes|
(Jauuid)
peoy ysiepn— (molieH 'N) peoy abpuque) -
aueT auojspeaH 0} (Jauuld) |[IH Weyayep -
09y MOJIEH NIy} peoy sopuey) pue
yied weybuiuung o0} (pus }sem) peoy SapulH - sainses
(pu3z yoleH) peoy sAemusalo Builioddng pue
051 aunsnbny 0] (pjespp MolieH) aue pleap - 9 Bulohkn spooyinoqybieN
SJOpLI0D
pajusws|dwi
S9}N0J pue pPamalnal 8 ||IM suol}ed0| Buimoj|o}
05 05 05 05 uonedo|y 8y ‘seale yied/usaib ybnouy) Buijiem
dii pue BulpAo 1o} sjuswanoldui Juswajdw|
198l
[B007 ‘1924}S UMO| ‘}19841S YbBiH ‘J0josuuo)
‘peoy YbiH :sadAy 19a1s 41 apnjoul Aew sy
pleS\ MOlieH pue
Juaig usamjaq aynol Aemiainp pasodoud pue
[led] juowijag yym ui Bupjull 8nod 819Ad yinos
/ Yyuou sawey | 0} alowue)s jo uonadwo) salnses

Buioddng pue

54



‘looyos abpo 1SN -
‘looyoas pPOOAA Jauuld -

‘l00Y9S WJeq UOYWaN - sawayos BuI ow_wk_hmmﬂ_\w
0G1 ‘looyog abuels) - Remybiy ue|d mvo%tsogm%oz
'se paalbe ale g|//10Z 40} SUOIUBAIB)UI |aAel] |ooyos SJODLLO
uoneoo||yy aJaym sjooyos ay] ‘suejd |oAel} [00YOS pLIoD
0S5} 0§ 0§ 0§ di ul paljijuapl sainseaw [edisAyd juswajduw|
199418 ybiH ‘peoy ybiH :sadAy 1988 soinsespy
41¥ 'S843usd MolJeH Yjnos pue pu3 yoyeH Bunioddng pue
0G1 10} padojanap pue paubisap aq [im Bulubig |  uopuo a|qiba] SDOOUINOGUBIS
"$2JJUB9 JOU}SIp pue |ea0] Je subis Buipuly pooUINOqUBISN
051 05 0S 05 co:mow____%_ Aem uelnsapad jo uonejuswa|dwi snuiuo Si0pllog
"SjuswaAoldwi pasi|eao) sainses
Joulw Jayjo pue sqlay paddolp uelsapad sjuawanosduwli Buijyoddng pue
‘saoe|d Bunjied suosiad pajgesip asnpo.jul Aiqissaooy spooyinoqybieN
UOIEDO||Y 0} sjuswanoidwi Aljigissaooe jo swwelbold SJOpLI0D
0SG1L 06l 0S 0S 0S '
dl'l
‘saijuoud
Jash malnal pue aouewlouad }Jom}au
anoidwi 03 suondo Japisuod 0} uonoun( 8joa1D SOLIBUDS BuI owwﬁwmﬂ_\w
Aingsuaanp Jo mainay “Ayjigeras anoidwi Y W S P
Jolja4 uonsabuo) spooylnoqybiaN
pue uonsabuos pue Aejap aonpal 0] SaWaYds S10pILIOD
0vz 0vz 08 08 08 uoneoo||yy Juswanoidwi adnpodjul pue sanssi Ayjiqeral :
di7 | awn Asuinol yum yiomiau ay} Jo seale Mainay
}oal11g |[e207 ‘19al1g UMo] ‘19a11S
ybiH “1ojosuuo) ‘peoy YbiH :sadAy 10a4is 41y seale Bul owwk_hmmﬂ_\,,u\_
"/ 1/910Z Ul palie}s eale [0J3u09 Alio| Juow|ag | |0Jjuod ALo| pue a w%
0} sjusLanoldl JO Uoialdwo) ‘senoa ybleyy | senosjyBlesy | oPOOWNOdUDISN
pajeubisap Juswa|dwi pue seale Uol}ol}Sal Siopllog
uoneoo||yy yBlam malnal 0} SHIOM apNjoul [|IM SIY}
051 051 05 05 05 di7 | ‘ABsjens jybialy jeuonelado jo uonejuaws|dwy|

55



peo. JapIAA ‘SIS Alajes peod yoes} 0} S|00yos suojowosd sainses
U}IM SJuSAS pue saAljeniul pasiueblo pue s)isIA UE UONEONPS Buioddng pue
g€l uoneo||y [ooyss ybnouyy Apueuiwopald palaaliep aq P foe: P spooyinoqybieN
Gel oy Gy gy 417 | 1m sjooyos ui seaeniur uopeonp3 Aioses peoy 19JES PEOY sJoplioD
"'sapowl
vodsuel) sjgeuieysns abeinoous pue sue|d
|[anes} dojansp 0} sjuswdojanap |eljuapisal pue salnses
sossaulsng 10} ssaoo.d uoneoldde Buiuueld uonowo.d Builioddng pue
051 3y} elA salped pJiyy 0} papinoad si yoddng Ajgeuieisng spooytnoqybieN
"S9pow Jed-uou asn 0} 2lignd ay} Buibeinoous SJOpL0D
uoneodo||y ]e pawie sjuans pue saAljeniul jo abuel
06l 0S 0S 0S dll € ybnouy} psjowoud si podsuel} s|qeule}sns
193.1S |B207 1984)S UMO |
‘193118 YbIH ‘Jojosuuo)) ‘peoy ybiH :sadAy
19841S 41Y "saipadold umo Ji1sy} yim sjuspisal sainses
Jo} a|gejiene aanenul sjulod Buibieys aa.y sqn|o Jeo pue Buioddng pue
051 JO uonowold -joedwl [BJUSWIUOIIAUS SS9| JO) | SBIOIYSA 21}09|3 spooyinoqybiaN
BuiALp Jajews pue sqn|o Jeo ‘syuiod Buibieyd SIOpLII0D
uoneoo||yy pue ABojouyoa} S|2IYaA 21}03]8 |euoljippe
051 05 05 05 di1 ybBnouy sjuswanoidwi Ayjenb Jie Jaalaq
"(QvH) pajgesid ay}
Jo} uoljenossy molleH se yons sdnoub poddns mc_tomw_hmmﬂ_p_
gl 0} pasn aq ||m }a6pnq siy| "0s op 0} podsue.} Buiurely |anes SboOWING wm_ﬁ_um
21ignd uo Apuspuadapul BuijjaAel) Ul JUBSPIHUOD pooyINOgyLIeN
3l 9 9 9 uoneoo||y JoU 9soUy} }sisse 0} pasiuebio Buiulel) [aael | S10pLLIOY
dl'l
sewy aid pue sAepinjeg ‘6°a s|gejiene mc_towwk_hwmmnﬂ_\.,u\_
Gl JOU 8Je SI33JUN|OA USYM SBWI} JO) SOIAI8S Augowdoys . 6
Ajigowdoys jo sinoy Buiuado o uoisuedx3 SpooyInoqubleN
uoleoo||y SJOpLIOD
Gl g G g dI

"|00YDS SPUB|POOAA ‘|00YDS SJELSHUYAA -

56



uoleoo||y ‘loeued Aiosinpy A1ajes peoy R oiyel | sawayos Buipuny
00€ 00€ 001 00t 00l di s,[1oUN0D MmodleH Aq panoidde sawayos |20 | Uodsuel] |07 Hodsuel] |Bo07

‘ybnoiog ay} ul sdnoub Aysouiw
pue uswoMm Yyum Buiyiom uo si gL// L ul AjioLd SeINSEsN
: : : PR Buioddng pue

Buiuiesy ajphko

. spooyinoqybieN

ybnoloq sy} Ul synpe pue ualp|iyo
uonedo|yy Buiuiely sjoAo Buiobu I Si0pLI0D

bz bz 08 08 08 |[ooyas 0} Buiuiely 8942 Bulobuo apinoid

dll

‘jjeys [ooyos pue sjidnd Joj asn sainses|\
vodsuel; sjqeuleisns bunowold ‘siadojansp 10SIApe Buioddng pue
pue sJ0jj1lounod ‘Buiuueld ‘sjooyoss yym ue|d |anel | spooyinoqybiaN
uosliel| ‘sjooyos Qg Bo.Io ssoloe uswabebus SIOpLII0D

uonedo||y pue juswdojanap ue(d [oAel} j00YOS

051 051 05 05 05 dii 10 Alanap ay} Buioddns uolyisod ue|d [aAed |
sainses|\

sadA} 19a41s 1Y [Ie epnjoul swdojonap
. Buiyoddng pue
gl [lIM SIY] "sJeak aininy 1o} swayos dojansp 0} awwelboid e
sjuswssasse pue sAaains jo Bupjenspun ay | ainng pOOUINOGYLISN
UOIEDO|Y SJOpL0D
€8l 19 19 19
dll

"s|ooyos
||e 0} Juas sJays|smau Ajwus} jo Bunuld pue sainses|\
$92JN0S3. |00Y2S 0} 9|9AD ‘S82IN0SaJ |00YDS Buioddng pue
0ve 0} Bunpyjjem ‘Buipuny juelb jlews ‘smoys aljesy) Hoddns jooyos spooyinoqybieN
uoneooyy | leuoneonpe apinoid ‘sue|d [oAel] JIBy)} ayepdn SJopLI0D

0v¢ 08 08 08 ’ di 0] S|00Y2s 3|qeus 0} SdoYSHIOAA SXeuapun

‘JUBAS|aJ BJIBYM SBAIeINUI pue s}oaloid Jay}o
yum pajeulplood subledweo pajablie) uo paseq
pasiueblio aq |Im sueLsapad pue s)sijoAd
‘slg|@aym g pasamod ‘siaALp AlJenolyed

sJasn peou |je Bunebiey suoijowoud A}ajes

57



068'C

0. | osz | osz | oz moLteH
0ze 90LS
00L | 006 | 0001 | ool co_ymou__/w_\

1924)S YbIH ‘10}08UU0)

‘peoy YbIH :sadA} 19a1s 41y ‘dwayos

JapIm ay} Jo Juawa|d asenbs o1gnd ay} Buipuny
ale 19 8yl ‘syul| }samyses Apenoiued
‘AyIqissaooe Buinoidwi se ||am se JusWwaAow
uelsepad adueyus 0} wieal dlgnd panoiduli
ue ‘ymoub saoinias snq 1oy Alioeded jeuoijippe
‘601 9U} Uo Ajjigelal yiomiau panoidwi
apinoid |[IMm BWaYds Y| "Ue|d UOIDY ealy ay}
ul paybiybiy saiunpoddo ymmouab anisuaxa
yum eale Ayunuoddo ue si suoisplespp

awayos
Juswanosdw|
aJjUaD UMO |
auojspleapn

sawayog Jolep

sanssl Ajajes
pue A}|1qISS820E |EDO| UO SNJ0} |[IM SBWSYIS

58



Agenda Item 10
Pages 59 to 118

Traffic And Road Safety
Advisory Panel

Date of Meeting:
Subject:

Responsible
Officer:

Exempt:

Wards affected:

Enclosures:

23 November 2016
INFORMATION REPORT

Ultra Low Emission Zone — Neighbourhood of
the Future (NoF)

Tom McCourt — Corporate Director,
Community

No

Greenhill

Appendix A — Go Ultra Low City Scheme bid

Appendix B — Harrow Neighbourhood of the
future location plan

59



Section 1 - Summary

This information report is presented to members to provide an update on
progress with the Ultra Low Emission Zone funded by Transport for London (TfL)
and the proposed Neighbourhood of the Future scheme for Harrow.

FOR INFORMATION

Section 2 - Report

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Background

London is the most polluted place in the country, with air toxicity levels in
some areas reaching up to three-and-a-half times the EU legal limit. The
Mayor's Air Quality Strategy published by the Greater London Authority in
2010 set out a range of policies aimed at making improvements and is the
framework for the current London wide air quality initiatives. Policy 2
promotes technological change and cleaner vehicles and indicates that The
Mayor, through TfL, working with the Government and boroughs will promote
the transfer to and use of low emission vehicles for private and freight
transport.

In July 2015 the London Mayor unveiled his Ultra Low Emission Vehicle
(ULEV) delivery plan to make London the ultra-low emission vehicle capital
of Europe. This plan sets a vision for ULEVs to be the preferred option in
London for public transport, fleets and private vehicle owners and deals with
the issues and challenges currently limiting ULEV uptake in London. The
delivery plan will make it as easy as possible for Londoners to make the
switch to Ultra Low Emission Vehicles.

Air Quality in Harrow

Harrow Council declared the whole Borough an Air Quality Management
Area (AQMA) in January 2002 after a review and assessment of air quality
within the borough predicted that two pollutants, PM10O’s (very fine particles)
and nitrogen dioxide (NO2) were likely to exceed nationally set objectives.
The progress in achieving improved air quality within the AQMA is
inextricably linked to Harrow’s Local Implementation Plan (LIP) and Local
Development Plan (LDF) which take into account the Mayor of London’s Air
Quality Strategy.

Modelling has demonstrated that the main contribution to nitrogen dioxide
(NO2) concentrations and also a major source of fine particle emissions was
road traffic and so most of the measures are related to reducing vehicle
emissions.

60



2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

The Council’'s Air Quality Action Plan focus on the following key actions

Reducing emissions from vehicles;

Reducing road traffic — discouraging non-essential journeys by road;
Promoting alternative modes of transport to the private car;
Encouraging walking as a means of travel;

Encouraging cycling as a means of travel;

Encouraging development that does not impact upon air quality;
Public information and education.

In 2011 the Greater London Authority (GLA) identified five Air Quality Focus
Areas within LB Harrow which have been selected by the GLA as areas
where there is the most potential for improvements in air quality within the
Capital. These areas are:

e Harrow Town Centre — in the vicinity College Road, Greenhill Way
and Lowland Road.

¢ Wealdstone — in the vicinity of George Gange Way and Railway
Approach
Pinner Road — near Harrow Town Centre
Stanmore Broadway
A5 Burnt Oak Broadway - by Watling Avenue

The introduction of ULEV initiatives focussed in air quality focus areas will
support the delivery of the Air Quality Action Plan by helping to reduce
vehicle emissions from conventional petrol or diesel powered vehicles and
encouraging a greater take up of electric or other low emission vehicles.

Go Ultra Low City Scheme

The Office for Low Emission Vehicles, within the Department for Transport,
works across government to support the early market for ultra-low emission
vehicles (ULEV). In December 2014 they invited applications for the Go Ultra
Low City Scheme (GULCS) which was intended for cities to deliver a step-
change in the uptake of ULEVs in those cities.

A submission for a GULCS for London was prepared, agreed and submitted
by TfL, GLA and eight London Boroughs and London Councils in October
2015 for £20 million in funding. The bid builds on the progress made by
London’s innovative policies such as the Congestion Charge and Low
Emission Zone and local councils’ work to incentivise cleaner vehicles
through parking policies and by expanding charging provision.

The GULCS bid was very ambitious, wanting London to become a “Go Ultra-
Low emission vehicle Capital” and is aligned to the Mayor's ambitions to

61



2.1

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

improve air quality and to support the commitment in his manifesto that
London is carbon free by 2050.

There are four main streams to the GULCS as follows:

a) Increase ULEV charging infrastructure in residential areas by
establishing a London-wide delivery partnership for providing, managing
and maintaining these.

b) Retrofit car club bays with EV charging points, with management and
maintenance of the infrastructure being undertaken by the partnership
responsible for residential charging infrastructure (point a).

c) Support the increase of rapid EV chargers.

d) Neighbourhoods of the Future (NoF) - local schemes to prioritise and
encourage the uptake of ULEVs.

A copy of the bid can be seen in Appendix A.

Harrow Council’s part of the submission involved a bid for £370k to develop
a Neighbourhood of the Future (NoF) which will increase the uptake of
electric vehicle (EV) usage in Harrow Town Centre. Harrow Town Centre
has been identified as an area that has poor air quality and suffers from
congestion during peak periods. You will note in appendix A that there is
reference to Harrow on the Hill, however, this is a typographical error and the
location of the scheme is actually the central area of the town that includes
the main commercial centre and Harrow on the Hill Station.

London was subsequently announced as one of the winners of the Go Ultra
Low City Scheme initiative on Monday 25 January 2016 and has been
awarded £13m in capital funding for implementing the proposals. A
governance structure was agreed that sees London Councils, TfL and the
GLA represented on a steering group that will guide the implementation of
the proposals in the GULCS bid.

As the award is lower than the amount included in the bid a final approval
process has been undertaken by the steering group during the year to
review the final proposals from all stakeholders in more detail. Harrow
submitted a detailed proposal for the NoF and has received confirmation of
its funding allocation on 4" November 2016 to undertake the project. The
funding details are as follows:

Name of | Approved | Indicative | Indicative | Indicative | Indicative | Approved
Project | Funding | Funding | Funding | Funding | Total Total
2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Funding | Match

Funding

62



2.16

2.17

2.18

2.19

Greenhill | £10,000 £80,000 £65,000 £25,000 £180,000 | £50,000
Go Ultra

Low

Match funding of £50k has been identified from the council’s annual local
implementation plan (LIP) funding to support the bid and TfL will therefore
fund £180k between 2017/18 and 2019/20 from the GULCS award.

Harrow Town Centre - Neighbourhood of the Future

Harrow Town Centre is a busy metropolitan centre and is a hive of activity,
used by residents and visitors for work and leisure alike. There are also over
5,000 new homes planned to be built in the area as part of major
developments in the town centre. Each new development is assessed in
accordance with local and regional guidelines to ensure the correct
sustainable transport infrastructure is included to satisfy both London wide
and Borough policy objectives.

The Harrow Town Centre air quality focus area was selected as the location
for the proposed neighbourhood of the future (NoF). This area is in the south
of the borough and is close to the boundary with Brent and encompasses a
large part of the Greenhill ward. It includes the main commercial shopping
centre within the town centre and the borough as a whole which is home to
several major high street stores and attracts local residents and visitors in a
wide catchment. Commercial outlets make up the majority of the town centre
environment, however several large scale residential developments will be
located within the NoF area as part of wide scale residential development
within the town centre. Harrow Town Centre is served by Harrow on the Hill
bus and underground station which is on the Metropolitan Line. The location
plan of the area can be seen in Appendix B.

The proposal focuses on increasing the number of EV charging points,
prioritising road space for EVs and creating support maintenance for owners
of ULEVs. A summary of the NoF proposal is set out below:

e Station Road and College Road are currently open to buses, cycles and
delivery vehicles only. It is our intention to restrict these roads to ULEVs
only. This will initially apply to private cars only.

e Provide charging infrastructure at the main transport hub of Harrow on
the Hill Station with possible inclusion of rapid charging points in
destination car parks near the two main shopping areas of St Ann’s and
St George’s shopping centre.

e Provide free accredited training to mechanics in the borough to ensure
ULEVs can be safely and easily serviced in the area. This will support

63




2.20

2.21

2.22

an increase in private ULEV ownership by removing a potential barrier
over concerns about long term maintenance of the vehicles. In addition,
the up skilling of local mechanics will support local businesses, making
Harrow a centre of excellence for ULEV servicing and maintenance,
boosting the local economy.

e Amend parking policies to incentivise ULEV ownership and provide
parking discounts, for example, changing the charges for resident
permits and “pay and display” to take account of vehicle emissions.

« Enable businesses based in the borough to trial ULEVs for their fleets.
This would be restricted to cars and possibly vans, and would depend
on whether or not the business had the capacity to charge their vehicles
off-street using cables. This could include offering subsidised workplace
charging for ULEV.

¢ Implement a long term behaviour change strategy to raise awareness of
the benefits of EV and overcome any misconceptions. A package of
initiatives would be developed and would include measures such as, An
awareness campaign, partnering with Chargemaster, to promote EV
and new technology (with longer range), A pop up EV information
centre for the public, A free/discounted hire scheme for residents, test
drive opportunities using EV, Innovative promotional campaigns
involving partners.

Initial discussions have identified local mechanics to complete courses on
ULEV maintenance including utilising skills within the Council’s Depot which
is located close to the town centre. This will bring reassurance and
confidence to ULEV owners or those considering purchasing a ULEV.

Parking management policies will have to change to encourage an increase
in ULEVs. Changes will be made to establish dedicated parking bays for
ULEVs and introduce lower charging incentives for ULEVs. As part of this
process existing parking bays will be reviewed and areas identified that can
accommodate charging points.

The proposals are expected to improve air quality in Harrow town centre
which improve the quality of life for current and proposed residential
developments most of which will be car free. Many residents are expected
not to own cars and therefore there is scope to create ULEV car clubs which
would be beneficial to the area. Any opportunities to create car clubs will be
investigated through the development control process.

64



2.23

2.24

2.25

2.26

2.27

2.28

2.29

A detailed assessment of air quality before and after the implementation of
the scheme would be considered to review NO2, PM10 and CO2 levels and
demonstrate the effectiveness of the proposals.

A detailed implementation programme is now being developed by officers
and updates will be provided via the regular progress reports to TARSAP.

Electric vehicles charging infrastructure

In 2015 there were 40 registered plug-in electric vehicles in Harrow. There is
a higher take up of hybrid vehicles that do not rely on an electric charge
point, however, it is anticipated that by 2018 there are likely to be more than
100 residents with plug-in electric vehicles. While this is still a proportionately
low number of residents this is a growing market.

With the focus on air quality a priority of the Mayor it is important to ensure
that Harrow takes steps to implement the necessary charging infrastructure
for electric vehicles and demonstrate a commitment to improving air quality
in order to access potential funding streams in future. Because of the high
car ownership in the borough, and limited orbital transport networks,
encouraging the use of EV would be appropriate for Harrow.

The council supports EV provision to ensure Harrow remains a competitive
destination for visitors and businesses, as well as for residents. There are a
number of suppliers of electric vehicle charging point in the market and
Harrow has been reviewing the available options that best suit the delivery of
GULCS and satisfy commitments made in the Council’s corporate policies
including the LIP.

Following discussions earlier this year with the Portfolio Holder for
Environment, Crime and Community Safety it was agreed that the Council
signs a contract with Chargemaster as the supplier for the electric vehicle
charging infrastructure. It was considered that this option provides the most
flexible options for delivering infrastructure projects given the current levels
of investment.

Joining the Chargemaster POLAR network would link Harrow to other
locations around the UK through an established and credible network,
enabling us to fulfil corporate priorities, meet the needs of residents and
businesses, ensure that Harrow remains an attractive destination with
improved air quality, and potentially support future funding opportunities.

Section 3 - Further Information

3.1

There is no further information.

65



Section 4 - Financial Implications

4.1 An allocation of £180k over 4 years is being provided by TfL between
2016/17 and 2019/20 to implement the NoF. An allocation of £50k within the
LIP programme will support the delivery of the scheme. The total funding for
implementation will be £230k.

4.2 An allocation of £10k is provided in 2016/17.

Section 5 - Equalities implications

5.1 A programme of investment was included in the Transport Local
Implementation Plan which was approved by full Council. The LIP was
subject to an Equalities Impact Assessment where schemes were identified
as having no negative impact on any equality groups. Positive impacts of the
programme were demonstrated on some equalities groups, particularly,
women, children and people with mobility difficulties.

Section 6 - Council Priorities

6.1 The funds allocated by TfL and Harrow for transport improvements will
contribute to achieving the administration’s priorities:

e Making a difference for the vulnerable

e Making a difference for communities

¢ Making a difference for local businesses
e Making a difference for families

Section 7 - Statutory Officer Clearance

on behalf of the
Name: Jessie Man Chief Financial Officer

Date: 10/11/16

Ward Councillors notified: YES

66




Section 8 - Contact Details and Background Papers

Contact:

Barry Philips — Team Leader, Transportation
Tel: 020 8424 1649, Fax: 020 8424 7662,
E-mail: Barry.Philips@harrow.gov.uk

Background Papers:
Local Implementation Plan 2

TfL guidance
NoF bid document

67



This page is intentionally left blank

68



'e' FOR LONDON %83’,&?& )  MAYOR OF LONDON

London:
The Ultra Low
Emission Capital

Go Ultra Low City Scheme Bid




0L

Copyright

Greater London Authority
October 2015

Published by

Greater London Authority
City Hall

The Queen’s Walk

More London

London SE1 2AA

london.gov.uk
enquiries 020 7983 4100
minicom 020 7983 4458




1.

Contents

London’s Go Ultra Low City Scheme Bid

Part 1: LONDON’S BID

1.0 Why London? Unlocking the UK’s potential by investing in the capital
1.1 Changing infrastructure in residential areas

1.2 Changing infrastructure for car clubs

1.3 Charging infrastructure for commercial fleets

1.4 Neighbourhoods of the Future

23

33

41

55

Part 2: DELIVERING THE BID

Delivery milestones

How London fulfils OLEV’s criteria

Costs

Bid partners

State aid

Conclusion

74

76

78

84

86

88



¢l

PART ONE

© Office for Low Emission Vehicles

OVERVIEW

In July, London set out its vision to
become an ultra low emission vehicle
capital. London is bidding for £20
million in funding from the Office for Low
Emission Vehicles (OLEV) Go Ultra Low
City Scheme to make this vision a reality.

This bid builds on the progress made
by London’s innovative policies such

as the Congestion Charge and Low
Emission Zone and local councils’ work
to incentivise cleaner vehicles through
parking policies and by expanding
charging provision. The world’s first
Ultra Low Emission Zone, which will
come in to force in 2020, is a significant
step change in London’s ambitions.

This bid, and further complementary
bids, will help London continue on the
path to an ultra low emission future by
enabling London’s plans for a holistic
transformation of its vehicle fleets. Our
bid will create the conditions to realise
independent projections for 70,000
ultra low emission vehicles (ULEVs) to
be sold in London by 2020 and unlock
progress to an almost entirely ultra
low emission light vehicle stock by

2050. In doing so, we will deliver air
quality benefits and will be able to track
progress through our comprehensive
emissions monitoring networks and
data reporting.

London’s bid will overcome the most
profound barrier to ULEV uptake; the
availability of charging infrastructure.
The new delivery partnership for
residential charging addresses barriers
for private users, primarily the lack

of off-street parking and related
complexity of charging. It will enable car
clubs to convert their fleets, providing
vital visibility and access to vehicles
that are currently in the ‘early adopter’
stage. London’s rapid charging network
addresses the barrier to commercial
ULEV uptake by providing charging
solutions for fleets with intensive

duty cycles. We will overcome the
challenges that have prevented wider
roll out of rapid charging by finding
sites and upgrading the electricity
network. These networks will continue
to complement existing and emerging
commercial public charging networks,
such as Source London and the POLAR
network, which provide ‘top up’ charging
for private and business users.



€L

PART ONE

LONDON’S GO ULTRA LOW CITY SCHEME BID

RESIDENTIAL CHARGING:
Overcoming the barriers to allow
ULEV owners to charge at home
+ £8 million investment

* A new, sustainable delivery partnership

to provide charging solutions for ULEV
owners close to home
+ Trials of innovative charging solutions

to suit London’s different street scenes

RESIDENTIAL CHARGING

CAR CLUBS:

Enabling the transition to a

50 per cent ULEV fleet by 2025

* £4.5 million investment

+ Retrofitting charging infrastructure
into 1,000 car club bays

« ‘Smart’ charge points to enable bays
to be used for existing and emerging
models of car sharing

CAR CLUBS

COMMERCIAL FLEETS:

Unlocking ULEV use for fleets and

enabling ULEV businesses to grow

* £4 million investment

+ Expanding London’s rapid charging
network on arterial routes and across
key locations by 2020

+ Securing locations for rapid charging
‘hubs’ and investing to upgrade the
power supply

L,
=5
E§——J.

NEIGHBOURHOODS

OF THE FUTURE:

Eight borough-led, local schemes

to radically increase the uptake

of ULEVs

+ £3.5 million investment

+ A variety of geographies across the
capital to test new ideas and provide
learning for the rest of the UK

COMMERCIAL FLEETS

00o0o0oa

0o0ooooo
0o0ooooo
0o0ooooo
0o0ooooo
0o0ooooo
0oooooo
0oooooo
0o0ooooo
0o0ooooo
0o0ooooo
0o0ooooo
0o0ooooo
0o0ooooo
0oooooo
0000000



PART ONE 9

V.

LONDON’S ULTRA LOW INTERVENTIONS ACROSS
EMISSION FUTURE S THE CAPITAL

-~ -

~

Public charging networks
Privately operated charging networks
offering public access to ‘top up’ ultra
pmmao e I low emission vehicles, including open
0= o R ‘ D access on a pay as you go basis

\
L 4

1 \ 7 ~~ - BARNET N ’

]
vl . 00 . -l Car club bays
\ . . .
HARINGEY WALTHAM FOREST . v Charging infrastructure installed

REDBRIDGE \

N . N . 1 in 1,000 car club bays

HAVERING _

\ (o] '
\ - - -

)7 BRENT M \ Residential charging

7 CAMDEN ISLINGTON HECKNEY ‘ \

. . o Council-owned residential charging

BARKING AND DAGENHAM -

00 - . . .
/ o’ N /! solutions to allow ultra low emission

HILLINGDON . . ¢ I vehicle owners to charge up at home
.

TOWER HAMLETS

EALING

L 4

4 Rapid charging hubs
- A network of rapid chargers and

GREENWICH I

. . charging hubs on key arterial routes

LAMBETH i ) i
. R ¢ sexier & o in to London and strategic locations
L ¢ across the capital to unlock ultra low

< LEWISHAM /

N 2ad emission vehicle use by commercial
> operators, including taxi and private
. : hire vehicles

KINGSTON * \

UPON MERTON |
THAMES

SOUTHWARK

*

’ HOUNSLOW *

R o

~ G RICHMOND
] UPON
i THAMES

. ) --- Low Emission Zone
A PN o o ’ Operating 24 hours a day, seven days
. , | cRoYDON . a week, to encourage the most polluting

! ‘ e SUTTON

! ; . Ny heavy diesel vehicles to become cleaner

f Y ¢ T, ' O Neighbourhoods of the Future

R ' \ Y Eight community schemes to radically
j , increase the uptake of ultra low

v L ) emission vehicles

Ultra Low Emission Zone

The world’s first Ultra Low Emission
Zone operating 24 hours a day, seven
days a week from 7 September 2020
to encourage the use of newer,

Locations indicative for illustration purposes cleaner vehicles



A

PART ONE

11

1.0

Why London?
Unlocking the UK’s
potential by investing
in the capital

London is the best city in which to
realise OLEV’s ambitions. It has a
global reputation for cutting-edge
policy implementation and an
unparalleled track record of delivering
ambitious programmes on time and

to budget. London is the UK’s truly
global city and therefore the only

UK market of sufficient influence to
inspire market innovation and ensure
the whole of the UK benefits from the
economic potential offered by ULEVs.
London — “the Go Ultra Low Capital” —
would be a powerful tool for OLEV’s
marketing campaigns while also offering
experience and capacity to manage
local, targeted campaigns.



9/

PART ONE

KEY

Electric/Hybrid Transmissions
and Fuel Cells — from Automative
Supply Finder

@ Continental Engineering Services UK
@ Elektromotive

@ GKN AutoStructures

@ GKN Evo E-Drive Systems

@ Intelligent Energy

O ™™ Power

@ Magnetic Systems Technology

Original Equipment Manufacturers
1 Nissan

Toyota

Mclaren

Smith Electric Vehicles

London Taxi Company

Frazer Nash Metrocab / Multimatic
WrightBus

Alexander Dennis

0 N o a A w0 N

9 Alexander Dennis
10 Optare

NORTHERN
IRELAND

Other Suppliers

o Johnson Matthey Battery Systems
@ BMW

€ Cummins

O BAE HybriDrive

Infrastructure
@ ™™ Power
@ Air Products

€@ ssSE

Why London? Unlocking the UK’s potential by investing in the capital

SCOTLAND
o ©

EDINBURGH
8 °

10
MANCHESTER

(6]

LONDON
®

2]

4]

London has the largest market share
of ULEV sales anywhere in the UK:

in 2013, twelve per cent of all UK
hybrid and EV sales were in London.
Projections suggest that by 2020 there
could be as many as 70,000 privately
owned ULEVs sold within the capital
and by 2050 London’s light vehicle
stock could be almost entirely ultra low
emission.

Investment in London benefits other
parts of the UK. The new zero emission
capable taxi has secured £300 million
investment and jobs in Coventry, while
London’s electric single deck buses are
manufactured in Leeds. Independent
economic assessment by Ecorys shows
that high uptake of ULEVs in London

— which initial investment from OLEV
would help to realise — would result in
total net GVA for the UK of around £230
million a year by 2050, with over 3,000
net jobs created or safeguarded across
the country.



Ll

PART ONE

There are wider benefits to ULEV
uptake too. Ecorys has also calculated
the social and environmental benefits
of securing wider uptake of ULEVs

in London. This showed nearly £30
million benefit by 2025, including health
benefits due to reduced pollutant emis-

sions worth around £10 million by 2025.

London has world-leading transport
and environmental policies. It is the
only city to have both a congestion
charge and low emission zone, and will
introduce the world’s first Ultra Low
Emission Zone in 2020.

London is therefore the only UK city
with the capacity and supporting
policies already in place to secure
a step change in behaviour. London
was the first city to recognise the
powerful potential of incentives,
providing a 100 per cent discount

to the Congestion Charge and
favourable local parking policies. These
have contributed to London having a
higher market share of ULEVs than in
the UK overall.

London has used other powerful levers,
most notably the planning system.

The London Plan commits the city to
ensuring no Londoner is more than one
mile from a public charge point; that
employee car parks will offer workplace
charge points installed by business;
and requires 20 per cent of all new
development car parking spaces to
provide electric vehicle charging.

London would promote itself as the Go
Ultra Low Capital. We would work with
OLEV to use international icons such

as the New Routemaster and the black
taxi and make use of considerable
promotional capacity, including motoring

Why London? Unlocking the UK’s potential by investing in the capital

occasions such as the Regent Street
Motor Show and Formula E. London will
be able to showcase the UK as a world
leading ULEV city through networks such
as the C40 Cities Climate Leadership
Group' and the Electric Vehicles in Urban
Europe (EVUE) programme?2. London is
also keen to work in collaboration with
other successful Go Ultra Low cities

to share good practice and transfer
knowledge between cities and to other
parts of the UK.

London influences the rest of the UK.
Source London has been replicated
elsewhere and Westminster City
Council’s guidance for on-street

© Office for Low Emission Vehicles

charging has been used across the
country. London has undertaken a
comprehensive research programme,
including work coordinated by Hackney
Council into the barriers around the
ULEYV residential market. The local
visibility and credibility of London’s
councils has propelled successful local
campaigns to encourage behaviour
change, as demonstrated by smarter
travel campaigns, and this experience
will be used to drive the uptake of
ULEVs. This collective knowledge and
experience has helped to inform

the proposals in this bid and will help
bring forward innovative ideas.

' C40 is a network of the world’s megacities committed to addressing climate change.

2 London’s Cross River Partnership, a public private partnership made up of local authorities,
business organisations and other strategic agencies relevant to London, hosted the EVUE
programme, engaging with continental leaders to share best practice and knowledge.

3 Smarter Travel Sutton for example achieved a 75 per cent increase in cycle traffic



8L

PART ONE

LONDON’S DIRECTION

London’s Ultra Low Emission
Vehicle Delivery Plan sets out
guiding principles that give
confidence to businesses and
ULEV owners that London is
serious about realising its ultra
low emission future:

+ ULEVs are part of London’s
sustainable transport system:
When public transport, walking
or cycling are not feasible,
Londoners need to be able
to use ULEVs with ease and
convenience. Some areas are
better served by public transport
than others. Where there is
greater reliance on travel by
car, particularly outer London,
encouraging ULEV uptake

is an important part of local
transport strategies.

An open, fair and accessible
market offering coherence for
users: There is no ‘one size fits
all’ solution for charging and
refuelling for ULEVs and different
providers will operate in London.
There must be interoperability
between networks and open
access for relevant user groups.
The right infrastructure in the
right place, making the best use
of space: Partners in London will

form shared views on infrastructure

locations, considering flexible
options to make the best use

of space.

Incentivising early ULEV uptake:
London will offer discounts

or otherwise incentivise ultra low
or zero emission vehicles.

Why London? Unlocking the UK’s potential by investing in the capital

© Office for Low Emission Vehicles



6.

PART ONE

INNOVATION IN LONDON

FREVUE (Westminster)

Trials of electric freight vehicles to
demonstrate that they can offer a
viable alternative to diesel vehicles.

HILLINGDON

Geofencing trials

Using bus route 159 (which
includes Oxford Street) as

a test route for geofencing

to produce a geofencing
prioritisation toolkit for buses in
air quality hotspots.

Why London? Unlocking the UK’s potential by investing in the capital

LaMiLo (Camden)

BARNET

HARROW
HARINGEY

BRENT

EALING
WESTMINSTER

KENSINGTON

HOUNSLOW
LAMBETH

WANDSWORTH

RICHMOND
UPON
THAMES

KINGSTON

UPON MERTON
THAMES

SUTTON

ENFIELD

CAMDEN ISLINGTON

A scheme to increase the use of low
emission vehicles in last mile of the
delivery chain, trialling the concept for
all of London’s public sector.

WALTHAM FOREST

REDBRIDGE

HAVERING

HACKNEY

TOWER HAMLETS

BARKING AND DAGENHAM

SOUTHWARK

LEWISHAM

CROYDON

GREENWICH

BEXLEY

BROMLEY

Shoreditch Zero Emission

Network (Hackney)

A project helping businesses to work
cheaper, cleaner and greener with
exclusive member offers including free
trials of electric cars and vans, credits
for car club use and money off zero
emissions taxi fares.

ZeEUS

Investigating the effectiveness of
geofencing on three inductively-charged
diesel electric hybrid buses on Route 69
from Walthamstow to Canning Town.

Private Hire Vehicle geofencing

in City of London

370 hybrid Addison Lee vehicles will

be sent a message to switch the engine
to electric in four areas of the city.

PROJECTS ACROSS THE CAPITAL

ELIPTIC

A project assessing the feasibility of
accessing and sharing the Underground
electricity distribution network to charge
electric buses at transport hubs and bus
garages, reducing reliance on the public
electricity distribution network.

CITYLAB

London is one of seven global ‘living
laboratories’ testing different solutions
including using ULEVs to improve

city logistics.



08

PART ONE

.___““-

7

e
]
o)
i
L
0
2]
:1
B

Tri-Ra

lectric Vehicle

Why London? Unlocking the UK’s potential by investing in the capital

London’s Low Emission Zone,
Congestion Charge and forthcoming
ULEZ prove that we can coordinate
innovative policies across regional
and local government, with significant
impact. Local cross-boundary
partnerships, such as the Cross River
Partnership and WESTRANS, and
Londonwide programmes such as
Local Implementation Plans and the
Mayor’s Air Quality Fund, demonstrate
that we coordinate to make the most of
London’s governance and structures.
This bid provides a framework for

a consistent approach to charging
infrastructure across London.

By providing Go Ultra Low City Scheme
funding to London, national government
would be targeting pollution and

related health problems where they are
most severe. London’s air quality has
improved significantly in recent years
but more than one million Londoners
live in areas which exceed the legal
limits set by the European Union for
NO2 and London accounts for 49 of

the 50 roads with the UK’s highest NO2
concentrations. With 80 per cent of

all journeys made by road, increasing
ULEV uptake will be an important
component of tackling this challenge.

© Office for Low Emission Vehicles



18

PART ONE: CHAPTER ONE 23

1.1

Changing infrastructure
in residential areas

London’s bid for £8 million will secure
the provision of charging infrastructure
in residential areas. A new public sector
partnership will simplify the provision of
council-led charging infrastructure, by
overcoming the practical and structural
barriers that have held back the
/&%\ installation of charging infrastructure.
' —r It will provide customers and councils
l‘:’l = = l‘:’] with one point of contact for installing,
managing and maintaining charging
infrastructure. The new “on demand”
= = service will begin to meet the demand
IR for the estimated 36,000 vehicles
ll:ll = ll:ll without private parking that will
need access to residential charging
infrastructure by 2020. All public sector
funding for charging infrastructure in
residential areas will be channelled
through this new partnership.




¢8

PART ONE: CHAPTER ONE

THE BARRIER TO ULEV UPTAKE

Access to local, safe and reliable
charging infrastructure is a key barrier
preventing widespread uptake of ULEVs
in urban areas. In outer London 33 per
cent of households have no access to
off-street parking and this rises to 46 per
cent in inner London. Yet our research
shows that ULEV owners want to be able
to charge vehicles at or close to their
property and they do not think there are
enough charge points at the moment.

Currently, each council must address
legal requirements and design
specifications for charging and keep
abreast of changing technology.
This complexity, and a lack of technical
expertise to manage the process,
has slowed down the provision of
charging solutions. The lack of easy
options for charging ULEVs is the
single largest factor holding back
greater uptake in London.

Changing infrastructure in residential areas

Recent research led by the London
Borough of Hackney found that public
access networks, such as Source
London, are unlikely to provide the
main solution for residential charging.
It found that the provision of residential
charging lacked the commercial
viability to be driven by the current
commercial model.

© GLA

It also identified the barriers that

need to be overcome to meet demand
for residential charging. The key
considerations the research identified
that will help to determine suitable
solutions for London include electricity
distribution network capacity; parking,
including how to restrict access to EV
users and manage tension between
residents; and streetscape, considering
the visual and spatial impact of
charging facilities.



€8

PART ONE: CHAPTER ONE

LONDON’S SOLUTION

London will develop a new public
sector partnership responsible for
council-led charging infrastructure
in neighbourhood settings, such as
residential streets or in communal
parking areas in estates.

This new partnership, formed

of London’s local councils and
Transport for London, will manage

all public sector funding for residential
charging, including grant funding
from OLEV. It will have a number

of responsibilities and may contract
some of these responsibilities through
a competitive tendering process.

The new partnership will:

* Provide and manage all installations
and maintenance, coordinating all
stakeholders and processes to
agreed service standards, including
providing vital technical expertise and
capacity to manage these processes
for councils;

* Provide a single point of contact for
ULEV owners and operators that will
provide advice on what infrastructure
is suitable and available for the
customer needs, and promote the
availability of charging infrastructure;

+ Agree a design specification with
councils and ensure installations
meet those standards and analyse the
market for new ideas that meet those
design standards;

+ Develop a sustainable funding
model that in the long term funds the
installation of charging infrastructure
without the need for public subsidy;

+ Manage a membership system and
bookings, including using smart
allocation of spaces and pre-booking
apps; and

+ Manage back office functions once
infrastructure is installed, including
maintenance, to deliver a simple
and straightforward user model
in residential areas.

London’s ULEV Delivery Plan
recognised that there is no one size
fits all solution given the size and
multiple needs of the capital. This new
partnership approach will complement
London’s existing commercial
networks such as Source London

Changing infrastructure in residential areas

and POLAR. The locations for these
commercial network points mean they
predominantly meet the need to ‘top up’
while carrying out other tasks such as
shopping, rather than meeting the need
for residential charging very close

to home.

A new public sector delivery partnership
will be better able to secure councils’
support and overcome the current
barriers. It retains public control of the
parking bay, which will allow councils
to manage parking, for example to
limit dwell time in each bay and ensure
equitable access for different users.
Borough leadership will also mean

a simpler process for securing the
right locations for residential charging

© GLA

solutions. This will be complemented by
further strengthening of policies in the
new London Plan to ensure the Mayor’s
and boroughs’ statutory powers are
aligned with the new delivery model

to maximise its impact.

A single partnership with responsibility
for council-led charging infrastructure

is a powerful driver to ensure all parties
involved in charging in London sign

up to common standards to enable
interoperability, most importantly pay-as-
you-go charging which will enable users
to switch between different networks.



¥8

PART ONE: CHAPTER ONE

© GLA

Changing infrastructure in residential areas

DELIVERING SUCCESS

The maps and table below, collated
for TfL by Element Energy and WSP
Parsons Brinckerhoff, show likely
demand for on-street charging. Based
on projections of ULEV uptake, the
tables show the number of electric
vehicles that will require residential
charging. The maps illustrate the
geographic distribution of demand for
residential charging taking into account
the availability of private, off-street
parking which is more limited in high
density areas.

TABLE 1

This scale of demand illustrates

the increasingly urgent need to find

a solution to increase the delivery

of residential ULEV charging
infrastructure. The new partnership
will begin this process by providing
approximately 1,225 points by 2020
with funding from OLEV. Additional
funding will be sought through

other funding schemes (such as EU
innovation funds) and match funding
(such as Local Implementation

Plan, Section106 and Community
Infrastructure Levy priorities) to ensure
that it can deliver infrastrutcure quickly
enough to meet demand. In the longer
term, this will establish an operating
model that can become self-sustaining.
A breakdown of the estimated costs
for London’s bid is set out in part

two of the bid document.

Electric vehicles requiring on-street charging in residential

areas in 2020 and 2025

2020 2025

Number | % Number | %

EVs charged on-street | 36,000 |61 150,000 | 59
EVs charged off-street | 24,000 |39 104,000 | 41




G8

PART ONE: CHAPTER ONE Changing infrastructure in residential areas @

GEOGRAPHIC SPREAD
OF DEMAND FOR ON-STREET
CHARGING INFRASTRUCTURE

2020 Residential Combined Vehicles
(Car, Van, Taxi) Charged On Street
High BEV Scenario by MSOA

A number of councils have also
provided information about their local
‘ ') 4 priorities for residential charging
7‘@3* *.. ! 5 through the Neighbourhood of the
o )ﬁa‘: iﬁf}‘%“"’% %‘&’J ‘ i‘ﬁ“‘ / Future process. These indicative
&a& 4‘4;“; )1"‘0)“ V ‘ locations give confidence that councils
A G S v \””?

want to identify locations within their
—w‘ i communities. This information will
LEEEEND)
5 ;vq;f

inform discussions with councils and
private landowners as this infrastructure
is rolled out. Increased provision of
residential charging infrastructure

is critical to deliver many councils’
aspirations for the transformation

of these areas.

% ‘%V T A ‘”t
oty

u)‘-.\ 7%

The funding available will enable

a number of different technological
approaches to be tested and delivered,
ranging from lamp post charging,

local hubs and, in the future,

inductive charging.

Key
London MSOA

Bl 440
B 41-80
B 81-120

121 - 160
161 - 200

- River Thames



PART ONE: CHAPTER TWO

33

1.2

Charging infrastructure
for car clubs

Car club operators in London have
committed to increasing the proportion
of ULEVs in car club fleets to 50 per
cent within ten years. This bid will
provide £4.5 million funding to councils
to install charging infrastructure in up
to 1,000 car club bays to support car
clubs to realise this ambition.



.8

PART ONE: CHAPTER TWO

THE BARRIER TO ULEV UPTAKE

London has the bulk of the UK’s car
club market, with over 80 per cent of
car club members and 70 per cent

of car club vehicles. A number of car
clubs and different operating models
are currently established and emerging
in London, with other companies
interested in expanding to the capital.
London’s Car Club Strategy recognises
the three main types of car clubs:
round-trip; fixed one-way and floating
one-way. The round trip model has
operated in London for over ten years,
while newer one-way models have

gained traction in other European cities.

Some councils are supportive of these
new models of car sharing, allowing car
club operators to explore one-way car
sharing models in parts of the capital.

Car club operators are proud to be
seen as a “green” transport option and
are keen to remain in the forefront of
clean vehicle technology. Currently,
around 11 per cent of London’s car club
fleet is ULEV. In London’s Ultra Low
Emission Vehicle Delivery Plan, car
club operators committed to increasing
the proportion of ULEVs in their fleet to
50 per cent within ten years.

Including electric vehicles in car club
fleets in London could help ‘normalise’
electric vehicles by making them
visible, desirable and accessible to a
much wider audience than is currently
the case. Carplus, the umbrella

body for car clubs, reported positive
experiences of electric vehicle use in
car clubs: “Around one in five [survey
respondents] had tried either an electric
or hybrid car club vehicle. Of those who
had experienced these vehicles, over
three quarters had a ‘good’ or ‘very
good’ experience.”

The ability to access charging
infrastructure is a challenge for car
clubs. It has been difficult to meet the
high upfront costs involved in installing
charge points: operators have found it
difficult to access grants from OLEV,
while councils have been reluctant

to pick up the costs for the exclusive
benefit of car clubs. Network reliability
and uncertainty around costs and
access to privately-operated charging
networks has led to uncertainty for car
clubs and restricted uptake of ULEVs
in the fleet.

Charging infrastructure for car clubs

© GLA



88

PART ONE: CHAPTER TWO

CASE STUDY

London Borough of Hounslow/ Zipcar

Zipcar is a car club that has operated
in London since 2004 (originally as
Streetcar). It now has over 1,500
vehicles across the capital, including
five electric and 95 hybrid vehicles.

As well as offering individual
memberships, Zipcar offers corporate
car share services to businesses

in London.

One of its customers is the London
Borough of Hounslow Council, which
currently has ten Zipcar vehicles
available to staff. Hounslow Council
appointed Zipcar to provide

a corporate car-share service for
council employees to use when it’s
necessary to travel by car to fulfil
certain business commitments.

Jaspal Kharay, an employee of the
council, regularly books Zipcar’s
Vauxhall Ampera, a range-extended
electric car. “I book it whenever | can
as it’s reassuring to know that local
journeys are zero-emission” says
Jaspal. “I hadn’t driven an electric car
before, but | found the experience to be
quieter, smoother and a more relaxing
drive than that of a conventional car”.
Jaspal’s experience demonstrates the
value of electric vehicles in car club
fleets, which can provide drivers the
opportunity to try out these vehicles.
Jaspal says he would “recommend
everyone to try driving electric if they
can, as they are ideal for short journeys
in the local built up environment”,
making them the perfect vehicle to use
in the capital.

Charging infrastructure for car clubs




68

PART ONE: CHAPTER TWO

LONDON’S SOLUTION

OLEV’s funding will enable the new
residential delivery partnership
(proposed in the previous section)

to install and manage charging
infrastructure in car club parking
bays. Car clubs and councils will
make decisions about those bays
most suitable to be allocated as
electric vehicle car club bays. Car club
operators are able to share trip data
with councils to illustrate demand

and how vehicles are used, to help
inform decisions about those vehicles
most likely to be suited to conversion
to electric vehicle.

This delivery partnership will ensure
that councils retain ownership and
sovereignty of the public asset (parking
bay and charging infrastructure) and
the flexibility to operate the bay in ways
that suit the local population.

As the car club market develops and
new models emerge, councils will also
have the ability to use these assets to
provide for new forms of car sharing

where these are locally supported.

As is the case currently, councils will
determine which models they want to
support in their boroughs according to
their wider transport strategy.

We anticipate that ‘smart’ charge points
will be installed to enable flexibility and
inter-operability between networks, car
club operators and different models.
Effective ‘back office’ functions that help
provide an integrated service, such as

a charge point booking service, will be
central to enabling this. This integration
will also enable usage of charge points
to be maximised and will ensure the best
value for money. Therefore car club
operators will have a role to play in
developing these management systems
and may want to work together to
maximise efficiency of this infrastructure
and realise the opportunities of using

it in new ways.

Charging infrastructure for car clubs

DELIVERING SUCCESS

London’s Car Club Strategy aims to
deliver a million members by 2025,

with a ratio of 100 members per vehicle.

This means that 5,000 new ULEVs
could be bought in to the car club fleet
by 2025.

This funding will allow up to 1,000 car
club bays to be fitted with charging
infrastructure, a positive start to
supporting the longer-term ambitions
to 2025. Engagement with the car club
industry demonstrates there will be
sufficient demand from the market for
this level of infrastructure, managed
as proposed.

© Office for Low Emission Vehicles



PART ONE: CHAPTER THREE 41

1.3

Charging infrastructure
for commercial fleets

06

An accessible and reliable rapid
charging network will be vital to unlock
the potential growth in ULEV use by
commercial fleets with intensive duty
cycles. A £4 million investment will help
the network to grow beyond currently
funded plans towards the 300 rapid
charge points calculated to be required
by 2020.




16

PART ONE: CHAPTER THREE

Charging infrastructure for ultra low emission fleets

43

THE BARRIER TO ULEV UPTAKE

London’s commercial fleets, including
taxis, private hire fleets and car club
operators, form a considerable proportion
of the vehicles on street in London. Light
commercial vehicles make up 12 per cent
of London’s road traffic and up to 21 per
cent during the morning peak in central
London. Taxis make up 18 per cent of
traffic in central London and private hire
vehicles around eight per cent. These
commercial vehicles tend to operate high
mileages and have intensive duty cycles.
To be able to switch to ULEVs they will
require access to rapid charging in order
to maximise productivity.

Rapid charge points can charge
a vehicle battery considerably faster
than standard charging, delivering

an 80 per cent charge in 20-30 minutes.

They are ideally suited to high mileage
urban fleet duty cycles. Research

and stakeholder engagement has
identified three possible use cases for
rapid charging for commercial fleets:

+ Charging for depot-based vehicles
which can generally charge overnight
but may need to top-up during the
day, especially those with higher
daily mileage.

+ Charging for fleets that are not depot

based, such as private hire, where

drivers take small commercial vehicles

home between shifts but may not be
able to install charge points at home
and would therefore require access
to rapid charging while working.
Organisations which work in London
but are based a significant distance
(perhaps up to 80 miles) outside the
capital, which can potentially run
electric vehicles by topping up from
a rapid charge point on their way in
and out of central London.

Meeting the demands of these

duty cycles presents challenging
power requirements. London is
already working closely with OLEV,
UK Power Networks, Ofgem and
the Department of Energy & Climate
Change to understand how best

to approach this issue in delivering
a network of rapid charge points. This
includes identifying suitable locations
with minimal cost implications.

© GLA



c6

PART ONE: CHAPTER THREE

© GLA

Charging infrastructure for ultra low emission fleets

45

CASE STUDY
eConnect cars

Alistair Clarke is the founder and
director of eConnect cars, a chauffer-
driven car company with an entirely
electric vehicle fleet. The company
has been operational in London for
18 months and now has 25 business-
class electric vehicles in its fleet.

eConnect cars carefully manages its
fleets to realise the benefits of electric
vehicles: “Each vehicle averages
around 100 miles a day. It takes more
management to do that driving in an
electric vehicle, but our drivers and
customers really enjoy the experience
of an electric vehicle.”

The main challenge for eConnect cars
has been the availability of charging
infrastructure. “Because of the mileage
we need our drivers to cover, we rely on
rapid chargers” says Alistair. eConnect
cars even invested in its own rapid
charger for its central London office

to ensure drivers would always be able
to access a charge point. “The lack of
public rapid chargers places a limit on
our ability to grow so I’'m really pleased
to be able to support London’s plans
for a network of rapid chargers across
the capital.”



€6

PART ONE:

CHAPTER THREE

©Amec Foster Wheeler

Artists impression of a future
charging station in London
Locations and interventions
indicative for illustrative purposes

Charging infrastructure for ultra low emission fleets

47




v6

PART ONE: CHAPTER THREE

London’s bid has the support of a range
of companies and commercial partners
across the city, demonstrating the scale
of enthusiasm for ultra low emission
vehicles across the capital. A selection
of the companies pledging their support
have told us:

“We’re supporting London’s bid
because...

“...it is essential that London gets
as much help as possible to improve
its air quality. Government funding
is necessary to support the work the
Mayor has already done, particularly
the proposed Ultra Low Emission
Zone initiatives. In our view London
would represent the best value to
government by way of funding and
support.” The Licensed Private Hire
Car Association

“... we support London’s aim to
become Europe’s ultra low capital
city knowing that it has the capacity
and integrity to bring together a large
group of influential stakeholders

in order to achieve its target of
drastically increasing its ULEZ fleet
across several sectors.” Car2Go

“...Gnewt Cargo as a large electric
vehicle user believes in a zero
emission future.” Gnewt Cargo

Charging infrastructure for ultra low emission fleets

49

“...London has the scale and openness
to change, to transform, its vehicle fleet
and reduce emissions to improve the
health of its population.”

Heathrow Airport LTD

“...we need a cleaner city to live in.”
Powerday PLC

“...electric vehicle charging is important
for the development of flexible car
charging.” DriveNow

“...the switch to electric vehicles
is the logical step towards cleaner air
in London.” eConnect Cars

“...we need it to realise the potential
for zero emission capable taxis and the
future London air quality objectives”
The London Taxi Company

“...we need to innovate and develop
commercially robust LEV solutions in
meeting the common goals of business
and our environment.” Veolia

“...the funding is necessary to
stimulate momentum in the change
from fossil fuels to ULEV’s” TNT

“...it is a great opportunity to innovate
and solve the air quality issue
essential for London’s future.”

Pie Mapping

“...the future of London’s air quality
is very important.”
Kilnbridge Construction Service

“...ultra low emission is an admirable
and necessary objective and we want
to be part of it.”

O’Donovan Waste Disposal Ltd

“...it will deliver necessary action
to improve quality of life.”
Stratford Original

“...as the premier capital city of the
world, London must be seen at the
forefront of low emission technology
and development.” Millbrook



G6

PART ONE: CHAPTER THREE

LONDON’S SOLUTION

London has funded plans to install
150 rapid charge points in the Capital
by 2018 to meet the charging needs
of commercial fleets. Beyond this,
300 rapid charge points are likely

be needed by 2020 to service zero
emission capable taxis, private hire
vehicles, other commercial vehicles and
car clubs. This bid will help London to
grow the network by providing funding
for up to 100 additional charge points.

TfL recently started early market
engagement through a Prior Information
Notice to identify the best way of
deploying charging infrastructure to
support the electrification of taxi, private
hire, car clubs and other commercial
fleets. This indicated considerable
interest in London’s plans. Following

a period of market engagement, TfL

will issue an Official Journal of the
European Union (OJEU) invitation

to deliver a network early in 2016.

This delivery model will be used to
deliver the additional charge points for
commercial fleets that OLEV funding
will provide.

Suppliers highlighted that securing sites
for charge points, the availability of
sufficient power for rapid charging and
the prohibitive cost of electricity grid
upgrades are barriers to the growth of
commercial markets. To overcome these
issues TfL will engage with potential
charge point hosts and UK Power

Networks to identify suitable locations
for the deployment of rapid charging
infrastructure. TfL will pursue a hub
model, where multiple charge points are
installed at a single strategic location
with the provision of complementary
services such as toilets and wifi. This
was highlighted as the preferred model
for charge point deployment over single
on-street charge points and confirms
TfL’s research findings.

Accessible and reliable infrastructure
will go some way to making the switch
to ULEVs possible for businesses.
Commercial businesses also need to be
convinced about the appropriateness of
these vehicles for their operations.

As a starting point, in September

the London’s bid partners hosted

an industry event to discuss the
potential for ULEVs in London’s
commercial fleets which helped to
identify businesses’ priorities and
concerns. Later this year, TfL will
launch a Low Emission Commercial
Vehicle Programme to accelerate the
development, supply and uptake

of low emission commercial vehicles.

The public sector has an important
role to play in demonstrating the value
of ULEVs in fleets and showing that
London is a suitable environment

for these vehicles. London’s public
sector fleets are already rising to this
challenge: London’s world leading
“‘green bus” programme will see a trial

Charging infrastructure for ultra low emission fleets

51

. [
by cleaner Biris et
your butiness  [weom

Rapid Electric Vehicle Charger

This fﬂCHity‘ can charge your vehicle in under 30 minutes

HHackrey

of the world’s first purpose-built electric
double deck bus this year and three
bus routes operated entirely by electric
buses in 2016. The London Fire Brigade
has plans to convert all of its support
cars to electric by 2016. Funding
secured by OLEV will be available to
public sector partners to install rapid
charging infrastructure where this would
unlock the conversion of their own or
their contractors’ fleets.

As major vehicle operators in London,
the public sector can stimulate the
uptake of ULEVs through our own
procurement processes and share
knowledge with other organisations.

In the coming months, TfL will look to
establish a new procurement framework
for electric vehicle charge points, to be

......

© GLA

in place in 2016. This would be open
to a wide range of suppliers, enabling
a simplified purchasing process

and realising the financial benefits
delivered by bulk procurement.



PART ONE: CHAPTER THREE

96

DELIVERING SUCCESS

The further funding in this bid would
progress the planned rapid network.
It will increase it from the 150 to be
provided through funding secured
through the National Infrastructure
Plan towards the 300 charge points
that research has shown will be
required by 2020 to support
commercial fleets.

TfL’s early engagement with industry
partners indicates confidence

in the market and the appetite for
private investors to provide investment

to develop the commercial charging
network. This is likely to secure
additional points to meet demand and
will provide the capacity to grow the
network as required once initial barriers
of securing sites and grid capacity have
been overcome.

TfL commissioned the Energy Saving
Trust to understand movements of
possible rapid charging fleet users,

by analysing data from more than
2,000 vehicles operated by 26 fleets.
This fleet mapping exercise identified
those routes which could be completed
using a suitable ULEV and where

Charging infrastructure for ultra low emission fleets

53

o

250 TRANSPORT
LT FOR LONDON
|...|.-.".-: .'.III-IE'.‘ “lL".Ii -'.'-

‘ALL ELECTRIC VEHICLE’

\ Part of the new Transport for London electric vehicle fleet /

rapid charge points should be located
to support the use of these vehicles.
The analysis found that installing rapid
charge points at 85 locations within

the M25 would support the acquisition
of over 1,900 plug-in vehicles by 20
organisations out of the 26 participants.
This gives an indication of the impact of
strategic interventions and the potential
number of vehicles that could be
changed to ULEV across the far larger
number of fleet operators in the capital.

A number of councils have also
provided information about their local
priorities for rapid charging for

© TfL

commercial use through the
Neighbourhoods of the Future process.
These indicative locations demonstrate
the enthusiasm to support businesses
to convert to ULEVs and gives con-
fidence that councils want to identify
locations within their communities.
Increased provision of rapid charging
infrastructure is critical to deliver

many councils’ aspirations for the
transformation of these areas. They
align well with the locations identified
by TfL’s research and will inform
discussions with councils and private
landowners as this infrastructure is
rolled out.



26

PART ONE: CHAPTER FOUR 55

1.4

Neighbourhoods
of the Future

London’s Neighbourhoods of the Future
are borough-led, area-based schemes
offering a package of ambitious
measures to radically increase the
uptake of Ultra Low Emission Vehicles
in a specific high-opportunity area. The
schemes build on London boroughs’
[— : experience delivering programmes
= = | such as the Mayor’s Air Quality Fund
and mini-Hollands, which deliver
local interventions to help progress
London’s collective ambitions. They
combine the enhanced infrastructure
secured through the rest of this bid
with awareness raising and behaviour
change measures. These communities
will provide for and prioritise ultra low
emission vehicles to help normalise
ULEVs. A £3.5 million investment will
support eight Neighbourhoods of
the Future across the capital.




86

PART ONE: CHAPTER FOUR Neighbourhoods of the future (57)

©Amec Foster Wheeler

Artists impression of the Neighbourhood
of the Future measures proposed in
Croydon and Sutton

Locations and interventions indicative
for illustrative purposes



66

PART ONE: CHAPTER FOUR

THE BARRIER TO ULEV UPTAKE

London’s bid will overcome some

of the fundamental infrastructure
challenges to provide a varied
network across London to meet

the different requirements of vehicle
owners. It is, though, more than
availability of infrastructure that

has held back London’s ULEV market.
Our proposals for Neighbourhoods

of the Future (NoF) will complement
and accelerate the rest of this bid.
The schemes provide a balanced
programme of infrastructure provision
and behaviour change interventions.

The other elements of the bid will
provide the foundation for communities
transitioning to a low emission future.
Councils that submitted NoF proposals

© Office for Low Emission Vehicles

have shown considerable appetite to
get infrastructure in place, for residents,
car clubs and commercial operators.
Each NoF included details of its priority
locations for this enabling infrastructure,
which will be needed to support the
ambitious community interventions in
these neighbourhoods. NoF projects
and policies will maximise the benefits
of this infrastructure by addressing more
challenging issues that have restricted
ULEV take up: winning confidence;
changing behaviours; and designing

a system that favours ULEV users.

London has been described as a city of
villages. Each neighbourhood has its
own character and transport challenges.
Coordinating measures and targeting
funding within smaller geographic

areas will help to create exemplar

Neighbourhoods of the future

areas that can showcase the benefits
of ultra low emission vehicles as part
of a sustainable transport package.
These high profile examples can have
a powerful normalising effect and help
generate public interest in ULEVs by:

* using council powers to take
ambitious steps and make difficult
decisions, such as parking
restrictions, preferential access
and changes to loading and
servicing to create a favourable
atmosphere for ULEV owners.

The planning system will also be
used to build in and prioritise
supporting charging infrastructure.

* involving the local community by
working with partners such as local
businesses, schools, hospitals, the
third sector and residents. NoFs will
build confidence that ULEVs are
suited to a variety of uses and will
explain the community-wide benefits
of ULEV uptake.

+ engaging businesses such as car
manufacturers/suppliers, potential
sponsors and grid distribution
companies to make the NoF
a reality. NoFs will be supported
to test new ideas so they can come
to market sooner.

+ securing match funding to help secure

transformational change in each
community, so that the opportunities
presented by ULEV take up are
maximised and tied to wider transport
projects in the local area.

The level of enthusiasm for NoFs

is indicated by the number of
applications received. This shows the
considerable appetite across London
to realise the benefits of ULEVs for
local communities. We also know that
area-based schemes are supported
by industry. BMW'’s Centre for

Urban Mobility is keen to build on its
experience working with German cities
through a small number of projects in
London. It has expressed an interest
in supporting London’s NoFs and

will offer its toolkit and experience to
learn what would work in individual
neighbourhoods in London.



00T

PART ONE: CHAPTER FOUR

Hammersmith and Fulham
Hammersmith Broadway

Zero Emission Zone

A Zero Emission Zone in the
Hammersmith Broadway
Commercial district, with support
to local businesses to adapt

to the zone by becoming lower
emission producers.

Harrow

Harrow @

Harrow on the Hill

Low Emission Zone

A localised Low Emission
Zone in Harrow on the

Hill, including access and
parking management to give
preferential access to ULEVs.

Heathrow Airport

Ultra low emission HGV trial
A ‘proof of concept’ pilot to
atrial ULEV HGVs and produce
a business case for

other businesses.

Richmond

Delivering and servicing plans
Freight project in five areas, working
with local business improvement
districts to develop neighbourhood
Delivery and Servicing Plans

that will promote consolidation and
coordination, educate businesses
and prioritise ULEVs.

BRENT

HILLINGDON

EALING

HOUNSLOW

o

RICHMOND
UPON
THAMES

KINGSTON
UPON
THAMES

o

BARNET

CAMDEN

WESTMINSTER

KENSINGTON

WANDSWORTH

MERTON

SUTTON

Neighbourhoods of the future

ENFIELD

o

HARINGEY WALTHAM FOREST

REDBRIDGE

ISLINGTON HACKHEY

° BARKING AND DAGENHAM

| NEWHAM

Haringey

Wood Green High Road
transformation

Transformation of facilities around
Wood Green High Road, combined
with partnerships to increase
awareness and to offer promotions
that will encourage ULEV take up.

HAVERING

Hackney

CITY TOWER HAMLETS

SOUTHWARK

GREENWICH

LAMBETH BEXLEY

LEWISHAM

BROMLEY

CROYDON

Locations indicative for illustration purposes

City Fringe

“Electric Streets”

An ‘electric streets’ concept
on the City Fringe, to adapt
all highway infrastructure

and facilities to cater primarily
for electric vehicles.

Islington

Archway emissions-based
traffic restrictions
Emissions-based traffic restrictions
in Archway town centre, centred
on high level trip generators.

Croydon and Sutton

Freight consolidation

A joint project to introduce a freight
consolidation centre and to test ‘virtual’
parking bays to prioritise access

for deliveries made by ULEVs.



10T

PART ONE: CHAPTER FOUR

CASE STUDY
Heathrow Airport

Heathrow Airport is the gateway

to London. It provides an ideal
opportunity to demonstrate the scale
of our ambitions to the world and
can showcase the potential of ultra
low emission vehicles to its 73.4
million passengers a year. Heathrow
Airport Limited is a key partner to
delivering this bid and a demonstrator
of the scale of ambition for London’s
Neighbourhoods of the Future.

Heathrow already provides incentives
for ultra low emission buses, taxis and
charging infrastructure in its car parks
as part its plans to create the world’s
first zero emission operations airport.
It is committing that nearly all 8,000 of

its airside vehicles will be zero emission

by 2025 and as part of its five-year

Neighbourhoods of the future

business plan Heathrow is committing
£5 million to the provision of charging
infrastructure. The operating usage
patterns for vehicles at Heathrow,
combined with the small distances
they need to travel, mean their fleets
are excellent early adopters. Similarly,
the controlled airside environment
makes it a safe space to trial new and
emerging technologies like dynamic
inductive charging.

This hugely ambitious programme
will need coordinated support from
OLEV, GLA, TfiL and relevant London
boroughs. Funding will be provided
to Heathrow to install rapid charging
infrastructure for taxis and to provide
further support for electric buses.
This bid will also provide £100,000

to support a trial of ultra low emission
HGVs, including electric, hybrid electric
and hydrogen, for last mile delivery
from the Heathrow Consolidation Centre
to the airport.

Providing proof of concept for ultra
low emission HGVs in the Heathrow
operational environment is vital to
enabling the conversion of a significant
number of larger vehicles currently
used as part of airside operations so
that Heathrow can achieve its 8,000
vehicle target. The potential impact

of this investment demonstrates the
multiplier effect that relatively small
amounts of OLEV funding can deliver
and why a targeted local approach can
pay dividends.



c0T

PART ONE: CHAPTER FOUR

©Amec Foster Wheeler

Artists impression of the
Neighbourhood of the Future
measures proposed in Hackney.
Locations and interventions
indicative for illustrative purposes

Neighbourhoods of the future




€0t

PART ONE: CHAPTER FOUR

CASE STUDY
Gnewt Cargo

London’s councils and businesses
have shown appetite to address

the barriers preventing wider uptake
of ULEVs in commercial operations.
Freight consolidation is one way
this ambition is being progressed

in Neighbourhoods of the Future
and the approach is already working
in the capital.

Gnewt Cargo is an award-winning,
FORS accredited, last mile logistics
company operating in the central

London congestion charge zone using a
fully electic fleet of over a 100 vehicles.

Over the last year Gnewt Cargo has
grown over 150 per cent (and 50 per
cent year on year growth previously)

Neighbourhoods of the future

"N

gnewt cqrg&
S ({1

and has set-up a second major Central

London site this year. It now delivers
on average between 5000 to 20,000
parcels daily into central London.

Its vehicles are sourced direct from
large and small manufacturers alike.
In 2014 Gnewt Cargo took receipt of
a further 55 electric Renault Kangoos
ZE’s, the largest commercial EV

purchase Renault has ever had in the
UK. Gnewt Cargo has also recently
procured a further six Nissan ENV200,
the latest commercial EV on the market.

Its operational environmental impact
is measured through independent
assessment which found Gnewt Cargo
cut CO? emitted per parcel by 62 per
cent on like for like deliveries.

© GNEWT



0T

PART ONE: CHAPTER FOUR

LONDON’S SOLUTION

The funding provided to NoFs will
implement innovative proposals that
would be challenging without this
additional funding. The NoF process
has highlighted these councils’
priorities for charging infrastructure.
This information will be used as part
of the planning process for rolling out
infrastructure in these areas, which
will be an important first step in the
transformation of these communities.

Over the summer, London’s bid
partners ran a competition to determine
the locations of these trailblazing
communities. The wider package

of measures in each NoF has been
tailored to that area according to its
circumstance and includes:

+ a joint project between the London
boroughs of Croydon and Sutton,
to introduce a freight consolidation
centre and to test ‘virtual’ parking
bays to prioritise access for deliveries
made by ULEVs;

Neighbourhoods of the future

+ a freight project by the London
Borough of Richmond upon
Thames, working with local business
improvement districts to develop
neighbourhood Delivery and Servicing
Plans that will promote consolidation
and coordination, educate businesses
and prioritise ULEVs.

+ emissions based traffic restrictions
in Archway town centre (Islington)
centred on high level trip generators.

+ a Zero Emission Zone in the
Hammersmith Broadway commercial
district, with support to local
businesses to adapt to the zone by
becoming lower emission producers.

+ an ‘electric streets’ concept on the
City Fringe of Hackney, to adapt all
highway infrastructure and facilities
to cater primarily for electric vehicles.

+ transformation of facilities around
Wood Green High Road in Haringey,
combined with partnerships to
increase awareness and to offer
promotions that will encourage
ULEV take up.

+ a localised Low Emission Zone in
Harrow on the Hill, including access
and parking management to give
preferential access to ULEVs.

+ a ‘proof of concept’ pilot at
Heathrow Airport to trial electric
HGVs and produce a business case
for other businesses.

London’s Neighbourhoods of the
Future demonstrate a particular
appetite to work with businesses and
these schemes are consistent with the
aspirations of businesses. Through our
business engagement event, carried
out in developing this bid, London’s
businesses told us they want schemes
through which:

+ local councils use local policy
measures, such as priority loading,
to incentivise ULEV uptake among
businesses and freight operators.

* micro-consolidation is enabled to
promote the use of ULEVs for last
mile deliveries, particularly given the
lack of heavier ULEVs on the market.



PART ONE: CHAPTER FOUR

124 )

3

'E
=
|-
| o
-

© Office for Low Emission Vehicles

Neighbourhoods of the future

DELIVERING SUCCESS

Though focused on particular locations,
NoFs will act as exemplars to other
parts of London and the rest of the UK.
In choosing NoF locations, London

has consciously sought to ensure

a spread of geographies that will help
to make the lessons learned as
applicable to other parts of the UK

as possible. London’s NoFs will take
place in the following geographies:

+ Town centres

+ QOut-of-town industrial and
construction zones

+ Transport hubs, including an
international destination

* Regeneration areas of housing
growth and economic development

NoFs will provide invaluable case
studies that will link these projects to
other elements of this bid. For example,
by working with local businesses, the
lessons from NoFs can be shared with
other companies to influence their
activities. These examples could be
utilised as part of the fleet aspects

of London’s bid. Where NoFs include
development and regeneration areas,
planning guidance that goes beyond
existing national policies can help
shape future provision of infrastructure
and provide replicable examples
across the UK.

NoFs provide useful test grounds for
innovative ideas as they have already
shown commitment to innovation

and progress. Therefore innovative
infrastructure solutions could be tested
in NoFs with a view to being a more
widespread solution used in other
elements of London’s bid.



TTTTTTT

2.0

Delivering the bid



LOT

PART TWO

Delivering the bid @

DELIVERY MILESTONES

These delivery milestones are indicative
and based on what the London bidding
partners currently consider to be

the best approach to deliver of all
of the elements of London’s bid.
These are subject to negotiation
with OLEYV, following its judgment
on the winning cities.

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Q3 Q4 | o1 | a2 | a3 | a4 | a1 | @2 | a3 | o4 Ql | a2 | a3 | a4 | a1 | a2 | a3 | a4 | o1t | @2 | a3 | 4 | a1 | @2 | a3 | o4 Ql | @2 | a3 | a4 | a1 |
117 Sep '15
OLEV DELIVERY MILESTONES w v
WHOLE BID w» v

Bids submitted ¢ 01 Oct'15
Decision announced; MOU negotiated ¢ 01 Dec '15
Funding comes on stream ¢ 01 Apr '16
Annual progress report published ¢ 01 Apr'17
Annual progress report published ¢ 01 Apr'18
Annual progress report published ¢ 01 Apr'19
Project completion report submitted to OLEV ¢ 01 Apr '20

RESIDENTIAL CHARGING / CAR CLUBS w v

New ‘shadow’ delivery vehicle established ¢ 01 Jan '16

Joint TfL and borough team in place ¢ 01 Feb '16

Specification of requirements for new delivery partner mmmm 31 Mar '16
Identification and prioritisation of potential parking spaces s 30 Sep '16

OJEU notice published ¢ 01 Mar '16

New delivery vehicle gains legal standing, budget transferred ¢ 01 Apr '16

Pre Qualification Questionnaire issued ¢ 01 Apr '16
Inivtation To Tender issued ¢ 01 Jun '16
Bids evaluated by joint TfL & borough team ¢ 01 Sep '16
Partner contracts awarded ¢ 01 Oct '16
New delivery models commences ¢ 01 Nov '16
Delivery of charging solutions e 01 Apr '20

COMMERCIAL FLEETS w
OJEU ¢ 01Jan '16
Contract Award ¢ 01 Jul '16
Installations Start ¢ 01 Jan '17
75 Charge Points ¢ 01 Jan '18
150 Charge Points ¢ 01 Dec '18

300 Charge points ¢ 01 Apr '20

NEIGHBOURHOODS OF THE FUTURE w v

MOUs negotiated with each of the NOF boroughs ¢ 01 Jan '16

Funding comes on stream ¢ 01 Apr '16
Planning engagement and design of NoFs complete ¢ 01 Dec '16
Implementation of NoF’s ms 01 Apr '20




80T

PART TWO

DPS TABLE HOW OLEV CRITERIA IS BEING FULFILLED

ULEV uptake

Air quality

Exemplar status

Summary

London’s bid will help to unlock the adoption
of 70,000 ULEVs in the capital by 2020, on
the way to having 225,000 by 2025. It will
help London to realise an almost entirely
ULEYV light vehicle stock by 2050, by
securing a sustainable model for installation,
management and funding of infrastructure.

To secure significant air quality
improvements in the UK, the Government
must support London’s bid. More than one
million Londoners live in areas which exceed
the EU legal limits and London accounts

for 49 of the 50 roads with the highest NO2
concentrations in the UK. Independent
assessments put the economic value of the
potential health benefits of our bid at nearly
£10 million by 2025.

As part of an established global transport
community, London can showcase these
innovative proposals through networks such

as the C40 Cities Climate Leadership Group.

London will use TfL’s role as an advisor to
the European Commission and relationships
with major European cities to share learning.

Charging infrastructure
in residential areas

Projections show that up to 150,000
electric vehicles without private parking
will need access to charging by 2025.
The proposed public sector delivery
partnership will unlock the delivery of
charging infrastructure in residential
settings to establish a sustainable model
to begin to meet this demand.

The proposed public sector delivery
partnership to unlock ULEV ownership for
drivers without access to private parking
could drive the uptake of ULEVs. If high
uptake projections are reached this would
result in NOx savings of approximately
135T in 2020 and 360T in 2025.

The proposed public sector delivery
partnership could be replicated in other
parts of the UK. It will provide a model for
a user charging to secure a sustainable
future for residential charging.

Delivering the bid

Charging infrastructure
for car clubs

This funding will allow for
retro-fitting up to 1,000
existing car club bays,
enabling at least 1,000 car
club vehicles to become
ultra low emission vehicles.

Converting 1,000 car club
vehicles to ULEVs would
result in NOx savings of
between 3.6-6.9 T.

London leads the UK’s car
club market, with over 80 per
cent of car club members
and 70 per cent of car

club vehicles. Successful
conversion of London’s fleet
to ULEVs will drive progress
across the UK.

Charging infrastructure
for commercial fleets

300 rapid charge points are
likely be needed by 2020.
This funding will secure up
to 100 additional points over
and above the 150 TfL has
funded to 2018, towards

the 2020 requirement.

Supporting the uptake of
ULEVs in these key fleets
would lead to NOx savings
of approximately 240T from
Taxis, 35T from PHVs and
25T from vans.

London’s rapid charging
network will enable London’s
businesses to demonstrate
the value and viability of
increased usage of ULEVs
in fleet duty cycles.

Neighbourhoods
of the Future

NoFs will accelerate the
uptake of ULEVs in chosen
locations and provide
exemplars for other areas
of London and the UK

to follow.

Boroughs have identified
NoF locations in key air
quality hotspots.
Accelerated uptake of
ULEVs in hotspot locations
are part of the solution to
achieve earlier compliance
with EU limit values.

London has consciously
sought to ensure that
NoFs include a spread
of geographies to help to
make the lessons learned
applicable to other parts
of the UK. Heathrow
sees significant volumes
of passengers and thus
provides an extremely
valuable ‘shop window’
and promotional tool

to international visitors.



60T

PART TWO

Innovation

Link to other schemes

Monitoring

Summary

This bid combines unprecedented policy
innovation, technical innovation and delivery
innovation. The proposals are fitting for

the only city in the world with both a Low
Emission Zone and Congestion Charge and
will build on the transformative impact of the
world’s first ULEZ.

London is already leading the way by
introducing the world’s first ULEZ from 2020.
To support the ULEZ, London has ambitious
new requirements for all new taxis to be zero
emission capable from 2018 and to increase
the number of hybrid and zero emission
buses by 2020. This will go some way to
removing the most polluting vehicles from
London’s streets but London’s bid will help to
take the next step by accelerating the uptake
of the cleanest vehicles in their place.

London has the most comprehensive and
representative emissions monitoring network
in the world with 157 monitoring stations.
This is complemented by two award-winning
emissions inventories (the London Energy
and Green House Gas Inventory and the
London Atmospheric Emissions Inventory).
To understand changes to the vehicle

fleet we can use our unrivalled network

of Automatic Number Plate Recognition
cameras. The report Travel in London will
provide a progress report on London’s
progress in delivering ULEVs, making use
of the various data sources.

Charging infrastructure
in residential areas

The proposed public sector delivery
partnership will improve and accelerate
the roll-out of vital charging infrastructure.

The proposed public sector delivery
partnership will monitor and share
usage statistics with councils to ensure
infrastructure is where it is needed most.

Delivering the bid

Charging infrastructure
for car clubs

As the car club market
develops and new models
emerge, councils will have
the ability to use their
assets to provide for new
forms of car sharing. ‘Smart’
charge points will allow
future flexibility and inter-
operability between networks
and car club operators and
models.

The Mayor’s Ultra Low
Emission Vehicle Delivery
Plan set out London’s
transformational plans
across all of London’s fleets.
This bid will help to realise
this potential by providing
the infrastructure needed to
support this transition.

Network data will provide
insight to ensure vehicles
are used to their full capacity
and that bays are located in
the most effective locations.
Carplus and the BVRLA

— umbrella bodies for the car
club and leasing sectors —
will monitor and report on
the progress and impact

of ULEVs, including how
behaviour varies between
drivers using ULEVs and
other vehicles.

Charging infrastructure
for commercial fleets

London is working with
commercial partners to
pursue a ‘hub’ approach

to installing rapid and fast
chargers. This includes
considering proposals for
new styles of fuelling station
suitable for ULEVs.

London will use network
data to monitor usage,
such as how often and how
long people charge. This
would help to inform future
installations and provide
valuable information as
technology develops.

Neighbourhoods
of the Future

Innovative proposals include
EV only loading restrictions,
virtual parking and loading
bays, ULEV HGV trials and
innovative lamppost charging.

London Boroughs have
chosen NoF locations to
complement existing projects
in local areas. Match
funding through existing
Local Implementation Plan
money and leveraging in
section 106 money from
developers and other private
sector partners will help add
additional value to the NoFs

As discrete projects,

NoFs offer an excellent
opportunity for consumer
research. TfL will coordinate
consumer research through
its Customer Research and
Insight function, testing
attitudes to ULEVs before
and after local interventions.
This research will provide
intelligence to guide future
policy development

and interventions.



OTT

PART TWO

COSTS

Charge point costs

For London’s councils the cost of
installation for a single charge point

is currently in the region of £10,000 —
£20,000. Variations in price are the
result of the particular procurement and
installation processes within each local
authority, a lack of scale and the use
of traditional charging infrastructure.
Over the course of TfL’s participation
in OLEV’s Plugged-in-Places funding
scheme it has been demonstrated that
the average cost per charge point can
be reduced to around £7,500.

The London bid expects to enable
the average cost of an installed 7kW
residential charge point to be reduced
to approximately £5,500 and car club
charge point to approximately £4,500.

Indicative costs per charge point would
be as follows:

+ Charge point — £2,000

+ Installation £1,500 — £2,000

+ Local Authority Signage and Traffic
Orders — £1,000

The reduction in cost would be achieved
as a result of the following factors which
are key elements of the London bid:

+ Frameworks to increase competition
and drive down the cost of hardware
and installations

+ Economies of scales delivered by the
size of the charge point requirement

- Standardised installation processes
for local councils to reduce cost
of administration

+ Potential to introduce innovative
charging solutions, for example. lamp
post socket charging

» For car club infrastructure, installing
some of the charge points at off street
car club bays

Over the course of the funding

period it is anticipated that further
reductions in the cost of charge point
deployment could be achieved as

a result of continuous improvement
in the efficiency of installation and
procurement processes. The models
set out below are contingent on these
assumptions and would need to be
reconsidered if London was unable to
drive down the cost, as expected.

Charging infrastructure
in residential areas

The request is for £8 million, £6.75
million of which will deliver up

to 1,225 new residential charge points
(assuming an average install cost per
charge point over the lifetime of the
funding period of £5,500).

The remaining £1.25 million is to
develop and initially fund the operation
of delivery and management models
that will be necessary for both the
residential and car club infrastructure.

Delivering the bid

Car clubs

Request is for £4.5 million to retrofit
up to 1,000 car club bays (assuming
average cost per charge point over the
lifetime of the funding period of £4,500)

Charge point delivery and management
model for residential and car clubs

Request is for £1.25 million to support
the set-up and first year operation

of an on-demand charge point delivery
partnership and management function.
This function will be available to all
London councils and will provide
consistency and best practice in
relation to all residential and car club
charge point installations.

Indicative Set-Up Costs

* Project Management and
Procurement — £250,000

* Legal — £75,000

+ Marketing and Communications —
£75,000

Indicative First Year Operating Costs

+ Scheme Administration
and Resources — £250,000

+ Charge Point Back Office and Network
Management — £150,000

+ Charge Point Maintenance — £400,000

This partnership will coordinate
the installation of car club points and
residential charge points for which

funding has been requested in
London’s bid. Furthermore it will
manage these charge points with
the aim of creating a self-sustaining
business model for the continued
growth in the number of available
charge points for car club and
residential users.

In its second year the partnership

will aim to offset operating costs with
revenue generated from the operation
of the charge point networks. As the
car club and residential customer base
increases over time with more sharing
of points, the delivery and management
model will generate surpluses
(beginning in Year three) which will be
wholly reinvested in new charge point
infrastructure to grow both the car club
and residential networks. In addition to
the delivery of infrastructure through
the reinvestment of surpluses, London
will continue to investigate additional
sources of funding (including OLEV
and EU funding — such as Interreg NW
Europe and Horizon 2020) to ensure
that residential and car club vehicle
charging infrastructure can be delivered
at a rate necessary to support the rate
of ULEV uptake in the capital.

Further market research will be required
if this bid is successful to refine this
initial outline of the operating model.

Importantly, this will be used to define
the appropriate fee structures for
residents and visitors (where relevant).



TTT

PART TWO

Charging for commercial fleets

The £4 million in this bid will develop
the rapid charging network across
London. The process is underway to
secure 150 charge points by 2018,
using £10 million allocated to London in
the National Infrastructure Plan. Beyond
this, 300 rapid charge points are likely
to be needed by 2020 to service zero
emission capable taxis, private hire
vehicles, other commercial vehicles and
car clubs. This bid will help London to
grow the network by providing funding
for up to 100 additional charge points.

A significant proportion of the National
Infrastructure Plan funding will be

used to upgrade the electricity network,
which potential network partners

have identified as one of the biggest
barriers to the growth of charging
infrastructure networks. As these
upgrades will be funded by the National

Infrastructure Plan funding, the unit
costs of the additional points to be
funded by the City Scheme are likely
to be lower. These further points will
be added to established hub locations,
further bringing down the cost per unit
compared to the earliest installations.

TfL’s early engagement with industry
partners indicates confidence in

the market and the appetite for private
investors to provide investment to
develop the commercial charging
network. This is likely to secure
additional points to meet demand
and will provide the capacity to grow
the network as required once initial
barriers of securing sites and grid
capacity have been overcome by
this funding.

Indicative cost breakdown for the
two stages of network installation
is as follows:

Delivering the bid

£10 million National Infrastructure
Plan funding (150 charge points):

+ Charge points — £3.75 million

+ Installation — £1.5 million

+ Power Network Upgrades — £3.75
million (assuming £125,000 at 30 hub
sites)

+ Warranty and Maintenance — £1 million
(over three years)

£4 million City Scheme funding (up to
100 further additional charge points):

+ Charge points — £2.4 million

* Installation — £1 million

* Maintenance — £600,000 (over
three years)



AN

PART TWO

NEIGHBOURHOODS OF THE FUTURE

London’s Neighbourhood of the Future
proposals will take the next step in
transforming communities to their low
emission future. In each case, the
programmes rely on the provision of
charging infrastructure to be provided

through the earlier elements of this bid.

Should funding for that infrastructure
not be secured, the programmes and
costs outlined below would need to be
negotiated further.

Indicative costs for the local
programmes as submitted in borough’s
expression of interest are as follows:

« London Boroughs of Croydon
and Sutton: freight and deliveries
programme — £500,000

* London Borough of Richmond upon
Thames: Business Delivery and
Servicing Plans — £380,000

* London Borough of Islington: Archway
emissions-based traffic restrictions —
£350,000

+ London Borough of Hammersmith
and Fulham: Zero Emission Zone —
£260,000 and freight consolidation
centre £200,000 (£460,000 total)

+ London Borough of Hackney: ‘Electric
Streets’ programme — £750,000

* London Borough of Haringey: Wood
Green transformation — £550,000

* London Borough of Harrow: Harrow
on the Hill Low Emission Zone —
£370,000

+ Heathrow Airport: Ultra Low Emission
HGYV trial — £100,000

Delivering the bid

MATCH FUNDING

London Go Ultra Low City Scheme
bid partners will leverage additional
funding from businesses, academic
institutions and other partner bodies
such as the EU. London has already
had considerable success in securing
funding for innovative ULEV projects,
having secured European funding for
projects including FREVUE, CITYLAB
and ELIPTIC.

London also has experience in securing
private sector funding to support its
ambitions. The Source and POLAR
networks are both investing in growth in
London. Companies will need to invest
in their fleets to meet the requirements
set by the world’s first ULEZ. Car club
operators will invest capital to purchase
the vehicles required to support their
anticipated growth in membership.
These examples demonstrate the
considerable volumes of private

sector funding that will be spent by
private companies in London as it
moves towards its ultra low emission
future. All of this funding can be seen
as supporting OLEV'’s funding and
maximising its impact.

To maximise the potential of Go Ultra
Low City Scheme funding the London
bid would provide match funding from
the Mayor’s Air Quality Fund. Councils
will be able to consider opportunities
to combine Go Ultra Low funding with
Local Implementation Plan funds.

The Mayor and boroughs already
concentrate considerable time and
resources to educating the public
about air quality in partnership through
the Mayor’s Air Quality Fund. London’s
Ultra Low Emission Vehicle Delivery
Plan set out a range of TfL programmes
that will help to increase the uptake

of ULEVs. These funding streams will
address many of the ‘softer’ measures
required to support OLEV’s capital
investment, by educating residents
and businesses about the benefits

of ULEVs.



clt

PART TWO

BID PARTNERS

This is a joint bid submitted by the
Mayor of London, Transport for
London (TfL) and London Councils
(representing the 32 London boroughs
and the City of London Corporation).
This partnership has been developed
to ensure an integrated and consistent
approach to the Go Ultra Low City
Scheme across all levels of

London government.

All bid partners will establish
governance arrangements once funding
is secured to ensure that action is taken
at the most appropriate level of London
government. Workstreams within this
bid will be managed and delivered

by key stakeholders including TfL,

local councils, the Mayor of London,
community groups, public-private
partnerships (such as Cross River
Partnership) and the private sector.

London’s councils have supported
the proposals in this bid. Once
funding is secured, there will be
further discussion to confirm the new
delivery model, taking in to full account
the legal and financial implications.
London Councils’ Transport and
Environment Committee (TEC) will
provide a steering group for these
discussions, before formal ratification
through each council’s governance
processes where necessary.

London is expecting to apply for future
funding streams promoted by OLEV
which will be used to complement this
bid. These other funding bids will be
led by TfL, which has responsibility for
buses, taxis and private hire vehicles
within London.

London’s bid is also supported by

a number of private sector partners,
demonstrating the appetite to increase
ULEV uptake in the capital and

that London’s bid will deliver what
businesses want. A full list of our
supporting partners can be found on
the back cover.

Delivering the bid

SUPPORTERS

Addison Lee
Brixton BID
BMW

Central London Freight Quality
Partnership

City Car Club

Cross River Partnership
DriveNow UK Ltd
eConnect Cars

Ferrovial Agroman UK LTD
Fruit4London

Global Action Plan

GMB Professional Drivers’ Branch

Gnewt Cargo
Heathrow Airport LTD
Kilnbridge Construction Service

Millbrook

O’Donovan Waste Disposal Ltd

Pie Mapping

Powerday PLC

Quattro Plant
Road Peace
Skanska

South London and Maudsley
NHS Foundation Trust

Stratford Original BID

The Licensed Private Hire
Car Association

The London Taxi Company

TNT

Transport and Travel Research Ltd
UK Power Networks

University of Westminster

Veolia

WestTrans

Wilson James Ltd

Zapinamo

Zero Emissions Network

Zipcar




Vit

PART TWO

STATE AID

We have considered the State Aid
position in relation to the measures
proposed in this bid and confirm that
we consider we will meet State Aid
compliance as set out below.

Charging infrastructure
in residential areas

We note that OLEV consider that
provision of the funding to local
authorities does not constitute State
Aid. We in turn, apply this interpretation
to the provision of the bid funding to the
public sector partnership which will be
created under this measure, such that
there is no State Aid at this level. This
is on the basis that such a partnership,
whilst potentially a distinct entity, would
be exercising the same public functions
as its member public organisations

in the receipt and application of the
relevant funds. There is in our view no
difference, in State aid terms, between
an individual pubic authority receiving
and applying the funds and an entity
that is an amalgamation of such public
bodies doing so.

The constructed infrastructure will

be made available to local residents
on an open, transparent and non-
discriminatory basis and charges for
such use will be at market rates. We
therefore consider that there is no
benefit or ‘favouring of an undertaking’

for the purpose of State Aid and
therefore no State Aid at this level
either. The public sector partnership
will procure relevant works, services

or supplies in relation to the charging
infrastructure in accordance with
relevant procurement regulations and we
therefore consider that this element of
the measure will not constitute State Aid.

We note our previous correspondence
with OLEV under which OLEV

has kindly confirmed, subject to
information available to date, that it
does not believe that the recent state
aid approval (as yet unpublished)

SA. 38769 (relating to the use of
public funding for the installation and
operation of charging stations for
electric vehicles) set any precedent

in relation to the Go Ultra Low City
Scheme funding. In any event, funding
towards the construction and operation
of the charging infrastructure is
considered capable of being applied
in line with Article 56 — ‘Investment
aid for local infrastructures’ of the
General Block Exemption Regulations
No 651/2014 (‘GBER’) and therefore
exempt from Commission notification
requirements.

Charging infrastructure for car clubs

It is intended that the same public
sector partnership described above
in relation to the residential charging
infrastructure, will receive the bid

Delivering the bid

funding for the car club infrastructure
and similarly will procure relevant
works, services or supplies in relation
to the charging infrastructure in
accordance with relevant procurement
regulations. We therefore apply the
same interpretation and do not consider
that these elements of the measure will
constitute State Aid.

The charging infrastructure for car clubs
is potentially a selective benefit in that
its availability is limited to the users of
car club vehicles. Due to the number of
car club undertakings in London, the de
minimis cap for State Aid Commission
notification exemption purposes may
be exceeded (i.e. in respect of a car
club undertaking(s), we may exceed
the ceiling of EUR 200 000 which is the
amount of de minimis aid that a single
undertaking may receive per Member
State over any period of three years
pursuant to Commission Regulation No
1407/2013). However we would argue
that parallels can be drawn with the
state aid approval SA.34719 (relating to
the Netherlands Electric transportation
scheme in Amsterdam and in particular
the purchase and installation of non-
public and semi-public charging points
for electric vehicles) where it was found
that the selective benefit did not have
any effect on intra community trade and
that therefore the charging infrastructure
did not constitute State Aid. We note
that OLEV is encouraging investment

in car club infrastructure and so we

would be pleased to work with OLEV

to find a solution to this issue, including
obtaining State Aid clearance from the
Commission should this be required.

Charging infrastructure
for commercial fleets

We consider this measure would

not constitute State Aid on the basis
that we intend to structure and

procure the requirements for this
measure as services, such services
being procured through open and
transparent competition. In addition the
infrastructure will be made available

to users on an open, transparent and
non-discriminatory basis and so the
benefit is non-selective and therefore
no undertaking is favoured, with market
rates for usage being charged.

Neighbourhoods of the Future

In relation to this set of measures,

in a majority of cases funding will

be provided directly to relevant

London Councils representing the
neighbourhoods and to the extent

that the funding will then be used to
procure works, services or supplies,
these will be procured in accordance
with relevant procurement regulations
and we therefore consider that they
will not constitute State Aid. In addition
(with the exception of the Hammersmith
zero emissions proposal mentioned
below), we do not consider that there



Q1T

PART TWO

is any selective benefit or undertaking
favoured and therefore no State Aid
benefitting the end users from the
measures proposed.

In relation to the Hammersmith zero
emissions proposal, we consider

that any State Aid will be State Aid
exempt from Commission notification
requirements as it is expected

that the State Aid will be of a de
minimis level and/or falling within
Article 48 — ‘Investment Aid for
energy infrastructure’ or Article 56 —
‘Investment aid for local infrastructures
— of GBER and therefore exempt from
Commission notification requirements.
In relation to the Heathrow Airport
measure consisting of a proof of
concept to trial electric HGVs, further
work will be required to ensure

that State Aid compliance will be
demonstrated, with the most likely
route being that this measure falls
within and would be State Aid

exempt from Commission notification
requirements pursuant to the Article
25 exemption of GBER — ‘Aid for
research and development projects’.

CONCLUSION

London’s bid makes a clear, compelling
case for OLEV to invest £20 million

in London’s vision for its ultra low
emission future. The schemes proposed
in our bid will be vital if we are to realise
the uptake of 225,000 ULEVs in the
capital by 2025 and an almost entirely
ultra low emission light vehicle stock

by 2050.

By supporting London’s bid, OLEV
will help the capital to become a
national and international exemplar
for ULEV use. It will provide an
important contribution to London’s
efforts to overcome the capital’s air
quality challenges, which affect

the whole of the UK.

Nevertheless additional support is
needed from OLEV and the government
to fully realise the potential of London’s
ULEV ambitions and to achieve
compliance with EU NO2 limit values.
As well as supporting London’s bid,

we therefore ask government to:

* ensure complementary support is
provided from other OLEV funding
streams to transform London’s taxi
and bus fleets. We estimate a total
of £52 million is required from
OLEYV funding to unlock London’s
full potential.

+ continue providing incentives to
encourage the uptake of ULEVs
to secure the step change that will

Delivering the bid

normalise these vehicles. The plug-in
car and van grants must continue on
a similar basis as today until at least
2020, with ring-fenced funding for
private hire vehicles and taxis. Given
the additional costs for purchasing
zero emission capable taxis this
funding must be available until at
least 2025.

+ establish a national scrappage
scheme to remove the most polluting
vehicles from our roads. Localised
interventions will not realise the full
potential of such interventions and
they should be nationally-led.

+ ensure further support is provided
to reduce emissions related to the
existing operations of nationally
important infrastructure that is located
in London, such as Heathrow Airport.

+ work with London’s bid partners
and car manufacturers to increase
the promotion and marketing of
ULEVs to businesses and residents.

+ work with the Green Investment Bank
and other finance partners to ensure
easy access to finance for ULEVs,
in particular to monetise long-term
fuel savings to help fund any short-
term capital premium. This remains
a key barrier preventing commercial
uptake and OLEV should consider
how it can work with industry to
address this challenge.

+ continue to support research and
development into new vehicle
technologies and innovative charging
solutions. Our business engagement
has identified a need for viable

ultra low emission heavy goods
vehicles if the next stage of
commercial use is to be realised.

* review the regulations on payload to
implement a concession for instances
where battery load contributes to
taking payload over 3.5 tonnes,
subject to full consideration of road
safety implications.

London is the best city in which to
realise OLEV’s ambitions. It is the
UK'’s truly global city and the only

UK market of sufficient scale and
influence to inspire innovation. This
scale means that investment in London
is the best way to ensure the whole

of the UK benefits from the economic
potential offered by ULEV research
and manufacturing. We look forward to
working further with you to consider how
the benefits secured by a successful
London scheme can benefit the UK.



116



Harrow Baptist
Tennis Club

Chalfont Court

Garth Court

Kensington
Heights

S

Blackthorn
Court

Nightingale
Court

Brandreth
Court

/Lyon House/

L.

LONDON

Schoo

Norbur
\ First and N%ddm

y First

and
Middle School

Norbur

il
H
il

|76t ]

|
|
L

|
170 68|

Zﬂ 72

176 to 80

[ —

St Georges Shopping and Leisure Centre

Multistorey Car Park

St Ann’s Centre

Car Park

nose || || —
= L 77 _74
[ — //7 1
“ L o

fal/a&;%””

77\"\"\7**7—7,,,,,777 o R
39 f?s szf‘ﬁvz Bve v €68 OF LE “
|

‘ \

\

[ ‘
T |
| see o Z&LQQ % Lg)|

|
[ L,i

~|
—
N - u%

1

el
il

ﬁ
4

Y,

\
T
181

L

-

2227

2277

7

Bus Station

N

_

37 to 89

e

C

Brggiéfwe

e [eE

19

Baptist Church

)

DS_ROAD

WLAN

Bl ’

New
Synagogue

Middlesex

Hobbs House

Hillborou
Court

Drummond|
Court

!

s P&D bays
B Taxi ranks

Key

Proposed Neighbourhood of the Future (NoF)

172

Total number of P&D bay parking spaces

Total number of taxi ranks

s | 0ading bays

4

Disabled bays
~ Electric vehicles only

f the

.

ISSI0N 0O

.

ith the perm
ce © Crown Copyright. Unauthor

ing wi

.

Reproduction from the Ordnance Survey Mapp
Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationary Off

16

Total number of loading bays

7

.

sed

.

on or Civi

.

.

reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecut

proceedings. London Borough of Harrow 100019206.

34

Total number of disabled bays spaces



This page is intentionally left blank

118



Agenda Item 11
Pages 119 to 146

Traffic and Road Safety
Advisory Panel

Date of Meeting:

Subject:

Responsible Officer :

Exempt:

Wards affected:

Enclosures:

23 November 2016

INFORMATION REPORT

Wealdstone Transport Issues

Tom McCourt — Corporate Director,
Community

No

Wealdstone, Marlborough

Appendix A — Harrow & Wealdstone
area action plan

Appendix B — Transport study location
plan

Appendix C — Regeneration sites and
transport links

Appendix D — Major scheme
Appendix E — Trinity Square
visualisation

Appendix F — Kodak site section 106
developer contributions

Appendix G — Headstone Drive / Ellen
Webb Drive scheme

Appendix H — Harrow View /
Headstone Drive scheme

( %/‘fﬂhCDUNCIL )

LONDON

119



Section 1 - Summary

This report provides an update on transport issues in Wealdstone in relation to
the Council’s regeneration programme.

FOR INFORMATION

Section 2 - Report

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Introduction

Wealdstone is a district centre in the heart of Harrow that has good
accessibility to public transport via an important bus and rail interchange
at Harrow & Wealdstone station. A major north / south strategic road, the
A409, runs through its centre. There is a significant movement of through
traffic via road, rail and bus modes and the area over time has become
more congested with increasing journey times. The road network is
struggling to accommodate the demand and this is a problem for road
users and buses in particular at peak times.

The section of the High Street parallel to George Gange Way, where
most of the commercial centre is located, now has reduced levels of
traffic since the construction of the George Gange Way bypass in the
1980’s which is now the designated A409 route. The strategic route has a
very high throughput of traffic in excess of 20,000 vehicles per day and
the junction with Palmerston Road is an identified air quality focus areas
in the borough where air quality pollutants PM10QO’s (very fine particles)
and nitrogen dioxide (NO2) exceed nationally set objectives.

Regeneration Programme

Wealdstone town centre and the nearby Harrow town centre, have been
collectively named as the ‘Heart of Harrow’ by LBH in the 2013 Harrow
and Wealdstone Area Action Plan. This area has been identified by the
Council and the Mayor of London as a priority area for regeneration and
is designated in the Harrow Core Strategy and the London Plan (2011) as
an Opportunity Area. The vision for the area as described originally in the
Harrow and Wealdstone Area Action Plan and updated in the draft
Regeneration Strategy 2014 — 2026 is to deliver 5,500 new homes, two
new schools and 3,000 additional new jobs.

A significant part of the regeneration programme will be to relocate the
Council’s Civic Centre here by 2019. The intensification of development
will place greater demands on the existing transport network and public
realm in the area which is already struggling to cope with the existing
levels of traffic. The general appearance, design and condition of the
public realm is tired and unattractive and not conducive to encouraging
new businesses to come to the area. Wealdstone is an area of
deprivation which the Council seeks to revitalise.

120



2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.1

A plan of the development sites within the regeneration programme can
be seen in Appendix A.

Transport Study

The impact of this intensive level of development from so many additional
homes and businesses and the potential increase in demand on the
transport network needs to be assessed in order to understand the short,
medium and long term affects. The council’s transport consultant has
therefore been engaged to undertake a transport study which was
commissioned earlier in the year and is expected to be completed by
March 2017. The extents of the study can be seen in Appendix B.

The objectives of the study are to determine:

e The current performance of the existing highway network in terms of
capacity to accommodate additional traffic demand.

e The level of additional traffic demand forecast on the highway
network due to the committed and known development proposals in
the Harrow and Wealdstone area.

e The impact of the development proposals on the highway network.

¢ Proposals to mitigate the impact of the developments on the highway
network, including sustainable transport measures.

e Opportunities and development of proposals to enhance the public
realm.

The study will include a survey of current traffic levels and movements,
estimated future levels of new homes and businesses in the area to
update Transport for London’s regional transport model which will be
used to assess future traffic conditions and test possible network
interventions. This analysis will identify areas of stress on the network
and allow the Council to plan for vital infrastructure improvements and the
necessary funding to implement them.

The study will also assess the amount of on-street and off-street (car
parks) space in the centre of Wealdstone and determine current levels of
usage and occupancy. An assessment of future parking needs will be
provided to assist with any decisions on future parking provision.

A report on the outcome of the study will be presented to TARSAP when
it is completed.

Wealdstone High Street — Major Scheme Bid

Transport for London (TfL) has a major schemes programme which is
funded as a part of the Local Implementation Plan. All boroughs are
eligible to bid for major schemes and need to demonstrate a substantial
case to be successful in attracting major funding. Housing opportunity
areas do provide an ideal rationale for this type of investment where
public realm improvements and accommodating an increase in journeys

121



212

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

217

2.18

is necessary and Harrow has been encouraged by TfL to submit a bid for
Wealdstone.

Wealdstone town centre has a poor appearance and has consistently had
one of the highest business vacancy rates in terms of empty shops within
Harrow. The identity of this district centre is not very well established and
the High Street area at the centre lacks vibrancy and vitality.

Whilst public transport provision is good, access by road and foot is poor.
The centre is isolated by a combination of the railway line to the west and
a town centre bypass (George Gange Way) to the east which act as
barriers to pedestrian / cycle movement.

Bus routes through the town centre are affected by the congestion and
delay on the existing Strategic Road Network (A409) which is heavily
congested due to the poor performance of the current network layout and
traffic signals. This affects the overall journey time reliability on the
network for buses, and limits the potential to improve and expand
services in the future.

The expansion of a large number of housing sites in the area combined
with the relocation of the Council offices to the High Street will generate a
considerable amount of additional traffic in the area and place greater
pressure on the existing road network.

The key issues identified from a site audit were:

e Poor quality of public realm and overall appearance, cluttered and
excessive street furniture,

e Perceived safety concerns and fear of crime from overall
appearance and tone of area,

e Traffic congestion and delay on main road network affecting journey
time reliability, particularly buses

e Poor environment for pedestrians, segregation by railway and SRN,
excessive vehicle dominance,

e Local cycle routes have complex routes and motor vehicle
dominance makes access difficult,

e Poor junction design with underutilised space for other modes

An initial concept scheme was devised to address the issues in the site
audit earlier in the year and a design surgery arranged with Urban Design
London, as advised by TFL, to consider the design approach. Useful
feedback was provided which suggested that this should be considered
as a place making scheme, that a civic square should be created and that
a clear rationale for transport connections should be developed as well as
introducing “slow” street interventions. This advice has been incorporated
into the outline scheme.

A plan of the proposed regeneration sites and the proposed transport

networks has therefore been developed in conjunction with the bid as
shown in Appendix C. This highlights the main walking, cycling, bus and

122



2.19

2.20

freight routes on the network that need to be introduced to support
development. Some of these routes will be developed within developer
proposals for sites and most within the extents of public highway.

The cycle infrastructure, in particular, needs significant improvement. The
existing east to west link along Headstone Drive and Canning Road has a
well-established route but needs to be made more accessible and clearer
to encourage greater usage. A new north to south route using quiet ways
running parallel to the A409 needs to be developed via the central section
of the High Street to connect Harrow Town Centre to Wealdstone and
Harrow Weald to accommodate the potential demand to use this route.
The A409 cannot safely accommodate dedicated or segregated cycle
facilities due to the limited space available along its length.

The council has developed an outline major scheme intended to meet
TfL’s better streets agenda, facilitate growth and provide Wealdstone with
a more defined sense of place and character. The scheme is as follows:

Tidy up / de-clutter / relocate merge functions

High Street - Review road space allocation and redesign the widths of
footways and carriageways to introduce “slow street” interventions and
accommodate bus stops and parking / loading areas. Minimise and
rationalise all street furniture in the main commercial / retail areas to
improve accessibility and introduce easier ‘straight across’ crossing
points. Introduce new LED lighting and tree planting and give careful
consideration to the streetscape using higher quality construction
materials to create an attractive urban environment with more functional,
accessible spaces for pedestrians. A similar model to the Station Road
scheme in Harrow will be used.

George Gange Way (A409) — This road is a barrier to pedestrian
movement across this corridor and needs to be integrated into the town
due to the wider regeneration programme which will increase pedestrian
movement. Interventions to civilise the street scene and make it more
accessible will be made by removing excessive street furniture (e.qg.
pedestrian guard railings, central traffic islands) and providing additional
pedestrian crossing points.

Rethink traffic management options

Bus routes — Buses currently experience congestion and delay at the
northern entry/egress point into the district centre. A new entry point will
be created via a dedicated one way corridor along Canning Road. The
exit from the High Street will remain the same via a one way section of
road. Junction improvements at the A409 junctions with the High Street
and Canning Road are proposed including the removal of traffic signals at
the High Street / Palmerston Road junction. These changes will result in
improved bus journey times.

A409 corridor - all traffic signal junctions will be amended based on user
priorities to maximise network performance and smooth traffic flow to

123



improve journey time reliability and air quality. Traffic signal linking via
SCOOT will be introduced. General access into the town will be via
Palmerston Road which will become one way.

Slow streets - a 20mph zone / limit will be introduced in parts of the High
Street and George Gange Way to support and enhance pedestrian and

cycle movement. Speed platforms will be used at junctions on the A409

to reinforce slower speeds particularly at pedestrian crossing points.

Recreate the street

Harrow & Wealdstone Station - the Station is a key gateway access
to/from the station for pedestrians, the Ellen Webb Drive / High Street
junction will be redesigned to make better use of the public realm space
and create a more attractive and welcoming gateway into the town.

Trinity Square — There is an independent complementary scheme to
introduce a public square in Headstone Drive by the High Street which
will act as a focal point in the town funded via the GLA’s London
Regeneration Fund.

2.21 A plan of the proposed scheme can be seen in Appendix D.

2.22 A bid of £2 million was submitted in September and will be supported by
match funding by the borough from Harrow Capital (£370k), Harrow LIP
funding (£200k) and S106 developer contributions (£320k). The overall
budget for the scheme would be £2.89 million.

2.23 The bid process is very competitive and there is no guarantee of success,
however, it is considered that a strong case has been put forward for
Wealdstone. An announcement with regard to funding is expected in
early 2017.

Headstone Drive - Trinity Square

2.24  In October 2015 Harrow Council submitted an application to the GLA’s
London Regeneration Fund. This was a fiercely competitive funding
round, with only £20m allocated for the whole of London. In January 2016
Harrow secured £1.5m in funding to provide space for new businesses at
Artisan Studios (former Colart offices) and for creating a new public
square in Wealdstone. This new civic square will provide a space for
events, amusement and markets to draw more shoppers and visitors into
Wealdstone in order to improve the local economy.

2.25 The section of Headstone Drive between the High Street and Ellen Webb
Drive is the area within the scope of the brief for the public realm
improvements. Funding of £850k has been allocated to the public square
project for design and implementation.

2.26  This project is being overseen by the Council’'s Economic Development
Team and a consultant was appointed in August this year to undertake

124



2.27

2.28

2.29

2.30

2.31

2.32

2.33

2.34

2.35

the delivery of the project. A project board and project team have been
established to oversee progress and provide direction for the project.

There is a need to ensure consistency in public realm design and the
details of the major scheme bid (detailed above) have been shared with
the consultant to ensure the Trinity Square project will complement the
wider public realm aspirations.

The project is currently at a very early stage and no designs have been
developed at the time of writing this report. A visualisation of a potential
concept design can be seen in Appendix E.

Developer contributions

There is an extensive set of financial provisions within the Kodak
development site section 106 agreement which includes contributions for
controlled parking, traffic management in Victor Drive, bus service
improvements, wayfinding signs, walking and cycling routes, a junction
improvement for the Headstone Lane / Ellen Webb Drive junction, a
junction improvement for the Harrow View / Headstone Drive junction and
flood mitigation measure for the rail bridge in Headstone Drive. Details of
the provisions can be seen in Appendix F.

Some of these funds will contribute to the match funding indicated in the
major scheme bid and these are indicated.

A sum of £150k is available to improve the Headstone Lane / Ellen Webb
Drive junction once the triggers in the section 106 agreement are
satisfied for the release of the monies. This improvement is indicated in
the major scheme bid as a complementary scheme linked to the Trinity
Square project.

An outline scheme design has already been developed by the Council’s
transport consultant and a scheme proposed to introduce traffic signals at
the junction. A plan of the proposal can be seen in Appendix G.

A sum of £50k has been released this year to undertake feasibility and
design work on the Harrow View / Headstone Drive traffic signals
junction. This design work will be completed by the end of the financial
year. An outline scheme design can be seen in Appendix H.

Funding to implement the scheme will be released in 2017/18 subject to
the satisfactory completion of the design and traffic signal modelling
work.

Future considerations

There will be a need to develop an infrastructure improvement plan for
the Wealdstone transport network based on the findings of the Transport
Study. The use of sustainable transport modes and measures to improve
air quality will also be important as these will continue to be mayoral
priorities.

125



2.36

2.37

A costed programme of interventions with identified funding sources will
be required for the next 5 to 10 years in order to accommodate the scale
of growth expected. This would need to consider all possible funding
sources including section 106 developer contributions, community
infrastructure levy contributions, capital funding and TfL LIP funding.

The mayor’s transport strategy (MTS) will be revised to reflect the
transport priorities of the new London Mayor and a new MTS, is likely to
be approved during 2017. Following this there will be a requirement for
London Boroughs to revise their Local implementation Plans (LIP) to
reflect the MTS. The infrastructure plans for Wealdstone will need to be
reflected in the LIP objectives and programme of investment.

Section 3 - Further Information

3.1

There is no further information.

Section 4 - Financial Implications

41

There are no direct financial implications from this report.

Section 5 - Equalities implications

5.1

A programme of investment was included in the Transport Local
Implementation Plan which was approved by full Council. The LIP was
subject to an Equalities Impact Assessment where schemes were
identified as having no negative impact on any equality groups. Positive
impacts of the programme were demonstrated on some equalities
groups, particularly, women, children and people with mobility difficulties.

Section 6 - Council Priorities

6.1

The transport improvements identified in the report will contribute to
achieving the administration’s priorities:

Making a difference for the vulnerable
Making a difference for communities
Making a difference for local businesses
Making a difference for families

Section 7 - Statutory Officer Clearance

on behalf of the

Name: Jessie Man Chief Financial Officer

126



Date: 10/11/16

Ward Councillors notified: YES

Section 8 - Contact Details and Background
Papers

Contact:

David Eaglesham

Tel: 020 8424 1500, Fax: 020 8424 7662, E-mail:
david.eaglesham@harrow.gov.uk

Background Papers:

127




This page is intentionally left blank

128



APPENDIX A - HARROW & WEA

§

LDSTONE AREA ACTION PLAN
N A

,,,,,

Key Opportunity Sites

— intensification Area boundary 01 Headstone Manor 12 Geaenhill Way North
02 Kodakand Zoom Leisure 13 Greenhill Way Car Park

] opponuay sites 03 Teachers Centre 14 Bradstowe House
04 Colan 15 College Road West
05 Wealdstone Infills 16 Havelock Place

. Town Centre Boundaries 06  Palmerstone Road/George GangeWay 17 17-51 College Road
07 Harrow Leisure Centre 18 Harrow on the Hill Car Park West

B wetcpotitan Land 08 Civic Amenity Site 19 Lowlands Recreation Ground
09 Civic Centre 20 Harow on the Hill Car Park East
1 Seation Road Opportunity Ares 21 lyonRoad

1 2 9 Tesco 22  Gayton Road



This page is intentionally left blank

130



APPENDIX B — TRANSPORT STUDY LOCATION PLAN

GvOd NOHAS

—

-----

131



This page is intentionally left blank

132



APPENDIX C - REGENERATION SITES / PROPOSED TRANSPORT LINKS

MYOMLIN LYOJSNYYL 03SOdO¥d T Rl s, s 0 2 [

auluew 15800 1SOM VXZ_IVH "XoSS|ppIN ‘MOLIDH

b . e PIUBYS [99GBN g paubisag
NV S3LIS NOILYYANIDTY 'YV ALINNLYOddO " e A B L B E PR

onu oo vt undo NOaNnoT

4
T 7
S Jleay { BB \ S
Juouwjeg ; / . 8 : ANE ; .
)

s .,- S WN ]
g & a 2 Remayeb uonels @ - O\
<t : _ \ g % = Yomon :

IWIHOS LNIWFAOUNI
o w O seynol sng I suopeo] [eubis oyje - ssauisng Jo / pue feuisnpul §
== (Cianno e
INOLSATVAM '133HLS HOIH e
jo8foug AD
Ol TE—F— g T £ E3EEN
@q %A/ @ eBus) UMo| MoeH O] - g iy
e < ﬁ N o e ; o1 B
o, N 3 S /
. N Aw N =) Buissolo ,uedljad, - p— wv a1Jua7) UMO| Vi USEm 8D T
’ = R i 2\ i) e ! PN MOLBH 0] & 85 Wied 180 Uojels [
T - - N e - t peoy 8lus) umoy HOL 09 RISIoAN X0SO1PPIN B
5 o e MOJIeH O 28 obpug 8yl 8
: . , S eall=r uoliers HOoL - = Son T 7
7 enua) umoL ﬂ% D 2> - Nww y AV ety iH z and einben wes 5
MOLBH O] e Lo | 019 07E N .t S emnl 3 G : 0oL Jied 160 g 8SN0H Jallalq S
. A 981 281 ‘0l 4 : : 088 e3UBD OO v
: gt < 08} sis]jeq / uolsiewled €
OLH '6H . ) / : %o Bnusg BIse ] z \
¢ 7 an P ) 2 +0001 NS EPOH 3 P\ o
21JU80) UMO] MOLIEH N\ 5 ¢ Suun Buisnoy o Jequin
0} UOJSplespy 1] @ K > Jo Joquiny 1S AN

\& | i I 3 ’ 3U0JSP[E3 PUB MOLEH &
- b o K S =
l 6 NG X : , % N
m j . < : OLH '6H 5 5
| » e ~ k A 2 5
|'=| : ,, = 5 g )
- DTN ’ N 1&\%
; LN \ - AN 0Ly ¢ 7 i y
e : 2% e
- .AAV‘ s A i\ A
) 2 N\ A \\ "% @ ) 3
| @ c ; g & { O 5=\ @ & % ) Z, sayis juawdojansp NS d
: ) ) &- . Ul 10p1I00 USRS
;,m ¥ Buissolo ,ueonoy, | | 2 arenbg % V5
, e e : -s A f | >
: i —r
: I 3 Jouepy
i > / 3U0JSpEaH 0]
> /
| E £ =t .
Juowjag o} £ = NGO 4 BUISS0I0 7
3U0jSpleaM PIESM MOLEH N > ueanoy. “-
P = 0) 3UOISPIEaA B .
s o \ . sé
= j Rk 2 — NS -
= \ \
T et BN > N\ g
{ us : 2 3 . e
?«-nn ) e ‘ %% SINE ) = mc_wwo_&- A
p 6 e . o o Ueojed,
s f ; -
: = L 3
S, pu3 ¢
8IN ‘0v9 UojeH 0L ‘
981 ;
- \ 0ve ‘85z P | ¢
Juowjag ol ‘281 ‘ovl \\'\ S
- ’ e (! ; ~
0 NS, d 3 [
\ pream QN o2
MOLIEH 0] , o /
d A %

133



This page is intentionally left blank

134



“Buissoi) eiqeZ 1e wiopeid paads sonpoiul

~a0eds oljand SSIWIXEW O] - SHUEI (XE) UBISAPOY

s— sy
“skemjooy | skemaBewues paubijeas um 19ens YBIY o) A1Us 1196 0Z¥ 0ZO :XO4 “.Ild.-.un.‘.lﬂﬂ.mllflnulll.m
“aouewLIOPed BSIWIXEW O} AJUO BAUQ GO USJJ / BNUBAY SUOSEJ UO 119S £988 020 1oL g g b gt 2 1-11

. SBuIssoi0 paloAUoD 8pinoid o) sieUBls UBISepay sieubis aujen ueiey o | | yXZ IWH ‘XS|PPIN ‘MOLIDH -
JNIHIS HOrYIN 43S0d0ud wopounfanueny suosei | i agom uaia 1 vens ub | | OIS IO ‘6E Xog "0'd PIUEUS [999EN apaufieg
~ > (Uononuisucoa) Aemabeie

R TN
oL X NOAaNDa (vononsuooes) kemioog

swiopeid poeds / uogounr  [EETEEE

JNTHIS INJNIAOHII

APPENDIX D - HIGH STREET, WEALDSTONE MAJOR SCHEME

syves el I
. ye /7 W¥)/] souer o>
Yo 1 ] sheg a3d
¢ R N skeg Buipeo
MZOHwDI_ G m>> Hmmml_lm _I_o__l_ : N seapeena
yosloug /¢ o G . N ‘A3
2uning ul ‘Uewa) 0} 110GepUNOI JO Yuou Buissoso ueano) bunisix3 e P A > - N ‘QUNYIUIN 19211S [BWIUIL PUE SQISY MO ‘sAemabelLed ipim Wwhwiuiw
Uil MBU Joj BUI| B11S8P 0JuO BuISSOID UBONO) JO UOKEIO|R) BININY BIQISSO  ® 60pY woy B ‘sease Bupyed / L OSUI MOIASY o “skemooj apim sey 1081 UBIH - skemjoo) / Aemebelueo ubleay o
10945 UBIH O] 9y Juawdo[oAGP UBNOIL  SBIDILaA IO} SSE00 IEw - 19a11S UBIH O} 1N0GEPUINDJ L oy Aem-aU0 ) i uonoun Awoud sonponul (12015 UBIH 0} 1N0qEpUNO
A2 | ueLysapad 1oauIp aiow Joj uonelidsy PeOJ 8w PUE JNOGEPUNOJ OJUO 1IX8 ‘PEOY UOISIAWIE JO 8S0[) = s

poads udwi oz wioiy Kem-ou0 51 PEOY UOISIBWIE) UONOUN] e SEUBIS BrOWaY  +

uopounf peoy uojsiauiled / 60VY o uopounf peoy uojsiowled /123S YBIH

2
)
12

3

-l B b
o) )
By, m.
esasi = - ' playyog 3 |
[m) Hd 14 . E Tk Ttoag <
g 8 i : =
- = ~
s =
S a
) A 28bora \ = . 5 |
) oz \ .
i} o ACE, R
; D 0
> 7 el .
z
> &8
1 o 3 T
b N 2 [
srase
s z 9
4
. - vou g €
= il
B i pueg u
i paads Uduw O ‘ainuINy 1931 Jo UORESI[EUOe: puB Buliel “oue| uin “swul eoko | uewisepad ‘sem / 1se0 Gnoidl
piend / pues| [e4u82 Jo [erowal - Bupannio-ap Ae abueo 861089 e 16U pajeauliop pue sseyd Buissoio uewsapad e ym sieubls sonpoaul e |, v, — wuopield paads ein [esodoud asenbs AjuuL o) ssaibe sse00y e ‘skemoo) / AemoBelueo uBlleay o
“sujewss 8ol ojoko Bunsixg  « RO $810K0 / $8SNq 0} 1881 UBIH SSB0E O} JOPILIOD NI o ‘seale AeMj00) UBpIM ‘BInyLIN; 1981S (suonnquuo sadojeAsp 904S WOl Papuny) uonoun] Jo 1sea Buissos
‘SUfewWa) apIS 1523 PeoY BulULED Je JUBWABUBLE N0 a1 /W §S1  » 0PV WOy Au3 - (pUnogisapn) peoy Buuued ul uonesado Aem aug e fit X ‘onuQ ouCISpEaH Buole SBulies piend sonpe: ‘sauy dors oo soUEARY & X0 GAOWS. ‘Uonoun| oSIeUBIS ULE p & juowoidwl  +
uonounf peoy Buiuues / 6ovy i O NG (P uj papeys) 3oefoid aienbg Ayuii] pue UoROUNI BALQ BUOISPESH / SALIG GASM UBJIZ / PEOY (1999 - (PIq Jo Jied Jou) aweyds Aigjuswjdwio
md ed 1eg & 0
Kesopspiniy - - <
. 2 . aNoLSaWVa >
) : R
: e : ) =
- I [} =
s 4 p i n{ L
- " A59100 IO =5 s,
- ) 2 |
w § ! hou pesocong | 2 @ ,
A oo By ' - A Co n g
\ isolt Sy | gy \ 0
- P = < <
2 = S .
\ n = # = )
7 ol 1 ] @ S \
= ot soweg B
N
9 o)} [£
) 2 K
ok \ e1s ans 13 C
U spuels! / wioje|d UoRoUN| NOGEPUNOI-UIL € U SEUBIS B0eidey  » oY, = g ] ‘skeq pajqesip / Bupied | Bulpe PUE SUONISO QOIS SN MOINGY  »  OIleI} IE - PUNOGUMOU ABM BUO S| PEOY BUIULED JO YUOU 19041S UBIH o
sueujsapad 0} Ajuoud onb sms__o_i Je swiopeid _a_sni vo asn e Qe e o AIUO JOPLIOD BOFY OO __“m . = © - Qm__se 1801 [ewIUIL Em Squa) Mo .az%m__ma ) muasz Ase o_omu Kem-z Bu »;w .
19311 UBIH PUE 607y UO 1wl poads ydwi 07 uonesado ~ PP WNWUIL ‘SABMI00} BpIM SBY Pe0y BUILLED PUB 103AS UBH W poads ydw O - Aluo SapAa 1 SaNG - Aluo
Buissos ueLsapad ,uedliad, fem ouo sey Ae s 861099 0] pecy Buluue) - 19eng YBIH  + o X 1915 UBIH BIn B0JE 218nbS AYIULL 0) SS9008 JEINOIYBAON = 19941S YBIH OJUO X3 - (PUNOGISam) peoy BuIUUE Ul Uojesado Aemauo  «
uoounf 19015 UBIH / 60 = uopounf peoy Bujuue) /100as UBIH
12 ™ = ERI
% 5 i : I
S =
o =
= &
O & Tk 1
! < A ' P
; 3 ; : \ 1 -
| o © e 1 ) 033
< = A Q
2 0% : \ :
= -
> \\ VoM
F 3 3 N\
OH jJosung E H Y 90 © W
= i i o
o g £ 3 7 © \
9z o1l /
S N 2 %

o\ L9

135



This page is intentionally left blank

136



APPENDIX E — TRINITY SQUARE VISUALISATION

137



This page is intentionally left blank

138



APPENDIX F — KODAK DEVELOPMENT DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS

Item

Trigger for release of
funds

Contribution

Comment

Access Contribution, Prior to £29,603.00 Victor Rd / Pinner View

Improvements to Pinner View and | commencement of estate - scheme for

the acess route to Headstone Phase 1B 2017/18

Manor

Advance Sum, Highway Works - Prior to £50,000.00 Headstone Drive /

Design Scheme commencement Harrow View - Design
2016/17

Highways Works, At least Within four weeks of £831,800.00 Headstone Drive /

£15,000.00 shall be applied on receipt of the Council's Harrow View -

reviewing and implementing traffic | Highway Works Implementation 2017/18

calming measures if required Notice.

Bus Countdown,Providing bus Prior to first occupation | £34,936.00

countdown facilities at bus stops of Phase A

on and within 500m of any edge of

the Land

Bus Countdown Bus Service and Prior to practical £425,636.00

Bus Stop, Bus countdown facilities | completion o the first

at bus stops on and within 500m Development Zone

of any edge of the Land; cost of within Phase 1B.

providing additional frequency on

the existing H14 bus service (or

such other bus service or bus

route as may be jointly agreed by

the Council and the Owner) and

the cost of upgrading bus stops

within 500m of any edge of the

Land in accordance with

Transport for London's Accessible

Bus Stop Design Guidance (or

any such replacement guidance)

Bus Coutdown, Bus countdown Practical completion of | £7,064.00

facilities at bus stops on and the first development

within 500m of any edge of the zone within Phase 1B

Land

Bus Service, Cost of providing Prior to £374,310.00

additional frequency on the commencement of

existing H14 bus service (or such | development of Phase

other bus service or bus route as 2

may be jointly agreed by the

Council and the Owner)

Bus Service, Cost of providing Prior to £75,690.00

additional frequency on the commencement of

existing H14 bus service (or such | Phase 1B

other bus service or bus route as

may be jointly agreed by the

Council and the Owner)

Bus Stop, Upgrading bus stops Prior to first occupation | £16,636.00

within 500m of any edge of the of Phase A

Land in accordance with

Transport for London's Accessible

Bus Stop Design Guidance (or

any such replacement guidance)

Bus Stop, Upgrading bus stops Practical completion of | £3,364.00

within 500m of any edge of the
Land in accordance with
Transport for London's Accessible
Bus Stop Design Guidance (or
any such replacement guidance)

the first development
zone within Phase 1B

139




Item

Trigger for release of
funds

Contribution

Comment

Cecil Road, Improvements to Prior to £124,770.00 Ellen Webb Drive / Cecil
Cecil Road/Ellen Webb Drive commencement of Road - Junction
junction Phase A improvement
Cecil Road, Improvements to Prior to £25,230.00
Cecil Road/Ellen Webb Drive commencement of
junction Phase 1B
CPZ Implementation A, Implement | Prior to first occupation | £23,075.00
CPZ for Phase A of Phase A
CPZ Implementation B, Implement | Prior to first occupation | £23,075.00
CPZ for Phase B of Phase B
CPZ Implementation C, Prior to first occupation | £23,075.00
Implement CPZ for Phase C of Phase C
CPZ Implementation D, Prior to first occupation | £23,075.00
Implement CPZ for Phase D of Phase D
CPZ Implementation, CPZ or £92,300.00
other general parking controls in
the CPZ area in order to mitigate
the negative impacts of the
Development on parking in those
areas
CPZ Implementation, CPZ or £37,700.00
other general parking controls in
the CPZ area in order to mitigate
the negative impacts of the
Development on parking in those
areas
CPZ Monitoring Phase A, Prior to first occupation | £3,550.00
Monitoring th need to introduce a | of Phase A
CPZ in respect of Phase A as a
result of the Development.
CPZ Monitoring Phase B, Prior to first occupation | £3,550.00
Monitoring th need to introduce a | of Phase B
CPZ in respect of Phase B as a
result of the Development.
CPZ Monitoring Phase C, Prior to first occupation | £3,550.00
Monitoring th need to introduce a | of Phase C
CPZ in respect of Phase C as a
result of the Development.
CPZ Monitoring Phase D, Prior to first occupation | £3,550.00
Monitoring th need to introduce a | of Phase D
CPZ in respect of Phase D as a
result of the Development.
CPZ Monitoring, Monitor impact of | Prior to first occupation | £5,800.00
each Phase of the Development of Phase 1B
on parking capacity in the CPZ
aRea and preparing any required
CPZ Report
Cycle Quietway Route, Delivery of | Prior to commencemnt | £50,000.00 To support major scheme
Cycle Quietway Rote along of Phase D bid
Harrow View
Greenhill Way, Junction Prior to £124,770.00
improvments at Headstone commencement of
Road/Greenhill Way junction Development of Phase
2
Greenhill Way, Junction Prior to occupation of £25,230.00
improvments at Headstone Phase 1B
Road/Greenhill Way junction
Pedestrian, Cycle and pedestrian | Prior to £224,586.00 To support major scheme
improvement between the Land commencement of bid
and the Town Centre Phase 1A.

140




Item

Trigger for release of
funds

Contribution

Comment

Pedestrian, Cycle and pedestrian | Prior to £45,414.00 To support major scheme

improvement between the Land commencement of bid

and the Town Centre Phase 1B

Signage and Wayfinding Phase A, | Practical Completion £2,523.00

Legible London wayfinding signs of Phase 1B

along Headstone Drive and Ellen

Webb Drive

Signage and Wayfinding Phase C, | Prior to first occupation | £12,477.00

Legible London wayfinding signs of Phase C

along Headstone Drive and Ellen

Webb Drive

Travel Plan Phase A, Security for | Prior to first occupation | £20,795.00

the due performance by the of Phase A

Owner of the objective measures

and targets in the Travel Plane

Travel Plan Phase B Prior to first occupation | £20,795.00
of Phase B

Travel Plan Phase C Prior to first occupation | £20,795.00
of Phase C

Travel Plan Phase D Prior to first occupation | £20,795.00
of Phase D

Travel Plan, Security for the due Prior to first occupation | £16,820.00

performance by the Owner of the | of Phase B

objective measures and targets in

the Travel Plane

Underpass, Improvements to the Prior to £124,770.00

railway bridge underpass between | commencement of

the Land and the Town Centre Phase A

Underpass, Improvements to the Prior to £25,230.00

railway bridge underpass between | commencement of

the Land and the Town Centre Phase 1B

Wayfinding, Providing Legible Practical completion of | £12,477.00

London wayfinding signs along Phase 3.

Harrow View

Wayfinding, Providing Legible Prior to practical £2,523.00

London wayfinding signs along
Harrow View

completion of Phase
1B

141




This page is intentionally left blank

142



APPENDIX G — HEADSTONE DRIVE / ELLEN WEBB DRIVE / CECIL ROAD JUNCTION

2004 _ (00z:1 3TYOS) NOLLONNF Q3SITYNDIS Z NOILHO - YON 11030 | C = | SNDILV

QIA0OWEY 38 0L ONISSOHD 000’5650 - ALYWILED 180D
NYIHLS303d DNILSIXT [ Q30O 38 TIM STNISSOBD NYIHLSI03d A3 TI0HINDD

SAlMA mwhh_ﬁ . ) "HHOM LN BRI 3L TOMISSIHD NYDNGL A S0

O KOILENHEI0 BNISOED SHOLLINAN INSDTaY DL K98 3000 14D ONILEIHE HUM J NI OL 3A1HA 2830 KITIE 40

T ONISSOHD @INGD INHD INOLETVIH / INHD AEIN NTTHE NC SFIAHIA | AMMLOOD NEHLHON ND O30IACH AVMI00S I8N 0FUYHS
NY|HL15303d

NITAMLIE AVAMLOOL i *MOLLINar 'INHA SAINIE LY LNCAVINIDH

QIYYHS 0IS0404d  ALISDIad B0 LNOBYONNOH ¥ 40 IS0HL NYHL H30EY1 38 T1IM ML ONY SNIHE BEIM N3 1T NIIMLIE AVMLOCS

A0 TMOISOVEH | IARME BEIM NT1TH MO SAFTI0 FWIL ATNHNDE NHEH L NOE KO OFOACHC 38 0L NMID0H 380 03HYHS

ETYNDIS DIHHYEL 08 309 S1S00 NOILONHISNOD HIHDH "OINIVLNIVIN SE 5 LNSIRIAD I TI0IHZA T

SIOVINYATYEI]

BITHANYADY

TYSIvEdEY NOILONAr J3SITvNOIlS

7

s A i e e

B F

AYMLOOAH 38N
OTHYHS 035040
sy
a3s0d0ud

AYMLOOD J380d40ud

AVMLOOS 38N OIHVHS 0350d0ud \\\.\

ERi-LAN
a3sive

DNISSOHD
Q3TIOEINGD

143



This page is intentionally left blank

144



HEADSTONE DRIVE / HARROW VIEW /| HEADSTONE GARDENS

APPENDIX H -

e S 1 i oo sl sioes L Bt

<u|_ \00-B-17253L TR ¥R ) ozt 3153 e -
P I A Ill’ 3 MEDHI 3 AT T30=0ed
Snow v @ | NS0 Anesa -

| a0 OISIEH 7 wIn wosevH 30wl BBy INe
o o e

MRS DR (B Iilslee

01| BEs

LT R

145



This page is intentionally left blank

146



Agenda Item 12
Pages 147 to 190

Traffic And Road Safety
Advisory Panel

Date of Meeting:
Subject:

Responsible
Officer:

Exempt:

Wards affected:

Enclosures:

23 November 2016

INFORMATION REPORT

2016 /17 Traffic and Parking Schemes
Programme update

Tom McCourt — Corporate Director,
Community

No

All

Appendix A - Parking management
programme 2016/17

Appendix B - Transport for London
programme 2016/17

Appendix C - Longfield School, 20 mph zone
Appendix D - Park High School, 20 mph zone
Appendix E - High Road, Harrow Weald- LSS
Appendix F — Station Road, Entry Treatments
Appendix G — Bacon Lane, 20mph zone Ext
Appendix H — Whitefriars, 20mph zone Ext

Appendix J — Kenton Road to HLC, Cycle
scheme

Appendix K — Imperial Drive, Cycle scheme
Appendix L — The Ridgeway, Bus scheme

( %?/‘fﬂhCDUNCIL )

LONDON

147



Section 1 - Summary

This information report is presented to members to provide an update on
progress with the 2016 /17 traffic and parking management programme of works.
This includes schemes funded by Transport for London (TfL) and schemes
included in Harrow’s Capital Programme. The information contained in this report

reflects the latest position at the time of writing this report.

FOR INFORMATION

Section 2 - Report

2.1

2.2

2.3

General

This information report provides members with an update on the current
programme of transport schemes and initiatives funded in the 2016/17
programme. This includes schemes funded by Transport for London grant and
the Harrow capital programme. Appendices A and B provides a summary of
progress with all the schemes within the current programme.

More detail on certain schemes is provided below in the body of the report where
they have reached the public consultation, statutory consultation or
implementation stages and any other specific issues of interest to members.

Harrow Capital 2016/17

Parking management programme

The 2016/17 parking programme was agreed at Traffic and Road Safety
Advisory Panel (TARSAP) meeting in February 2016. There are five schemes
from previous year being carried forward and these are:

e Headstone Lane Station Area — New CPZ (Z) Monday to Friday 10 am
to 3 pm — Scheme has been implemented and became operational 1°
October 2016

e Wealdstone CPZ (by Colart development) — New CPZ (C1) Monday to
Sunday 8 am to Midnight — Scheme been implemented and became
operational 1% October 2016

e South Harrow CPZ — New zone (M1) Monday to Saturday 10 am to 9
pm, new zone (M2) Monday to Saturday 8 am to 6.30 pm and extension
of existing zone (M) to include Wyvenhoe Road — Scheme have been
implemented and became operational 15! October 2016

e Hatch End CPZ — New zone Monday to Saturday 10 am to 11 am -
statutory notification completed results/ recommendations to be
reported TARSAP recommending no changes to existing CPZ (Y)

148



24

2.5

2.6

e Somerset Road area (North Harrow) — PH approval obtained to
proceed to implementation, works instructions issued to Kier awaiting
completion date (possibly late December 2016)

There are six new schemes in this year’s programme as follows:

e Pangbourne Drive, Canons Park extension of existing CPZ (H) — 2 week
public consultation to end 28™ Oct 2016 results to be reported/discussed
with the ward councillors, Chair and PH to seek approval to proceed to
legal notification.

o West Avenue, Rayners Lane — Extension of Zone (L) to include west
Avenue — Scheme has been implemented and became operational 1%
October 2016

o Wealdstone (by leisure centre) — roads to west and north of Leisure
Centre - area parking review to consider longer control hours and or
possible extension of existing CPZ (CA) — Stakeholder meeting held 18"
Oct 2018, public consultations being prepared.

o Kerry Court area, Stanmore — localised review for possible extended
CPZ hours to stop mini cabs and obstructive parking — meeting to be
arranged with local ward councillors to discuss options to take forward to
public consultation.

e Burnt Oak Broadway area — localised review and possible extension to
CPZ (X) and P&D on main road.

o Belmont Circle area
Localised statutory notification review to convert double yellow lines
back to single yellow lines operating Mon —Sat 8:00am - 6:30 pm —
Completed/Implemented
-Install P&D in Kenton Lane and Kingshill Drive car parks — Legal
notification/consultation to be undertaken between 27" October 2016 to
16" November 2016 results to be reported to local councillors, Chair of
TARSAP and the Portfolio Holder for Environment, Crime & Community
Safety (PH)

The Hatch End and North Harrow extension schemes did not commence until
September 2015 as stipulated by TARSAP. Both schemes have undergone
public consultation and the results were presented to February 2016 panel
meeting. Both schemes have now been to statutory consultation and the results
shared with local councillors, the chair of TARSAP and the PH.

Localised Safety Parking Schemes Programme (LSPP)

This programme is concerned with localised sites where minor parking problems
occur. Typically remedial measures consist of proposals for single or double
yellow lines at junctions, bends and narrow sections of road in order to improve
vehicular access or improve road safety. These measures also reinforce the well-
established principles set out in The Highway Code. This is an on-going rolling
programme of works and members will be advised of the locations included in
the programme during the course of the year.

149



2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.1

Transport for London — Local Implementation Plan Programme 2016/17

Walking Projects

There is one walking scheme scheduled for implementation this financial year.
This will involve providing a formal pedestrian crossing facility on Honeypot Lane
(between Broadcroft Avenue and Dalston Gardens). Initial investigations and
surveys are complete and a scheme is being designed in discussion with TfL.

20 mph zone programme

There are currently thirty three zones in Harrow which are concentrated mainly
around schools. Implementing these zones is an objective set out in the
council’s Transport Local Implementation Plan and aims to improve road safety
and reduce accidents, reduce through traffic and traffic speeds and improves the
pedestrian environment to encourage a greater up take of walking and cycling.

All 20 mph zones need to be self-enforcing without relying on police enforcement
and so most schemes include traffic calming measures, such as road humps, in
order to ensure a majority of motorists comply with the 20 mph speed limit. There
is a budget of £130,000 this year for two new 20 mph zones in the streets
surrounding Longfield and Park High Schools.

Longfield School

The informal public consultation for the Longfield School 20mph zone took place
from the 23rd July until 2nd September 2016. In total 468 leaflets were delivered
with 87 responses (19% response rate). The results of the informal public
consultation were as follows:

Are you in favour of the proposed 20mph scheme
Street name Don't Know No Yes Road Total
Chester Drive (33%)4 | (67%) 8 12
Church Drive (33%) 5 | (67%) 10 15
Dukes Avenue (100%) 1 1
Farm Avenue (20%) 1 (80%) 4
Hawthorn Drive (25%) 3 | (75%) 9
Lankers Drive (13%) 2 | (87%) 13
No road name (43%) 3 | (57%) 4
Norwood Drive (36%) 4 | (64%)7 11
Park Drive (33%) 3 | (67%) 6 9
Grand Total (1%) 1 (28%) 24 | (71%) 62 87

In order to improve visibility for drivers and pedestrians at the existing zebra
crossing facility on Rayners lane, it is proposed to extend the kerb build out
which will remove a parking bay. Local residents were asked whether they
supported this proposal. The results are tabulated below:

150



212

2.13

2.14

Are you in favour of the buildout at the zebra crossing on Rayners Lane

Street name Don't know No Yes Road Totals
Chester Drive (25%) 3 (8%) 1 (67%) 8 12
Church Drive (13%) 2 (20%) 3 (67%) 10 15
Dukes Avenue (100%) 1 1
Farm Avenue (100%) 5

Hawthorn Drive (33%) 4 (67%) 8

Lankers Drive (7%)1 (20%) 3 (73%) 11

No road name (43%) 3 (57%) 4

Norwood Drive (8%) 1 (8%) 1 (83%) 9 11
Park Drive (22%) 2 (44%) 4 (33%) 3 9
Grand Total (13%) 12 (18%) 16 | (68%) 59 87

The Portfolio Holder (PH) for Environment, Crime & Community has agreed to
proceed to statutory consultation and implementation on both schemes subject to

resolving any objections. Appendix C shows details of the 20 mph zone
proposals for information.

Park High School

The informal public consultation for the Park High School 20mph zone took place
from the 23" July until 12" August 2016. In total 1255 leaflets were delivered

with 143 returned (11% response rate). The results of the informal public
consultation were as follows:

Are you in favour of the proposed 20mph scheme

Road Don't Know No Yes Road Total
Anmersh Grove (11%) 1 | (89%) 8 9
Bromefield (20%) 2 (50%) 5 | (30%) 3 10
Burnell Gardens (100%) 7 7
Bush Grove (24%) 4 | (76%) 12 16
Crowshott Ave (18%)2 | (82%) 9 11
Gyles Park (30%)3 | (70%) 7 10
Home Mead (100%) 2 2
Ladycroft Walk (67%)6 | (33%)3 9
Lamorna Grove (25%) 2 | (75%) 6 8
Lyon Meade (36%)4 | (64%)7 11
No road name (19%) 4 | (81%)17 21
Peareswood Gardens (33%)1 | (67%) 2 3
Pickett Croft (100%) 4 4
Thistlecroft Gardens (33%) 3 | (87%)18 21
Grand Total (2%)2 (24%)36 | (74%)105 143

In order to reduce traffic speeds and improve safety for pedestrians, a raised
table and kerb build out on Honeypot lane service road has been included within

151




the proposals. Overall support (76%) was demonstrated for this aspect of the

proposals
Are you in favour of the proposed raised table and kerb buildout on
Honeypot Lane service road
Road Don't Know No Yes Road Total
Burnell Gardens (100%) 1 1
Anmersh Grove (100%) 9 9
Bromefield (100%) 10 10
Burnell Gardens (50%) 3 (50%) 3 6
Bush Grove (29%) 5 (12%)2 | (59%) 9 16
Crowshott Ave (18%) 2 (82%) 9 11
Gyles Park (10%) 1 (20%)2 | (70%) 7 10
Home Mead (100%) 2 2
Ladycroft Walk (44%)4 | (56%) 5 9
Lamorna Grove (25%) 2 (75%) 6 8
Lyon Meade (9%) 1 (36%)4 | (55%)6 11
No road name (19%) 4 | (81%) 17 21
Peareswood Gardens (25%) 1 (75%) 3 4
Pickett Croft (100%) 4 4
Thistlecroft Gardens (17%) 1 (83%) 20 21
(12%)
Grand Total (12%) 15 18 (76%)110 143

2.15 A further question asked residents regarding the proposed double yellow line
waiting restrictions on Thistlecroft Gardens to deal with obstructive parking.

2.16  The results indicated that there was marginal widespread support (52%) for
double yellow lines in Thistlecroft Gardens with the results from Thistlecroft
Gardens itself showing 12 (57%) in favour and 9 (43%) not in favour therefore
because support was demonstrated it was recommended to the PH that we
proceed to statutory consultation with this proposal.

Are you in favour of the proposed double yellow line waiting
restrictions on Thistlecroft Gardens
Road Don't Know No Yes Road Total
Anmersh Grove (11%) 1 (89%) 8 9
Bromefield (30%) 3 | (70%) 7 10
Burnell Gardens (28%) 2 (28%) 2 | (43%) 3 7
(75%)
Bush Grove (12%) 2 (12%) 2 12 16
Crowshott Ave (36%) 4 (36%) 4 | (27%) 3 11
Gyles Park (30%) 3 (10%) 1 | (60%) 6 10
(100%)
Home Mead 2 2
Ladycroft Walk (44%) 4 | (56%) 5 9
Lamorna Grove (17%) 1 (50%) 3 | (33%) 2 6

152



2.17

2.18

2.19

2.20

2.21

2.22

2.23

Lyon Meade (64%) 7 | (36%) 4 11

No road name (28%) 6 (28%)6 | (43%)9 21

Peareswood Gardens (75%) 3 (25%) 1 4
(100%)

Pickett Croft 4 4

(57%)

Thistlecroft Gardens (43%) 9 12 21
(32%) (52%)

Grand Total (16%) 23 46 74 143

The PH has agreed to proceed to statutory consultation and implementation
subject to resolving any objections. Appendix D shows details of the scheme.

Local Safety Schemes (LSS)

This programme of work is focussed on reducing killed and seriously injured
accidents throughout the borough and supports the objectives of the Mayor for
London’s and our own Road Safety Plan to reduce Killed and Seriously Injured
accidents by 40% by 2020.

The Council’s transport consultant is continuing design work from last year with
regard to a scheme for High Road, Harrow Weald and changes to the signal
phasing at Alexandra Avenue/Eastcote Lane junction. This required remodelling
of the junction in discussion with TfL who own and operate all traffic signals on
the public highway in London.

Honeypot Lane service road (near Wemborough Road) has been included within
this year’s programme due to the high level of pedestrian accidents and a
scheme to address these accidents is in development.

The informal public engagement for the High Road, Harrow Weald scheme took
place between 16th and 30th September 2016. In total around 109 leaflets were
delivered. The feedback regarding the proposals was generally positive however
the level of responses was very disappointing with a total of five responses being
recorded. The PH agreed to proceed to statutory consultation and
implementation subject to resolving any objections. Appendix E shows details of
the scheme.

The informal public consultation for the Honeypot Lane Service Road proposals

was included within the Park High 20mph zone consultation. The PH has agreed
to proceed to statutory consultation and implementation subject to resolving any
objections. Appendix D shows details of the scheme

Bus Priority
Harrow Council works closely with Transport for London (TfL) to make bus

services a more attractive and reliable mode of transport by promoting the use of
public transport and improving the highway infrastructure to facilitate bus routes

153



2.24

2.25

2.26

2.27

and bus movements. The following areas have been highlighted in this year’s
programme for improvements:

e Eastcote Lane (Phase 2 between Alexandra Avenue and Roxeth Green
Avenue)
High Road, Harrow Weald

¢ The Ridgeway (between the bridge and Imperial Drive junction)

Eastcote Lane Bus Route Improvement Scheme

Eastcote Lane (Phase 2) is the extension of bus route improvement measures
that were carried out along Eastcote Lane last financial year. The section of the
road identified for investigation is between Alexandra Avenue and Roxeth Green
Avenue. A preliminary design is being developed.

High Road, Harrow Weald Bus Route Improvement Scheme

High Road, Harrow Weald is a new location where congestion and safety issues
were identified involving buses. This scheme is combined with the High Road
local safety scheme in order to deliver a holistic improvement. The proposals are
shown in Appendix E.

The Ridgeway Bus Route Improvement Scheme

The bus route H11 reliability is affected along the section of The Ridgeway
between Imperial Drive and Whitmore Road. The main issue identified as the
reason for delays on this route is traffic congestion caused by vehicles parking
on both sides of The Ridgeway. After detailed investigation, measures have been
identified to improve the existing situation and to prevent delays to buses and
other traffic.

The proposals are targeted at addressing the traffic congestion issue along The
Ridgeway, whilst consideration has also been given to pedestrian safety and
minimising the loss of parking spaces for local residents. Please refer to the
attached plans for more detail. The proposals are shown in Appendix L and
include the following measures:

o Carriageway widening: The carriageway will be widened to allow two buses to
pass each other simultaneously, in the areas where vehicles are parked.

e Bus Stop build outs: In order to improve accessibility and the ability for buses
to enter and exit the bus stops, bus cages and footway build outs have been
provided where possible.

e Trees, lamp columns and other street furniture: In order to facilitate new kerb
alignments, it is required to remove or relocate some of the existing street
furniture, trees and lamp columns along The Ridgeway. Some trees along The
Ridgeway are diseased, dying or causing damage to footways and require
high maintenance. These trees are planned to be replaced with new trees,

154



2.28

2.29

2.30

2.31

2.32

irrespective of the scheme. Hence we are taking this opportunity to plant same
number of trees along the road.

¢ Vehicle crossovers: All existing vehicle access to the properties will remain
unaffected by the scheme proposals. If you are considering applying for new
vehicle crossover or would like to widen your existing crossover we
recommend that you apply now. This is because contractors may be working
near your property and therefore we may be able to offer new vehicle
crossovers at a reduced cost to properties within the scheme area only.

An informal public consultation exercise was carried out in July- August 2016
which demonstrated majority support with 55% in favour 42% against and 3%
indicating that they didn’t know.

The PH has agreed to proceed with implementation to the measures subject to
resolving any objections that the council may receive during statutory
consultation on double yellow lines.

Bus Stop Accessibility

The bus stop accessibility programme is recognised as a crucial element in the
drive to improve the quality of bus services. Currently the borough is 97%
compliant and we are one of only a few boroughs in London with such a high
percentage of compliant bus stops. The 2016/17 programme will include reviews
and improvements at bus stop in the following areas and the Council intends to
achieve 100% compliance as soon as possible. The following areas are
programmed for works:

Kenton Lane
Village Way

Elm Park Road
Brookshill and
Headstone Lane

Additional bus stops may be investigated for improvements based on ad hoc
requests from TfL, bus operators or other stakeholders. TfL has confirmed that
additional monies are available to complete the programme and the Council will
be pursuing this further.

Freight Strategy

In recent years a network of designated HGV routes across the borough have
been signed using advance direction signing to guide freight traffic to the main
commercial and industrial sites in the borough. This minimises freight traffic
using other inappropriate through routes in the borough. In addition to this
advance warning signing for width restrictions in the borough have been modified
and improved to include metric and imperial measurements to comply with
national traffic signs guidance. Recent surveys have concluded that these
measures have had a positive impact on ensuring HGV drivers use the
designated routes to travel to freight destinations.

155



2.33

2.34

2.35

2.36

2.37

2.38

2.39

2.40

2.41

In this year’s programme it is intended to review the existing lorry ban (weight
limit restriction) areas in the borough with regard to their extents, level of
compliance and enforceability. Currently these areas are very large and
impractical to enforce and this review will consider alternative designs which
could be more easily enforced and protect residential streets on non-through
routes more effectively. This will involve checking the existing entry and exit
signing. This work is currently underway.

Leqible London

Pedestrian way finding signs will be provided in the central parts of Hatch End
and Pinner. The provisional artwork and site locations have been agreed with
TfL, local community groups and West House. Works have been issued to the
contractors and it is anticipated that the signs will be installed in March 2017.

Station Road (A409 Corridor) - Central Parade and Eastern Parade

The council was successful in securing additional funds from the GLA to continue
the work started in 2014/15 to improve the Station Road corridor. The work last
year focused on improving the public realm at Central Parade and Eastern
Parade on the opposite side of the road.

Whilst undertaking trial holes on Eastern Parade, a concrete plinth encasing
unidentified statutory undertakers plant was unearthed which resulted in the
works being temporarily deferred pending further investigations. As a result, only
the works on Central Parade and a small section of Eastern Parade (by the
junction with EImgrove Road) were completed.

Following investigations of the unidentified plant cables, it was determined that
they were redundant cables belonging to Transport for London associated with
the nearby signalised junction. Phased works are therefore planned to
commence in early November to allow for the Christmas period embargo.

The remaining part of the corridor scheme is to provide raised entry treatments to
the side roads off Station Road between Central Parade and the Civic Centre.

The informal public engagement for the raised entry treatments took place
between 16th and 30th September 2016. In total around 243 leaflets were
delivered. The feedback regarding the proposals was generally positive however
the level of responses was very disappointing with a total of four responses being
recorded.

The PH agreed to proceed to statutory consultation and implementation subject
to resolving any objections. Appendix F shows details of the scheme

Cycling schemes

A scheme to improve cycling facilities connecting Kenton Road near Kenton
Station and the Harrow Leisure Centre is being taken forward.

156



2.42

2.43

2.44

2.45

The aim of the scheme is to investigate and provide suitable cycling facilities
(e.g. cycle lanes / tracks with appropriate lining, signing, etc.) to improve and
encourage cycling between Kenton Road Station and the Harrow Leisure Centre.
The proposals include the following measures along Christchurch Avenue and
Francis Road / EImwood Avenue junction. The proposals are shown in
Appendix J:

Christchurch Avenue:

The council is proposing to convert existing footway on the southern side of
Christchurch Avenue between Kenmore Avenue and The Hollies to shared cycle
and pedestrian use and on the northern side adjacent to the Belmont Trail.

The existing pedestrian refuge island is proposed to be removed and replaced
with a parallel Cycle and Zebra crossing adjacent to the entrance at The Hollies.
These facilities will help to connect the proposed shared cycle facility on
southern footpath with the Belmont Trail.

At the Christchurch Avenue / Kenmore Avenue junction, the pedestrian crossing
islands are proposed to be altered to enable the footways to be widened at this
location.

The shared use cycle route will consist of repeater signs on bollards, erected at
regular intervals along the route.

Francis Road - EImwood Avenue

A small section of shared use footway is proposed at the end of Francis Road
and Elmwood Avenue. This improvement will ease cycle access and connect the
cycle routes on Francis Road and EImwood Avenue.

The public consultation on the proposals will commence from 14" November
2016, asking local residents to provide their comments/concerns on the
proposals.

Local Transport Fund (LTF) 2016/17

The TfL award for funding in 2016/17 included a local transport funding allocation
of £100,000. This budget is allocated to boroughs through the Local
Implementation Plan (LIP) funding process. The funds must be used for transport
purposes broadly consistent with the Mayor’s Transport Strategy and the
borough’s LIP but no other criteria apply to this allocation. Members agreed a
programme of LTF schemes at the February TARSAP meeting.

Imperial Drive cycle route (LTF)

A scheme has been developed to promote a safer off road shared use facility for
all cycle users, particularly less experienced cyclists, along this busy route that
connects North Harrow and Rayners Lane stations.

157



2.46

2.47

2.48

2.49

2.50

The council is proposing to provide a shared use cycle route both sides of
Imperial Drive using the existing footways. The proposals are shown in
Appendix K and are as follows:

o Western side: The shared use footpath is proposed between Imperial Court
adjacent to Village Way East and Imperial Close. The existing segregated
cycle track on the footway between Imperial Court and Rayners Lane and
between Imperial Close and The Ridgeway will be retained.

e Eastern side: A shared use cycle route is proposed from the northern end
of service road opposite Rayners Lane Station up to The Ridgeway
junction. The existing cycle route on the carriageway between Rayners
Lane and The Ridgeway will be removed.

The shared use cycle route will be clearly signed at the start and end of the
routes and repeater signs erected at regular intervals to inform all road users of
the shared cycle facilities in the area. The council has already built a number of
off-road facilities at various sites across the boroughs which have been
successful in its operation.

The public consultation on the proposals will commence from 14" November
2016, asking local residents to provide their comments/concerns on the
proposals.

Bacon Lane, extension to existing 20mph zone (LTF)

The existing Bacon Lane 20 mph zone will be extended to help to reduce traffic
speeds in neighbouring roads such as the Highlands and generally improve road
safety for all road users.

The informal public consultation for the Bacon Lane 20mph zone extension took
place from the 23 July until 2" September 2016. In total 312 leaflets were
delivered with 19 returned (7% response rate). The results of the informal public
consultation were as follows:

Are you in favour of the proposed 20mph scheme

Street name No Yes Road Total

Argyll Gardens (100%)1 1
Gordon Gardens (100%)1 1
Kenmore Gardens (100%)5 5
No road name (100%)1 1
Strathmore Gardens (100%)3 3
The Highlands (100%)8 8
Grand Total (5%) 1 (95%) 18 19

158



2.51

2.52

2.53

2.54

2.55

The PH has agreed to proceed to statutory consultation and implementation on
both schemes subject to resolving any objections. Appendix G shows details of
the scheme

Whitefriars School, extension to existing 20 mph zone (LTF)

The existing Whitefriars School 20 mph zone will be extended to help to reduce
traffic speeds in neighbouring roads such as Carmelite Road and generally
improve road safety for all road users.

The informal public consultation for the Whitefriars 20mph zone extension took
place from the 23™ July until 2nd September 2016. In total 813 leaflets were
delivered with 73 responses (9% response rate). The results of the informal
public consultation were as follows:

Are you in favour of the proposed 20mph scheme

Don't Road
Street name know No Yes Total
Bancroft Road (100%) 1 1
Carmelite Close (100%)1 1
Carmelite Road (10%) 2 (90%)18 20
Carmelite Walk (100%)1 1
Clewer Crescent (17%)1 (83%) 5 6
Hampden Road (11%)2 (89%) 16 18
Lynn Close (100%)1 1
No road name (100%) 6
Regency Lodge, 64-68
Wolesley Road, Cardinal
Way (100%) 1 1
Ross Close (100%) 1 1
Weald Lane (50%) 1 (50%) 1 2
Wellington Road (10%) 1 (90%) 7 8
Windsor Road (43 %) 3 (57%) 4 7
Grand Total (3%) 2 (14%) 10 | (83%) 61 73

The PH has agreed to proceed to statutory consultation and implementation on
both schemes subject to resolving any objections. Appendix H shows details of
the scheme

Tregenna Avenue / Alexandra Avenue, Junction Improvement (LTF)

A junction improvement is proposed in this location to reduce the
disproportionately high number of slight injury accidents. The improvements
proposed include introducing a one way section of carriageway to reduce the
number of potential conflicts at the junction, to improve access and to manage on
street parking in a more regulated manner. The Council’s engaged transport
consultant is currently working on the design.

Minor safety measures, road markings / traffic signs (LTF)

159



2.56

2.57

2.58

2.59

2.60

2.61

2.62

The council receives many requests each year from local residents and other
stakeholders for localised measures to improve road safety. Not all requests
meet our criteria for traffic calming measures such as road humps, chicanes etc.
and so this programme of work will be used throughout the year to address minor
local safety concerns that are not prioritised for more major interventions but
could benefit from minor works.

Congestion Relief schemes

Traffic congestion occurs when the demand to make journeys gets close to or
exceeds the network capacity and is characterised by slower speeds, longer
journey times, and vehicle queues. This programme of work seeks to identify
areas of the network where improvements can maximise network capacity by
removing blockages and ensuring that traffic management is efficient and
effective.

A corridor along Wemborough Road, Weston Drive and up to and including
Belmont Circle has been identified as an area of concern. A study is therefore
proposed along this route to identify any potential causes of congestion and
suggest remedial measures. The Council’'s engaged transport consultant is
carrying out this study and will be submitting the detailed report shortly. The
report will highlight any recommendations which we can then implemented or
which require further investigation.

School Travel Plan - Highway schemes

As a part of the school expansion programme and associated transport
assessments, approved by the Planning Committee, some highway
improvements have been identified to mitigate the traffic impact of expansion.
This programme of work takes forward any agreed mitigations identified.

A proposal to introduce parking controls in the access road and parking areas
outside Whitchurch School has been identified for implementation this year. This
measure is identified in the transport assessment and travel plan for the
expanded school. Statutory consultation is scheduled before the end of this
calendar year.

Electric Vehicles (EV) infrastructure

In 2015 there were 40 registered plug-in electric vehicles in Harrow. There is a
higher take up of hybrid vehicles that do not need an electric charge point,
however, it is anticipated that by 2018 there are likely to be more than 100
residents with plug-in electric vehicles. While this is still a proportionately low
number of residents this is a growing market.

The council supports EV provision to ensure Harrow remains a competitive
destination for visitors and businesses, as well as for residents. With the focus on
air quality likely to be a priority of the new mayor it is important to ensure the
necessary infrastructure in place and to demonstrate a commitment to electric

160



2.63

2.64

2.65

2.66

2.67

2.68

2.69

vehicles and improving air quality in order to access potential funding streams in
future. Because of the high car ownership in the borough, and the limited orbital
transport networks, encouraging the use of EV would be appropriate for the
borough.

Following a recent meeting with the Portfolio Holder for Environment, Crime and
Community Safety a supplier for introducing the electric vehicle charging
infrastructure has been approved that will offer the least risk and best
opportunities for expanding the number of charging points.

The POLAR network of charging points used by this supplier would link Harrow
to other locations around the UK through an established and credible network,
enabling us to fulfil corporate priorities, meet the needs of residents and
businesses, ensure that Harrow remains an attractive destination with improved
air quality, and potentially support future funding opportunities.

Ultra Low Emission Zone (ULEZ)

In July 2015 London set out its vision to become an ultra-low emission vehicle
(ULEV) capital. TfL, London Councils and eight London Boroughs submitted a
joint bid for £20 million in funding to the Office for Low Emission Vehicles (OLEV)
for the Go Ultra Low City Scheme. The bid builds on the progress made by
London’s innovative policies such as the Congestion Charge and Low Emission
Zone and also the work of local councils to incentivise cleaner vehicles through
parking policies and by expanding charging provision.

London’s bid has been successful in securing £13m to implement the proposed
package of measures. The funding is to be spent on initiatives that will help
encourage the take up of Low Emission vehicles. This is a 4 year programme
and the funding is to be spent between 2016 and 2020.

Harrow’s proposal is to create a neighbourhood of the future in Harrow Town
Centre where Station Road and College Road are restricted to electric vehicles
only (private cars) and electric charging infrastructure is implemented and other
initiatives are introduced to encourage the use of electric vehicles.

There is a separate report on the agenda providing more details about the
proposed initiatives for Harrow.

Accessibility Improvements

This is an on-going programme of work and is concentrated mainly on the
provision of disabled parking bays, dropped kerbs for pedestrians and other
physical changes to highway to support mobility impaired people.

Section 3 - Further Information

3.1

A regular update is provided at every meeting on progress with the annual
programme of traffic and parking schemes. Future reports will provide

161



information to members about any consultations, statutory consultations, portfolio
holder decisions and implementation issues since the previous meeting.

Section 4 - Financial Implications

4.1 Any schemes and works programmes mentioned in this report are being taken
forward using identified resources within the current capital programme and
funding allocation from TfL for 2016/17.

Section 5 - Equalities implications

5.1 All major schemes included in this report, depending on what stage they are at,
have been or will be subject to an equality impact assessment (EqlA).

52 Small to medium sized schemes, depending on what stage they are at, have
been or will be subject to a review of equality issues as a part of the design risk
assessment stage of the scheme.

5.3 In general terms there have been no adverse impacts on any of the specified
equality groups from any of the schemes or initiatives mentioned in this report.
There are positive impacts on some equalities groups, particularly disability and
age.

Section 6 - Council Priorities

6.1 The funds allocated by TfL and Harrow for transport improvements will contribute
to achieving the administration’s priorities:

Making a difference for the vulnerable
Making a difference for communities
Making a difference for local businesses
Making a difference for families

Section 7 - Statutory Officer Clearance

on behalf of the
Name: Jessie Man Chief Financial Officer

Date: 10/11/16

162




Ward Councillors notified: NO, as it impacts on all
wards

Section 8 - Contact Details and Background Papers

Contact:

Barry Philips — Team Leader, Transportation
Tel: 020 8424 1649, Fax: 020 8424 7662,
E-mail: Barry.Philips@harrow.gov.uk

Johann Alles — Deputy Team Leader
Tel: 020, Fax: 020 8424 7662,
E- mail: Johann.Alles@Harrow.gov.uk

Background Papers:

Local Implementation Plan 2
Previous TARSAP reports

163




Vo1

Appendix A — Harrow Capital, parking management schemes update — 2016/17

This is Harrow’s own programme of parking management scheme initiatives which support the delivery of the Local implementation Plan. In
2016/17 this comprises of allocations of £240K for controlled parking schemes and £60K for the local safety parking schemes programme.

Scheme Details £ K | Status Contact officer Planned
finish

Headstone Lane Station area | To implement parking controls in | 7.5 | Statutory notification completed. Barry Philips / Sajjad Oct
New CPZ the streets surrounding the PH approval June 2016 to Farid 2016

station proceed to implementation
Whitefriars School Localised | To implement parking controls in 6 Statutory notification completed. Barry Philips / Sajjad Jul
parking review roads surrounding Whitefriars Awaiting final analysis of results Farid 2016
Wealdstone CPZ (CA zone) | School and PH approval
South Harrow CPZ To implement localised reviews: 10 | Statutory notification complete. Barry Philips / Sajjad Oct
(M zone) 1. New zone-Stanley Rd, PH approval June 2016 to Farid 2016
Localised parking reviews Sherwood Road, 2. New zone- proceed to implementation

Brendon Gardens, Torrington

Drive, Leathsale Road 3.

Extension of existing zone to

include Wyvenhoe Rd,
Hatch End CPZ (Y zone) Localised statutory notificationin | 7.5 | Statutory consultation due Jul Barry Philips / Sajjad Oct
Localised parking review —Westfield Park, Oakdene /Aug 2016 Farid 2016

Close, Thorndyke Court, St

Cuthberts Gardens, EIm Hatch,

Cherry Croft Gardens on

reduced hours of control
Somerset Road Localised statutory consultation 15 | Statutory notification due Jun / Barry Philips / Sajjad Dec
Localised parking review to extend existing CPZ (NH1) in Jul 2016 Farid 2016
North Harrow CPZ Somerset Road, Cornwall Rd
(NH1 zone) and part of Sussex Rd.
Pangbourne Drive Localised review / extension of 14 | Undertake public consultation, Barry Philips / Sajjad Mar
Localised parking review Zone (H), Also single yellow statutory notification and Farid 2017

Stanmore CPZ
(H zones)

lines on Stonebridge slip road
between properties 119-127
(southwest side only) and

implementation




Q91

Scheme Details £ K | Status Contact officer Planned
finish

double yellow lines either side of

the bend adjacent to 14,

Jesmond Way.
West Avenue Localised Localised review / extension of 10 | Undertake public consultation, Barry Philips / Sajjad Sept
parking review zone (L) statutory notification and Farid 2016
Rayners Lane CPZ (L zone) implementation
Wealdstone area localised Area parking review, roads west | 65 | Undertake stakeholder meeting Barry Philips / Sajjad Mar
parking review — roads west | and north of leisure centre — and public consultation Farid 2017
and north of leisure centre extend hours and / or be part of

the existing CPZ (CA zone)
Kerry Court area Localised Localised review — extension of 20 | Undertake public consultation, Barry Philips / Sajjad Mar
parking review existing CPZ (H) hours statutory notification and Farid 2017
Stanmore CPZ (H zone) implementation
Burnt Oak Broadway area Area parking review — new P&D 50 | Undertake public consultation, Barry Philips / Sajjad Mar
(X zone) on main road and extension of statutory notification and Farid 2017
Localised parking review existing zone (X) implementation
Belmont Circle area Localised statutory notification 35 | Undertake statutory notification Barry Philips / Sajjad | Mar
Localised parking review review — changing double yellow and implementation Farid 2017

lines back to single yellow lines

and introduce P&D in Kenton

Lane car park and Kingshill car

park
Local Safety Parking The introduction of minor 60 | On-going prioritisation / Barry Philips / Sally Mar
Schemes Programme localised waiting restrictions implementation of requests for Wilson 2017

(yellow lines) schemes to deal
with access problems and road
safety issues.

yellow lines.




997

Appendix B — Transport for London, local implementation plan programme update — 2016/17

This is the main traffic and transportation programme funded by Transport for London to deliver the programme of investment in the Transport

Local Implementation Plan (LIP). The overall allocation for traffic and transportation works and initiatives related to the LIP in 2016/17 is
£1,766k. This is allocated as either capital or revenue within Harrow’s financial system depending on the nature of the work undertaken.

TFL Scheme Details £k Status Contact Planned
programme officer finish
Corridors 20 mph zone Implementation of 20mph zones 130 | Traffic surveys organised, Barry Mar 2017
programme around schools in the borough preliminary designs being developed Philips
Corridors Walking Schemes | Infrastructure schemes designed 45 | Pedestrian crossing on Honeypot Barry Mar 2017
to improve walking facilities Lane (near Crowshott Avenue), Philips
Surveys and initial design underway
Corridors Legible London Pedestrian way finding sign 50 | Way finding signs in Pinner and Hatch | Barry Mar 2017
Signing works End being investigated Philips
Corridors Bus route Schemes to improve bus routes 35 | On-going investigations to plan and Barry Mar 2017
inspection studies / | and encourage greater use of develop bus route improvement Philips
works public transport works for future programmes of
work.
Corridors Bus priority works | Schemes to improve congestion 180 o Completion of Eastcote Lane Barry Mar 2017
and improve delays to buses. (Phase 2 between Alexandra Philips
Eastcote Lane, The Ridgeway, Avenue and Roxeth Green
High Road — Harrow Weald Avenue),
¢ High Road, Harrow Weald
undertaking surveys and
preliminary design,
e The Ridgeway — consultation
complete
Bus Priority The Ridgeway bus | Improvements for bus route H11, | 45 e Funding is supporting delivery of Barry Mar 2017
priority scheme carriageway widening and bus the wider bus priority work Philips

stop improvements

programme




91

TFL Scheme Details £k Status Contact Planned
programme officer finish
Corridors Accessibility Provision of Disabled parking 85 | On-going programme of delivery Barry Mar 2017
Improvements bays, and dropped kerbs for throughout the year. Delivered in Philips
pedestrians and other physical batches.
changes to highway to support
mobility impaired people
Corridors Bus stop Programme of works to improve 46 Investigation underway to determine Barry Mar 2017
accessibility accessibility for buses and bus stop improvements at, North Philips
schemes pedestrians at bus stops Harrow Station area, Pinner area
and South Harrow area (including
Shaftesbury Avenue)
Corridors Shopmobility Funding support for increased 5 Funds being used to keep Hanif Islam Mar 2017
opening hours of service Shopmobility open on the first
particularly at weekends and in Saturday of every month. Extra
Christmas sales services were run during Christmas
period.
Corridors Travel Training This will provide support to those 6 To provide targeted travel training Hanif Islam Mar 2017
with learning difficulties to use via Harrow Association of Disabled
public transport People
Corridors Congestion relief Programme of schemes to 70 Route study being undertaken on Barry Mar 2017
studies reduce congestion and improve Wemborough Road, Weston Drive — Philips
journey time reliability surveys and preliminary design
underway
Corridors Cycle training TfL funded cycle training is 80 | On-going delivery of free cycle training | David Corby | Mar 2017

offered free to children and
adults, who live, work or are
educated in the borough. All
courses are promoted via the
council website and throughout
schools and businesses in the
borough.

for children and adults




89T

TFL Scheme Details £k Status Contact Planned
programme officer finish
Corridors Cycling Schemes Programme of schemes to 90 Improvement to create cycle link Barry Mar 2017
improve cycle routes on the between Kenton Road Station and Philips
highway network the Harrow Leisure Centre, surveys
and preliminary design completed
and consultation due to take place in
November
Corridors Cycling and Provision of cycle routes through 60 | Two schemes identified (1) in Barry Mar 2017
Greenways parks to link with wider cycle Newton Park West and (2) Canons Philips
network and support leisure Drive to Howberry Road (east — west
cycling activity. route) through Canons Park, initial
study started, preliminary design
underway
Corridors Freight strategy Review of existing weight limit 40 | Review of Belmont area weight Barry Mar 2017
schemes restriction zones restriction zone, surveys and Philips
investigation and preliminary design underway
implementation
Corridors Accident remedial | Mass action - killed and seriously | 100 | Continue with design on two Barry Mar 2017
schemes injured (KSI) casualties’ schemes identified in 2015/16 on Philips
reduction. High Road — Harrow High Road, Harrow Weald (shared
Weald, Eastcote Lane/Alexandra with Bus Priority) and Eastcote
Avenue, Honeypot Lane service Lane/Alexandra Avenue, a new
road identified site at Honeypot Lane
service road near Wemborough
Road. Surveys/analysis and design
are underway
Corridors Station Road — To create an attractive and safe 50 | Phase 3 of the Station Road corridor Barry Mar 2017
Highway environment along Station Road improvements, preliminary design Philips
Improvements A409 corridor for all highway underway for. Phase 2, Eastern
users, with extra focus on Parade to be completed following
pedestrians, buses and cyclists resolution of statutory undertakers
services issue. Changes to Eastern
Parade are being funded by GLA.
Corridors Electric vehicles Promote electric charging points 35 Investigating suitable sites for Barry Mar 2017
and car clubs and car clubs electric charging points to support Philips

electric vehicles use.




69T

TFL Scheme Details £k Status Contact Planned
programme officer finish
Corridors Promoting Initiatives undertaken by travel 50 | On-going work to provide: Barry Mar 2017
sustainability planning staff to support the e Travel Planning advice for Philips
wider sustainable transport planning applications
agenda e Promotion of electric vehicle
technology and charging points
and Car Clubs
e Promotions / Campaigns including
- Bike Week, cycling promotions,
walking works promotions,
integration with smarter travel
e Promotion of Active Travel and
links with Health and Air Quality
Corridors Road safety Various road safety education 45 | Interactive road safety education David Mar 2017
education and initiatives for schools and programs to continue in all schools Corby
promotions vulnerable road user groups in Harrow.
undertaken by Road Safety
Officer. Motor cycle banner campaign to be
launched in November.
Corridors School Travel Plan, | Highway improvement schemes 50 | Whitchurch School — scheme to Barry Mar 2017
Highway schemes | identified in School Travel Plans introduce parking controls in access Philips

to encourage sustainable
transport and mitigate impact of
school expansions

road and parking areas under
development.
Other schemes being investigated.




0T

TFL Scheme Details £k Status Contact Planned
programme officer finish
Corridors School support Various initiatives undertaken by 80 | Support for school travel plans Barry Mar 2017
travel planning staff: including requests for grant funding Philips
to implement measures to support
e Small grant funding to support school travel plans to promote
travel plans sustainable travel and discourage
e Walk to School promotions use of private car to travel to school.
e Schools quarterly newsletter
e Theatre in education Promotional work to support
e School Travel Maps sustainable transport message
; including Theatre in Education
* Cycle repair workshops shows and Dr Bike sessions
Corridors Future programme | Identify future work through 50 | On-going scheme investigation and Barry Mar 2017
development assessments and studies. development work for 2017/18 Philips
schemes
Corridors Travel Planner Staff funding support 55 | Support the cost of the Travel Barry Mar 2017
Planning officers in undertaking Philips
School and Business Travel Plans.
Schools Safe Drive Stay Road safety initiative targeting 23 | Stage productions arranged for David Mar 2016
Alive young drivers schools Corby
Local Various local Local priority schemes identified 100 | Schemes identified at Feb TARSAP Barry Mar 2017
Transport schemes by the borough which support the as follows: Philips
Fund Mayors Transport Strategy

e Imperial Drive — cycle route
e Bacon Lane — extension to
20mph zone

e Whitefriars School — extension

to 20mph zone

e Tregenna Avenue/Alexandra
Avenue — junction safety
improvement

e Minor safety schemes — ad hoc

requests




T.1

TFL Scheme Details £k Status Contact Planned
programme officer finish
Borough Cycle Training — This additional funding will 68 TfL funded cycle training is offered free | David Mar 2017
Cycling Adults and Children | expand the current cycle to children and adults, who live, work or | Corby
Programme training programme are educated in the borough. All

courses are promoted via the council

website and throughout schools and

businesses in the borough.
Borough Cycle parking Implementation of cycle parking 45 Investigation underway to determine Barry Mar 2017
Cycling at key locations such as shops, suitable locations Philips
Programme stations, libraries, parks, cycle

hubs and other key attractors

Borough Staffing Staffing to support delivery of 45 To support the costs of the road David Mar 2017
Cycling Borough Cycle Programme safety education service in Corby
Programme delivering the BCP
Borough Cycle Grants for Providing support to schools 3 Monies confirmed recently. David Mar 2016
Cycling schools to introduce infrastructure on Engagement with schools is Corby
Programme school sites (cycle shelters, underway.

etc.)




This page is intentionally left blank

172



Appendix C Longfield School

| C =5 | SNDUV

ITTWEA S0 LOR ATl ROOPLTERG D (TR - ShCT SIS 100 HSS Vil al TT3 0k
=. =

173



This page is intentionally left blank

174



Appendix D

2T T T gag,

/]
LI

1%
%

o

SO )

W\

== === PROPOSED 20mph ZONE BOUNDARY
PROPQSED DOUBLE YELLOW LINE

e EXISTING SCHOOL KEEP CLEAR RESTRICTIONS
PROPOSED SPEED CUSHIONS

EXISTING SPEED CUSHIONS

20mph ROUNDEL ROAD MARKING

L S M v N 1 | H R I

NOTE:
8 » THELOCATION OF PROPOSED
BPEED CUSHIONS & 20mph

ROLINDEL ROAD MARKINGS,
ZONE ARE INDICATIVE & SUBJECT
TO CONFIRMATION

N KERBBUILD OUT

N RAISED TABLE / ENTRY TREATMENT

PARK HIGH SCHODL 20mph ZONE - PUBLIC CONSULTATION (NOT TO SCALE)

T ==

175

e e . 00 O R




This page is intentionally left blank

176



APPENDIX E

BUS STAND & FLAG
TO BE REMOVED TO
IMPROVE VISIBILITY

KERB REALIGNMENT TO
IMPROVE ALIGNMENT
FOR BUSES

KERB REALIGNMENT TO KERS REALIGNMENT TO
IMPROVE ALIGNMENT IMPROVE ALIGNMENT
FOR BUSES FOR BUSES

ISLAND
REALIGHNED

PROPOSED ANTIHSKID
SURFACING TC IMPROVE SK|D
RESISTANCE ON APPROACH
TO PELICAN CROSSING

PROPOSED EXTENSION
TO BUS LANE

PROPOSED ISLAND T
PREVENT RIGHT TURN
IN AND QUT OF

WEIGHTON ROAD AND
IMPROVE PEDESTRIAN
SAFETY AT CROSSING

KEY;

RETAIL | COMMERCIAL BUILDINGS
FOOTWAY REPAVED

CARRIAGEWAY TD BE RESURFACED
{ REFAVED

ANTI-SKID SURFACING
TRAFFIC ISLAND
HHf  UNCONTROLLED CROSSING

EXISTING DOUBLE YELLOW UINE
WAITING RESTRICTIONS REALIGNED

PROPOSED NO WAITING AND
LOADING AT ANY TIME

NOTES:

1. ALLEXISTING ROAD MARKINGS
ARE SHOW IN GREY,

2. PROPOSED ROAD MARKINGS
ARE SHOWN IN BLACK,

i

fE

WAT

EXISTING PELICAM
CROSSING

| KERE
REALIGNMENT
AND NEW
FOOTWAY

sy e

T

KERB
REALIGNMENT
AND NEW
FOOTWAY

PROPOSED
EXTENSION TO
BUS LANE

ISLAND
REALIGNED

ISLAND KERB

PROPOSED |SLAND TO REALIGNED REALIGNMENT

PREVENT RIGHT TURN AND
IMPROVE PEDESTRIAN SAFETY
AT CROSSING

SURFACING TO [MPROVE SKID
RESISTANCE ON APPROACH
TC PELICAN CROSSING

J . PROPOSED ANTI-SKID

RAISED
TABLE

ISLAND

REALIGNED

ISLAND
REALIGNED

ATKINS' |

(e D

HIGH ROAD [KSI] - FUBLIC CONSULTATION (NOT TO SCALE)

B ATHHPC-22 54 0.0002

177



This page is intentionally left blank

178



APPENDIX F

P m——

|
- - 4

EXTENDED -

EXISTING [SLAND = |L||M P e——s

-PROPOSED 12m

LOADING BAY i i
CE] [ 1 | PRPCPES" ., —
E _, | | ENTRY L3y # [ i
| — TREATMENT | e
y 1 I\ = ,
_,_, . ) e \ /.r @V_ \
— |
- | __, \ " i | _ 7
| \ \ 1
ad | X \ |
b— 1 \ \ sl
STATION ROAD PUBLIC CONSULTATICN (NOT TO SCALE) 4

FA\CEEMBN T\ HE\PROJECTS 5132387 — Harraw Council Transportmion Support — HARDSZE3,200 — Station Road'20_CADYOT—WIF\D\SK\HCTSSR-ATK—HRC—STA—SK-D—0001 dwg

179



This page is intentionally left blank

180



APPENDIX G

%ﬁ{ﬁbﬁ..ﬁlﬂuﬁﬁ ﬂ%ﬂﬂﬁﬂ%f- ;
/| !F.:“.——_ i ———H—m_ mm_- N -..-_ B ._ i

v %ww

181



This page is intentionally left blank

182



APPENDIX H

S
/

8

183

@ = O S m 5% :
TE - ; - cre
OOV T T ) TR D=

KEY: 20mph 2ONE

— e EXISTING 20mph ZONE BOUNDARY
8 wes wes PROPOSED 20mph ZONE BOUNDARY

[ 1] FROFOSED SPEED CUSHIONS

T ZONE “  20mph ROUNDEL ROAD MARKINGS
o P Q 20mph ZONE
! ﬁn v —Ay— ZONE TO TIE INTO EXISTING 20mph ZOKE
- EXISTING SPEED CUSHIONS
/L ‘ g [ EXISTING RAISED TABLES
NOTE:
 MAPPINS 15 REPRODERTID ' ORIVEANCE M4 TIRTAT 2on
= e g isirs xie - \N‘J@ m-_un_ 1. THE LOCATION OF PROPOSED SPEED CUSHIONS &

“20mph EXIT 20mph ROUNDEL ROAD MARKINGS, ARE INDIGATIVE
- e T " 4y N &\ij ZONE SIENS & SUBJECT TO CONFIRMATION.

>-—-R— z m._. _ @f” ) _ WHITEFRIARS 20mph ZONE EXTENSION - PUBLIC CONSULTATION (NOT TO SCALE} HOTETZATCHPG W FESCD.0001
oo




This page is intentionally left blank

184



1000-A-MS-ZZ-OdH-M11V-SOO10H

(37vOS OL LON) NOILVLINSNOD 2118Nd - INIHOS FTOAD THLINID FUNSIFT A iy 4 ) |, Hm Z —V— l—l<
@@ d3a11g9iHOdd ONITOAD _.N_._ W 9 13SNI V 13SNI @ @
ANV NOIS 35N A36vHS m INNIAV AOOMIWTT / GVOY SIONVH INNIAY HOEINHOLSIHHD G109 NO NSIS 5/ @3NON3d 38 al
® V3V 3SN A3”VHS a3S0d0odd VIV 3SN A3¥VHS / 318VL 3SIvVY d3S0d0Yd Q3LISIHONA ONITOAS I oA XNT1OA3T
= D\
__ m / ANV NOIS 3SN AIHVHS - N/ b&  NVIMLSIA3d
SMNSAY QOOMATE J— vl om_/m_<m_ 5
- == a¥v1108 NO
| ~ = NSIS 3SN AFHVHS (0380d0¥d |
_ — L NWNTOD dAV1 | LNOQTING AYMLOOH
£ @ ONILSIX3 NO / 9YIM QINDITVIE | o)) .
| NOIS ISN AFHVHS m .
691 :
F > /91
69l — ‘
€9l o
d3AOWTY 39 O1 JONIA | J# — \ —
NIQOOM ONILSIXT 40 Wi - Gp @ . A\ e :
, QYV1108 ONILSIX3 NO el — |
19 Q3AONW3d 39 OL 30N34 NOIS 3LI9IHOYd ONITOAD : ‘ ’ _,
65 N3IAOOM ONILSIXT - ANV NOIS 3SN aFYVHS \ . = ’ : ,
AJSHNN NINNT0D | = |
MOEEvH SlONVY @ dINVT ONILSIX3 NO : .
avod SNOIS 3SN AIFHVHS -

G

\

INNIAY FHONNTA

NANT10D
dAVT ONILSIX3 NO
- SNOIS 3SN d34VHS

) @W e ’ Lnoaiing |
e AVMLOOS / g3
QaNOITVIY -
AVMLOO4 3SN \\ N ~ @ -
A3aYVHS d3SOd0ONd - ONISSOHD ddv1104 NO NOIS
\ o AVMLOO4 3SN v¥E3Z ANV 3TOAD @3aLIgIHOYd ONITOAD
ﬂww Q3YVHS 3S0dOyd - - 1377vdVd A3S0Od0odd - ANV NOIS 3SN aI¥VHS /
o 0
T
c
S 3 .
&& .
O
a¥v1109 NO NOIS Lel

Q3LIFIHOYd ONITOAD
- ANV NOIS 3SN IYVHS 621 ~\
/2L . .
| mNr Qth '

£

1noaing <

AVMLOOd X
- @3S0dOYd ,.\\ L

4

_ T I e
/ > ] 902610001 MOYIVH AO HONOYOTd NOANOT
Qv‘ SONIAATD0Yd TINID dO NOILNDHSOAd OL AVATAVIN ANV LHOINAdOD NMOYD STONIHANI
QO NOILIDNAOYITY ASINOHINVNA LTHOTIAd0D NMOYD (D) ADIAI0 AIANOILV.LS S.ALSAVIN
(@) HHH AO YATIOYINOD AHL A0 ATVHAL NO AHAYNS AONVNAYO A0 NOISSINYAd THL
$®NW HLIM TVIALVIN AHAYNS IONVNAYO NOd AASVE 40 WOIA AADNA0YdAY ST ONIddVIN THL
O
P § ol
5 & : < %% -
ONIAVd TTILOVL AOHNAY0D B
\©
ONISSOYO d3TI0YINOONN  HEHHHHH R a
ONISSOMD QI TIONINOD [ | “ N\ |
37aV.L ISV g g TR &
TIVHL IT0AD / == e o
anvsl g ==\
Wi
ONISSOND | QoYL 3 AVMLOO4 3SN a3YVHS E \ o
/ oo Se - OLANVISI IOYIA SSVHO [ S
" G3TI0MLINOONN || o p anvisiwodd | e TYEEReeVEY L 56 15, R
¢ a3aNonvay | -39 0L ANVISI aITIOMLNOONN b :
s | (LIVHdSY) Avmiood [ = a0 : ) 3
R TADN : “ A N = :
. Q SONIATING £ P\ SIS | : LN
IVIOYINWOD / TIVLIY b /()] NOILYWHOANI < SN anoLsavam
o, B s 1EEes A s,
AN [ s [~ W L O 2 , 4

185



This page is intentionally left blank

186



NDOANODOT

L000-0-ZZ-4S-OdHLY-SIdIOH (37v0S O1 1ON) NOILYLTINSNOD 211dnd - IAIYA TVId3AdI A KQ&&\S\Q v m Z —! P<
AL

~ ~ / ™~ -

/ \ SONIGIED0¥d TIAID YO NOILNDASOYd O.L mewmmm% %m&@%ﬁ%ﬂ%%@&&ﬂw&& 1S0Od ANV N9DIS d3Ss0d0Odd Q

— / NOLIDNAOYdTY AISIIOHINYNA "IHOIAdOD NMOUD (3) IIIAA0 ANANOILV.LS SALSALVIN ANVISI / dId1S NVIA3IN
/ I / YAH A0 YITIONINOD FHL A0 ATVHAL NO ATAUNS IONVNAYO A0 NOISSINYA AHL

/ N HLIim TvIdgiyin 23480S IONVNGIO NOJN AASVE ¥0 WO¥A AAONA0AdY ST ONIddVIN THL adv11og dasododd o

/ \\ﬁ/w\ V ~_ AVMLOO4 3SN d3H4VHS d3S0d0dd
// ~ ~ NISSOYD NVONOL ONILSIXT <+—>

; L ~_ / I | ONISSOHO NVONOL ONILS Q3NIVLIY 39 OL YOVHL ITOAD ONILSIXT

~ L ] ONISSOHO A3ITT0HLNOODNN
~ \/\ ~_ / ~_ 7
Y \ [ // ~ ~__ | | av1ay3Ig r=-1 SONIATING VIOYIWNOD / 1IV1IY
F %4 / i | OL AVYM1O0O4 40 VIY k== ONISSOYD AITI0YINOD I AT
, / -
| o . —_— -
T ,///\ . C 7 T L ¢ N
/ | \ \ | | - 1 p? , ; M// / J J
=~/ | T T e | Euinm) |
77 ,,, ,,,\ ,,,, \ \ 7 7 7 o T 7 7 7 7 7 — o R —
| | / &/ ,, [ T~ | | ] |
NSIS Q3 LIGIHOHd ONITOAD SSI00V F1DAD HO4 gy3¥ A3ddoNa noisasnazuvks TR oy q Q3AOW3Y 38 0L i | NOIS 3SN AFUVHS x | 77 | 43AOW3Y 38 0L | | .
| ONV NOIS 3SN AIHVHS Y0vE OL M3N 404 MOTTY OL SH1IN 9 OL ' sovaolvovaHum (BRg8 3943 SSvaO OLNI | SONIIYVIN 3NYT FTOAD : OV OL YOVE HLIM il | SONIMUYIN INVT TTOAD | o
/' Y0VE HLIM GYVT108 A3SOdO¥d - a30NA3Y 38 OL AVE DNV ONILSIX3 /) Q¥vT108 03S0dodd SGagy ' Q3AN3LX3 AVMLOOH - QHVANVISENS ONILSIX3 1 QA2 ayv1108 03SOdONd - 2 | | QuVANYLSENS ONILSIX3 - ]
\ | [ / \ \\ \ \,\ | / 7 7, _|A 7 H— | 7 7 < 7 7 | | 7 7 I
| — / ~ / / | / — m S
A¥30UN [ / Ay S A N | N | | . | | | . | — 4 | | 7\ |
vYM3IOaly —] , \\\ 7= 7 ?Lf f L | o0 7 f L 7 || f | 7 7 7 | 7
3HL / LT —
\ \ \ €g \\ \/x\,\/\ ,,,\,,TL \UJ ,,,,,, i 7 77 _\HlﬁLTJ , — i 7 J 7
Q/\\ 4& [ se| [ i B 77 JdvHO | | 77 | xﬁ | | f
— L (apE ERE 16 | | .
/ | ] | 7 | | g HOYNHO 1S
\\\ ,\/,,T‘//f,,ll / ﬁj,’ L ﬁ\\‘,,/c \1,;/, \L \7! _L m J Jr ANV SH3
_— [ P z
,, At
=N
m
a
gL
>
INIYA IVIYIdn) z z=|
. 5 oEL ST
®T____ T = —— Lo q
‘““\_’ __|\\ L@*WWM\”\/H.I rtehTTe T 1 L 1 [ —— 1% - B ® - |
i L - = i 7 I
RN I
| | | | | | |
— |k ke
T
| IH L H[ =T
- \
7 7’ — L 7 L‘L\"JL /,
1] * * iR
. ﬁ\\ | ] 7 7’ — ,/
T . 3 7 7 | |
- &\\ 2 | | 7
@ b =2 /\ z | | | | q |
P~ NSIS AVMLOOA | | g - | | | | 7 | |
NSIS Q3LISIHOYd ONITOAD ANV Q3LvOIHDIS ANV NOIS NOIS 3SN AIHVHS R | Q3AOW3Y 38 0L | -\ NOIS 38N A3VHS @4 R B R | Q3AOW34 38 0L | | | | | i )
NOIS AMLOO4 U3 LVOaoaS ove SN OT8vHS Sove 0L Sove SIOVE OL OvE HLIM m 39¥3A SSVHO OLNI I | SONIYEYIN 3NV ITOAD | OV OL Yove HLM (B SONIMEYIN 3NV FTOAD S \
L 01 MOVE HLIM a¥vT108 3S0dOXd HLIM Qdv1108 a3S0dodd Q¥VT108 A3SOdOYd - G3ANILX3 AYMLOOH | T | P GVQALSENS ONILSPA > ; \ - QHvT108 03s0d0¥d NGER B — - CHVONVLSENS oz@\.\\\\\Jss,//
« S , B - N \ T T~ T
e <\ VAR Pt / \ ~—~T—
\ o X \ A | —
—T 7, \ L\ [
ﬂ\\wf \ \ \ \ e \ ,,/
P / / \ \\\\\\ \\\\ /
IR RGN T T T =T =1 == T L LT =1 T Y Jo— W&
‘ | T il — — 10 i | ‘ TT S [ VN
| f ﬁ\\\p 7 - 7 - — L] | 1 | L E . | - — a) In T 1 N ﬁ ] i L — FLT\ /| ,#,,,/J// \ A\
e I \ PSR
= . % s % . s R P\
| | - | | | | | | | | / | //
» | ] | —— | i _ - B | o L ROy B
x - | T | - . T | T | QP
= f | | | L] | T ,fJf hj gj . | ;ji | | | || | | \ b
TS Q3AOW3Y 38 OL LL NoISISNaTIVHS NOIS 3SN QIUVHS e\ | | P\KRF\\“F\ NOIS 3SN AFUVHS | % L QIAOWINIFOL Y R R NOIS G3LIGIHOYd ONITOAD
2 SONIMEVIN INVT TTOAD HLIM Q¥v1108 - »OvaOoLMOvVEHLIM HLM QuvTIog [k L SONDVWINVTIIAO ANV NOIS 3SN Q3¥VHS %0ve OL /
E QNVANVLSANS ONILSIXA 1 Q3SOdO¥d - QYVTI08 3SOd0Yd | QEA2 Q3S0dOdd 1 CGaZ - QYVANV.LSENS ONILSIX3 [ OVE HLIM QYVTI08 43S0d0dd \
> R | | N — | | oL
\\ — /,,/ 7 L
[ f, 7 T R E—
] Pf
- AYMLOO4 3SN aIuVHS |
d1 L 7 7 ¥3QIM 3AINOYd OL ,
L] ] ﬁ J HONAHO LSLLye Q3NOMY3Y INMGHIM \ 7 ] $X00¥8avT
1] | Jf INYT SHANAVY K _ 7, ; | NOILY.LS JONINGINY ¥3NNId
= o o 3 7
T g IR .
7 — \ , [ - @»
1 v o ﬁ (-
|
E— E— R PHM /7 B r- rA
- _Wn |||||||| 20 I _ & _ 4 “““‘\r\.
- e I e
¢ = = —_— :
= = e — :
S sl .y
e e . __ @ ”
it = —r s |

JISNOH 10497Vl

i

\\
A

1dN02 IVIYIdII

R T Ik B m— ? S
L/PJ‘\“I’)‘“M/ ﬁ I B ) o , / NOILVLS INVT SHINAVH
: £ = o — ’ LT /
[ [ - — v A L S - //
| | [0 )‘ W

| w3vve VL
4138

\
\

\\

Advydln

\

\ / 7310H SHIANAVY 2 \ \ \ \
, \ \
@ W 5 / | \ W
/ V N | | [ | \\
- 7 / | | //
NOIS AVMLOOS O L 8 I N | |
EINENEL T Q31¥O3493S ANV NOIS NOIS AVM1004 NOIS AVMLOOA - NOIS AVMLOO4 ALIIOVH FT0A0 \
SONDMY INVT 3TOAD 3SN AUVHS MOV OLMOVE  QALVOIUOIS HLIM aaLvozyo3s Hum (1I1ESZ aaLvozuols Hum | (IESY ANNOSHLYON ,, :
L QuvaNV1SENS ONILSIX3 HLIM QHVT108 a3SOdOdd Q¥vyT108 d3S0dO¥d L quv1108 a3s0doxd — QyvT108 a3S0doYd \ ONILSIX3 -
~ v -
{5
S

187




This page is intentionally left blank

188



BMp’L000-A-HA-ZZ-NOH-MLY-MOHSLOH\HA\Q\dIM-L0\AVD 0Z\8wayos AjuoLd sng Aemabpry 8yl - 00£\69Z€AYVH - 91 §10Z Moddng uonepodsuel] [10UN0Y MOLIBH - #G0YLG\S1OIrodd\gH\d.L\gN3gon.d

JaquinN _ 2|0y _ wa>._._ uoieoso . dd ¢ doudd ‘6
pddy | PMUD Ag uonduosaq aleq Aoy Juswialels poyiaw paAoiade ue 0] ‘ajeliaolade alsym DulyIOom . N : ) .
¢d LOO0O - 4 - ¥4a- 77 NOAaNO™ — J10}J0B1U09 JUS}adWOd B AQ INO PaLLIED 8q [|IM SHIOM ||E JBey} POWNSSE S| ]| g ””%W-m.mm.ww.m_v_\wn.ﬁ«-%wmmwn .
vosinoy | Z @ _l_ _ V._|_|< _ >>@N_ WFO_I_ HMa | 88 | Man SLINIWNOD HET - INSSITVNIOO | 9L°0L'70 d -:ON SONIMYHA ONIMOT104 IHL HLIM NOILONNFNOD NI @v3d 39 OL SI ONIMYHA SIHL 6
bYSOvLS oo LS S 4 ‘N“%‘\O\\ Q - - | manw a3aav SNOIS ® ONIMHYIN aY - 2d INON -anoav _
oN 4oy 108001 | GHo Joquin Bumeiq v NOILYHOANI 3OVANOIS THL 33S SLHOITFH ONILNNOW NOIS ¥O4 "AVMIOVINEYD THL OV14 SN daNIVLId NO NOIS 03S0d0dd
: : IO WWosY 40 FJONVEVYITO WNWINIW ¥ HLIM GILNNOW 39 OL 34V STOVANDIS TV
— — . ; NOILINTOWAA/ONINOISSININOD3IA "NOILVDI4I03dS HET HLIM 3ONVAHOODY NI 38 OL 34V SNOILYANNOA 8 SISO N9IS '8 NH0D dhv GALYoOTY O
91L°0L %0 91L'0L°€0 9L'60 9160 LY
ajeq a1eq ajeq ajeq azIS |eulbuo jualD ‘HE1 AD adv11049 N3AOOM d3SOd0dd [}
: . - G30INOYd N334 SVH NOILYIWHOANI TIV13d AYVANYLS NOILONYLSNOD AVMIDVIMEYD L NINNT00 dWY1 a31V00T3Y -0
HMA ag MEN MaWn 00¢:} woo'|eqo|Bsufje: Mmm (9102) penwi sudipy @) buAdon 3NON A : . NINATOD dNYT ONLLSIX
. "HET A9 QINYHIANOD 38 OL T4V SNOILISOd ONILHOIT LITHLS 0ISOdodd TV 9
pasuoyiny paxaayD umelq paubisaq a|eos GS00V. 2.E _\on v+ :xed OZ_ Z<MI_O\MOZ<ZM|_|Z _<_>_ NOILVOI4103dS HE1 OL) 3111L0VL 44N9 d3SOd0dd NN N0 AV NO Y14 SN GINIVLTY NO NSIS dISO0dOMd _
0v192. 22€1L(0) P+ (19L "3LIS NO HE1 A9 A3WHIINOD 38 OL SLSOd 8 SNOIS 40 NOILYD01a3S0d0dd  °§ (NOLLYOIID3dS HE10L) 1S0d % NOIS ONILSIXT
ONILSIX3 HOLVIN OL S8VTS ONIAVA FLTHONOD
VG 8L1M "SNOIS (NOILYOI-103dS HE101) 1S0d 8 N9IS d3S0d0¥d -
>®t3w 3INON HO4 ONIAYOT ANIM LO3HHOD LH0ddNS OL 319V 34V SNIWNTOO dAVT IINSNI OL HA1 v ONIOV4dNS AVMLOOS LTVHJSY NIANTOD dAIVT ONILSIX3 NO 1SOd % NOIS d3s0dodd T
INIANTONYHEY TVHINTS dISO0dOdd wosd3 = NOLLONYLSNOD SSIMMEHLO GALYLS SSTINA 3AIM j_<h_oom__,_m__w«u%ﬂ_,wmw“m\_/w\m,_\,n_m_moﬂ_m.__m@m ATIND ONILSIXT O3
NOIS3A 1IvLl3d onuany As|ysy wwool 38 OL FuV SONIMEYIN NOILOIMLSTY INITMOTIZA 319N0A AISOdOdd TIV '€ (NOLLYOIIIO34S HET OL) ATINS A3SOdONd SN
Aemale osd : ‘
e Bumesg 1o1e9 oSt 1o sadfy o IHollo) O1f 10U DuME SupLOpRLEIR NOLLYAVOX3 ANY SNDIVLIONN 340438 HOLOVHINGD FHL NI BRI 0L BNIOHSRINS SIhON0D SHOLLOMLSR: SN 038001s
3 ] 1 8yl yum pajel I JSH/SP. Y 8y} O} uolippe uj A8 3A0Yd 38 AINOHS SNLYHVAdY SYIMYLHIANN AHOLNLYLS 40 NOILVOOT3IHL 2 NOLLOAULENND AVASDLYOIOSS HE1OL ot v a0 on “_M
JINTHOS ALIYOINd SN AVAISAIY IHL NOILVINHOANI . '0314103dS ISIMYIHLO SSTINN STULIN NI Fuiv SNOISNIWIA TV 'L g NOLLYOLIO3ds Ha o1) a3aaasI (w051} Sy Q2SOdON
oL 1o8loid Anqeyng snjejs Buimeiq TVLINIWNOYIANT ANV HLTV3IH AL134dVS ‘SILON AIM
902610001 MONNVH A0 HONOYOI NOANOT SONIAAAIONU TIAID 4O NOLLADASOUd OL AVAT AVINANY LHORIAdOD NMOUD STONIIANI
“SIBUI0D p3punol o} paonpai BalY NOILONAOIdAY AASTIOHLNYNA LHDIFAdOD NMOYUD (D) ADIAAO AYANOILVLS SALSAIYIW ¥AH 4O FATIOIINOD AHL AO ATVHAEL NO (1'8L0L°ON ©VIQ)
. oore AYBISH 3unop AGAANS HONVNTIO H0 NOISSINYA AHL HLIM TVINALVIN KAANNS ADNVNAIO NOIN AASYE O WOUA AIINAOAIT ST ONIdd VI THL
90D] [3A3] D 01 pawwln 3 (07 L NIN) AVMIOVIIYO ZWS0'0 ealy VY SseD  [eudlel ZvY sse|n [eLa3e NOILOIH1S3d INIT MOTIFA I
> | P H 94 TeI ] 99w ONILSIX3 SAdvMOL ww 5] 13pio Wz eal (NOLLYWHOANI 379N 0A AINDITVIYE
0] UOIONASU0d Bunsixy [SIN] 37¥DS V4 03S0404d wiogz i RoTEA  Punoibed i zs o LNINNOIMVI FOVINOIS HOH ZO0/MOYON 3 338) m
“1Iv13d NOILD3S 9433 LHOIFH T1N4 ONINIAIM d3SOdO¥d VI NBIS Sovig noion Jome ] 009 o ~g43% a3S0d0o¥d 1S0d M3N NO'G3LNNOW 2d OL (1°205ON ©VIQ) z
002 WbBRY-X v/6  Jod  ubis 1205 dURIRY UBIS _IZmu_w AV3HY NOILONNAr d343ooVvLS A3S0d0dd 5
N £00/MOY 4oy AWLYdS 200 / MOY 24 aWaydS g
S Wwo0S XYN Wwoos SSLIDA r
M sasnq 3daoxa e @.
< N N < awn} Aue 3y B B AN K|
// SN O N A OO A N Y \\K\\/\\\/\\/\\/%/\\/\\/\\ \///\\///\\///\\/// ® T = skl
- S
B — - [ \\//\\\//\\\//\\\//\ zW9T'Z ealy VY ssen  |eudien
~ |3 6u ;m,xm. \7/ NS \7/ NSNS WWoRkT  yIpIM JLIHM  punoibyoeg
S B o i 30v4 NOIS Movig  Inojod Jo3aT I
M c A# 0°00T 1ybIay-x €0Tc 4oy ubis W_
buionds 10 WWOOZ | Eo omyooy / ebien Bunsixg 100 /MOY oY BuRdS
JDQg |99} WGy julol uoisundxy S 1
0
Q.
apIM WC'| 1odJpd pups S - o60vVv
WWG| uo pakp| pub sspiy 70Gg - BUI| IS T MO JlleH
pasodoud F.—H.‘—oz
paJinbais sp Jako| buipuig
GNQD yydep wwing
Yidep WW(Q 8SIN0D Jspulq WyH 8ZIS "WON WW(Z G0j5 10 B1UBY 10 YSBW 707y 0o60vVv ‘ ( wiee Y o L-0 v (1001°0N YA (0h0L0 v
w:ml— ¢ ’ L 1HOIFH 009} ¥#20LON OVId 7001L°ON OVIA) 0¥01'ON OVId
490 Wilhy 85iM00 BuLIDaM e Lon LW 5UIqUeY BUNSIXT SONIMYYIN-AYOY 03ISOdO¥d SONIMHVI SONIMYYI
Yidep 0¥ ! VoH o7 N vl siau >mm_ —-(YO¥d d3S0d0dd —avOd d3S0d0o¥d
gpn|s wuppz 21pbaibbo "
Wou Wy 8}840U0) O¥) S
A3dd34SNVHL ,
(1'810L°ON OVIQ) 310d HdY¥93T13L 3G 0L A1ddNS TvOId123713 (¥001°ON ©VIQ) . (NOILVINHOANI
] NOILOIYLSTY INITMOTIIA Q3aNIv.i3y FNNTOP-NY] QaLygoTaY INIANSITVIY SONIMYVA (1°5201°0N OVIQ) FOVANOIS HOd E00/OMY ON 434 33S) (wwiopl-gzl NIIML38
379N0d AINSITVIY ﬁ —a43M a3s0d0yd avod a3asodoyd— J9v9 SNg d3SO40Nd OV1d SN HLIM NINNTOD dINVT d3INIVLIY 39 O1 39VO SN4d NIHLIM ——
NO d2iNNOW 39 OL (¥.6'°N 9VIQ) LHOITH g93% 3S0d0¥d) @
NOIS NOILOIH1S3d d3SOdOdd rINIJANDITVIY 943X d3S0d0dd H
vy}
O]
=
(]
. )
MN — S e n e id o b R R A AN BRI o SR W ] O sk
Sayv1109 NIAOOM — o5 ) EAC N ,. FTEETE ;, = T r. x,i T NN Ad T ﬁlu
("oNZ) a3sodoyd N 03 - 18
. oo n N 3
3 < .
—_— | l|
——~ 7 7 7 / 7 / / - = _ w/e d\
Z /s 7 7 /S /7 /7 S /S /] B v/ S S S T T T T ——— - = *
N 3 bt W7 _ NOILOINNOD ATIND |~
IN nw: |+| ONILSIX3 3SITILN mu
.u7.u OL ATINS d3IS0Od0Odd
w
M@ M4 ¥a 3 :
== i e Vel 51 %a <23 wa .
= N _ T
o
T
O
7
(0v0L'ON ©VIQ)
3 SONDIYI QIYIISNVHL 38 OL A1ddNS 310d Hdvy9313L
o | Lavoy a3sodogd TVOIY.LO3T3 (NOILYINHOANI JOVANDIS (NOILYWHOSNI 3OVANOIS - QaNIv13d
@ (- 0 ) H0O4 Z00/MOYON 434 33S) NWNT10D (wwoyl-gz1 N3aML3g H04 €00/9M¥ON 43 33S)
L | 1’8101 ON OVId (0¥0L'ON HVIQ) JNY1 03.LY00T34 NO d3LNNOW 39 0L 39V SNd NIHLIM OV14 SN aaNIVLIY NO
NOILOIHLS3I ANIT MOTI3A 5 : . :
0 SONIMAVIA LNINNOIMYIY 3g 01 (1'20G°ON ©VIA) NOIS AVIHY 1HOITFH g¥3Y d3IS0d0¥Hd) d3LNNOW 38 0L (¥26'ON OVIA) (1’5201 'ON ©VIQ)
- 318N0d A3HSIHL3Y -avoY a3sQdoyd g43% d3S0do¥d NOLLONAF AINI09VLS 3SOdond- INIFWNDITVIY 9433 d3SOd0o¥d—~  “NOIS NOILOI¥LSIY 03S0d0odd -3DVO sSng a3S0dodd
g
NINNTOD dINVT INIWNDITVIY (HET A9 @3aNINYTL3A 39 OL NOIS 40 NOILYDOT)
a3Lvoo13y ay3Y a3s0doyd (NOILYWHOANI 3OVANDIS HO4 L00/MOH ON 434 33S)

g
B
.

wg oL

P

>
.

f SEE MIDDLE SECTION

341VvOS 1ON Od

(#00L"ON ©VIQ)
SONIMYVIN
~avOoy a3s0do¥d

INIANOITVIY
—g4d3X d3S0d0dd

1S0d M3AN 8 NWNTOD dNVT A3INIVLId NO d31LNNOW
(€0LZ’ON 9VIA) NOIS TYNOILOIHIA AFONVAQY A3SOd0Hd

wae

wge

o3

(NOILVINHOANI IOVANDIS

HO4 €00/9MYON 434 33S)

OV14 SNg A3INIVLIY

NO d31NNOW 39 OL (¥26'ON OVIQ)
NOIS NOILOIYLSIY a3ISOdO¥d -

(1'520L"ON ©VIA) IDVD
sSNg a3s0do¥d

ey

(1'8LOL°ON OVIQ)
NOILDIYL1STY IANIT MOTITA
— 379N0Ad d3SOdO¥d

(#00L"ON OVIQ)
SONIMEVIN
~avOo¥ a3S0do¥d

0

0l

SN

l
(0[0]3

189



This page is intentionally left blank

190



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	7 Information Report - Petitions
	8 Hatch End Area Parking Review - Results of Statutory Consultation
	TARSAP report - Hatch End CPZ stat con - Appx A1 - Nov 16
	TARSAP report - Hatch End CPZ stat con - Appx A2 - Nov 16
	TARSAP report - Hatch End CPZ stat con - Appx B - Nov 16

	9 Information Report: Transport Local Implementation Plan Programme of Investment 2017/18 - 2019/2020
	TARSAP Report - Transport programme of investment - Appx A - Nov 16
	TARSAP Report - Transport programme of investment - Appx B - Nov 16

	10 Information Report: Ultra Low Emission Zone - Neighbourhood of the Future (NoF)
	TARSAP Report - ULEZ -NoF Update - Appx A - Nov 16
	TARSAP Report - ULEZ -NoF Update - Appx B - Nov 16

	11 Information Report - Wealdstone transport issues
	TARSAP Report - Wealdstone transport issues - Appx A - Nov 16
	TARSAP Report - Wealdstone transport issues - Appx B - Nov 16
	TARSAP Report - Wealdstone transport issues - Appx C - Nov 16
	TARSAP Report - Wealdstone transport issues - Appx D - Nov 16
	TARSAP Report - Wealdstone transport issues - Appx E - Nov 16
	TARSAP Report - Wealdstone transport issues - Appx F - Nov 16
	TARSAP Report - Wealdstone transport issues - Appx G - Nov 16
	TARSAP Report - Wealdstone transport issues - Appx H - Nov 16

	12 Information Report - Traffic and Parking Schemes Programme update
	TARSAP Report - Schemes Update - Appx C - Nov 16
	TARSAP Report - Schemes Update - Appx D - Nov 16
	TARSAP Report - Schemes Update - Appx E - Nov 16
	TARSAP Report - Schemes Update - Appx F - Nov 16
	TARSAP Report - Schemes Update - Appx G - Nov 16
	TARSAP Report - Schemes Update - Appx H - Nov 16
	TARSAP Report - Schemes Update - Appx J - Nov 16
	TARSAP Report - Schemes Update - Appx K - Nov 16
	TARSAP Report - Schemes Update - Appx L - Nov 16


